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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property Investment Trust
plc is to maximise shareholders’ total returns by investing
in the shares and securities of property companies and
property related businesses internationally and also in

investment property located in the UK.

Introduction

TR Property Investment Trust plc {the ‘Company’ or the
Trust) was formed in 1905 and has been a dedicated
preperty investor singe 1982. The Company is an
[nvestment Trust and its shares are premium listed on
the Londan Stock Exchange.

Benchmark

The benchmark is the FTSE EFRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in Sterling.

Investment policy

The Company seeks to achieve its objective by
investing in shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses on an
international basis, although, with a pan-European
benchmark, the majority of the investrments will be
located in that geographical area. The Company also
invests in investment property located in the UK onty.

Further details of the Investment Policies, ihe Asset
Allocation Guidelines and policies regarding the use of
gearing are set out in the Strategic Report on page 5
and the entire portfolio is shown cn page 15.

Investment manager

BMO Investment Business Limited acts as the
Company’s alternative investment fund manager
{AIFMY) with portfolio management delegated to
Thames River Capital LLP (the ‘Portfolio Manager or
the ‘Manager). Marcus Phayre-Mudge has managed
the pertiolio since 1 April 2017 and been part of the
Fund Management team since 1967,
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Independent board

The Directors are all independent of the Manager

and meet regularly to consider investment strategy,

to monitor adherence to the stated objective and
investment policies and to review investment
performance. Details of how the Board operates and
fulfils its responsibilities zre set out in the Report of the
Directors cn page 43.

Performance

The Financial Highlights for the current year are set out
opposite and Historical Performance can be found on
page 2. Key Performance Indicatars are set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 24 and 25.

Retail investors advised by IFAs

The Company currently conducts its affairs so that
its shares can be recommended by Independent
Financial Advisers (IFAs") in the UK to retall investors
in accordance with the Financial Conduct Authority
{(FCA" rules in relation to non-mainstream investment
products and intends to continue tc do so. The
shares are excluded from the FCA's restrictions,
which apply to non-mainstream investment

products, because they are shares in an authorised
investment trust company.

Further information

General shareholder information and details of how to
invest in the Company, including an investment through
an ISA or saving scheme, can be found on pages 114
and 115. This information can also be found

on the Company’s website www.trproperty.com
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Financial highlights and performance

iz

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021 Change
Balance Sheet -
Net asset value per share 482 43p 41797p +17.8%
Shareholders' funds (£'000) 1,562,739 1,326,433 +17.8%
Shares in issue at the end of the year {m) 317.4 3174 0.0%
Net debt' & 10.2% 16 5%
Share Price
Share price 456.50p 392.50p +16 3% ‘
Market capitalisation £1,449m £1,246m +16.3%
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021 Change
Revenue ) - T T i
Ravenue earnings per share 13.69p 12.28p +11.8%
Dividends? ) ) o
Interirmn dividend per share 530p 5.20p +1.58%
Fina! dividend per share 9.20p 3.00p +22%
Total dividend per share 14.50p 14.20p +2 1%
Performance: Assets and Benchmark B ) B
Net Assel Value total return3® +21.4% +20.7%
Benchmark total returns +12.2% +15.9%
Share price total return*® +19.9% +28.3%
Ongoing Charges®* - R - -
Inciuding performance fee +2.19% 1.40%
Excluding performance fee +0.60% 0.65%
Excluding performance fee and direct property costs +0.58% 0.63%

7 Netdebtis the total value of loan netes, loans (including nationa! exposure Lo CFDs) less cash as a proportion of net assetvalle.

2 Dwidends per share are the dividends in respect of the finangial year ended 31 March 2022 An intenm dividend of 5 30p was paid on 14 January 2022 A final
dividend of 9.20p (2021 S 00p) will be paid on 2 August 2022 to shareholders on the registeron 24 June 2022 The shares will be quoted ex-dvidend on

23 June 2022,

3. The NaVv Tota! Return for the year 1$ calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are deemed
10 be reinvested on the ex-dividend date as this is the protocel used by the Company's benchmark and other indices.

4 The Share Price Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date.

5. Ongoing Charges are calcutated in accordance with the AIC methodology. The Ongoing Charges ratios provided in the Company's Key Information Document are

calculated inne with the PRIIPS regulation which is different to the AIC methodology
6 Considered to be an Alternative Performance Measure as defined onpage 102

TR Praperty Investment Trust



Historical performance

for the vear eqded 31 March 2022

2012 20713 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021“

— [ — 7}
Performance for o)
the year: "g':
Total Return (%) g
NAVE -8.5 21.5 22.4 28.3 8.2 8.0 15.5 9.1 -11.5 20.7 21.4 2
Benchmark® -8.9 17.8 149 233 54 6.5 1072 56 -11.0 15.0 12 2-
Share Price® -5 258 377 29.5 -1.6 9.1 265 62 -16.8 28.3 199
Shareholders’ funds
(£'m) @
Total 588 684 809 1,010 1,065 1118 1,256 1,328 1,136 1,326 1,563 =
Ordinary shares 470 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256 1,328 1,136 1,326 1,563 §
Sigma shares® 118 - - - - - - - - - 3
Ordinary shares
Net revenue (pence
per share) )
Earnings 7.07 674 8.09 8.89 8.36 11.38 13.22 14.58 14.62 12.25 13.69
Dividends'® 6.60 7.00 7.45 7.70 8.35 ) 106.50 12.20 13.50 14.00 14.20 14.50 -
NAV per share 183.60 21525 25494 31812 33596 35242 338564 41854 35817 41797 49243 §
{pence) =X
Share price (pence) 15450 18630 24750 31050 29750 31450 38250 39400 31750 39250 456.50 §
3
- [}
Indices of growth F

{rebased at 31 March 2012)

Share price® 100 121 160 201 163 204 248 255 206 254 795
Net Asset Value® 100 17 139 173 183 192 215 228 195 228 268
Dividend Net® 100 106 113 117 127 159 185 205 212 215 218
RPI 100 103 106 107 108 112 116 118 122 123 134
Benchmark®* 100 113 121 145 149 154 165 169 141 160 176

Figures have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Reporting Standards.

{A)The NAY Total Return for each year is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are
deemed to be reinvested at the ex-dividend date as this is the protocol used by the Company's benchrark and other indices. This is considered to be an Alternative
Performance Measure as defined on page 102.

{B)Benchmark Index: composite index cornprising the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe TR Index up to March 2013, and thereafter the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT
Developed Europe Capped Index. Source. Thames River Capital.

(C)yThe Share Price Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date.
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(D) The Sigma share ¢lass was launched in 2007 and Sigma shares were redesignated as Ordinary shares on 17 December 2012. z
(E) Dividends per share in the year to which their declaration relates and not the year they were paid. §'
{F)Share prices oniy. These do not reflect dvidends pard. ;’:
(G)Capital orlyvalues. These do not reflect dividends paid 2
{H)Price onty value of the indices set outin (B) above,
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Chairman’s statement

In a year dominated by
volatility and powerful
global macroeconomic
and political themes, I'm
pleased to report a year
of healthy performance.
Our NAV total return for
the year was 21.4% against
a benchmark of 12.2%

David Watson

The year was again dorninated by powerful global macro-
economic and political themes, propelling the market

in the first half and depressing it in the second. Spring
2021 saw broadly-based market optimism through the
continuation of broad post vaccine recovery across all
eccnomies, aided by the sustained dovish respense from
central banks. As inflationary pressures built towards the
second half, particularly due to supply chain disruption
and increasingly tight labour markets, investors began

1o build in expectation of increases in base rates and
consequently, credit spreads as expectations of global
growth moderated or evaporated. The central investment
theme became inflationary concerns, with the key
questions being its degree of permanence and the
various key central banks’ responses. Towards the end of
the financial y=ar, risk was elevated further by the tragic
events and unfolding humanitarian disaster in Ukraine.
Faor global equity markets the cold-hearted financial
repercussions are manifold, evidenced through the rising
prices of energy and the supply and price of a range of
other hard and soft commaodities which were mined,
refined or grown in abundance in Ukraine. The longer-
term impact of Russian aggression on cormmaodity prices
and global trade and energy flows are only now starting
10 be understoad.

It may therefore seem somewhat surprising that against
that back drop ' am able o report & year of healthy
performance for the Company. Our net asset value

total return was +21.4%, well ahead of the benchmark
return of +12.2%. The share price total return at +19.9%
was slightly behind the underlying asset growth, as the
discount between the share price and the NAV widened
just before the year end.

At the half year, | highlighted that cur Manager continued
1o focus on the most sustainable income and had further
tilted the portfolio towards index-linked income. This
continued to be the case in the second ha'f and helpad
drive relative performance. Real estate has good inflation
protecting attributes, not least that the vast majority

of aur income i, to varying degrees, explicitly linked to
national inflation indices. Inevitably, it is not just public
market investors who have realised the attraction of
steady real income growth. Private equity investment into
real estate continues 1o be elevated and there has been
much merger and acquisition activity which is detailed
later in the report. The consequences for the Company
are twofold. In the short term, we have made sizeable
gains from our stakes in those companies which have
heen taken private or merged. Secondly, investors have
responded, recognising that if listed property companies
share prices are left to dnft well below asset value then
the private market will swoop in. This remains a critical
and valuable undergin.

TR Property Investment Trust



Earnings for the vear were 13.69p per share, 12%
higher than the previous year (12.25p) but still almaost
6% behind pre COVID-19 levels,

As anticipated in the Half Year Report, earnings

for the second half were lower than in the previous
year. This was partly because of ane-off items in the
second half of the year to March 2021 which did not
recur and partly because ot the significant changes in
dividend timetables seen through the year but which
largely impacted the second half. Many companies
moved to more frequent and smaller distributions,
which reduced income in comparison to the prior year
due simply to timing. More details are set out in the
Manager's Report.

These factors mask a positive underlying trend and,
as described above, our Manager has focused the
portfolio on sources of sustainable income. The
Board is therefore pleased to announce an increase
inthe final dividend to 9.20p (2021: 9.00p) bringing
the full year dividend to 14.50p, an increase of just
over 2%, This will require a small contribution from
the Company's revenue reserve. We highlighted in the
last Annual Report that we expected that this would
be the case and that the Board was happy to employ
some of the revenue reserve, providing a return to
pre COVID-19 income levels could be expected in the
medium term.

Our Manager is feeling comfortable about the
Company's revenue outlock. Dividends announced
for the first quarter are showing increases on the prior
year. Many of our investee companies have medium
term debt arrangements secured when interest rates
were at historic lows and so will not immediately feel
the impact of higher interest rates. Further ahead,
this will become more of anissue if higher rates
persist. Our own income tax rate will also increase
for the 2022/23 financial year. As always, the Board
will keep an eye to the longer term, but having built
up the revenue reserve over many years, we feel itis
appropriate to maintain dividend levels where we can
easily do so provided a longer term fall in income is
not expectad. After the final dividend set out above,
the revenue reserve will be 11.37p per share.

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years {rebased)

. Benchmark Total Return
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Chairman's statement
continued

The opening gearing position was 16.5% and clesed
at 10 2%. It fluctuated over the year between these
levels as the gearing was actively managed. Our debt
pertfolic gives us considerable flexibility to increase
and decrease gearing levels quickly and this has
proved beneficial yet again.

Sterling has traded in a narrow range against
the Euro throughout the year and it closed only
fractionally stronger at the end of the year, so
currencies have not been a significant factor
in this year's resulis.

From the starting point of 6.1% the discount, for
the most part, gradually narrowed in the period up
to the beginning of 2022 and then traded at a smal!
premium through January. With the invasion of
Ukraine and a general worsening of sentiment, the
shares moved back to a discount, its widest a1 9.9%
and closing the vear at 7.4%. The discount average
for the year was 3.4%. This meant that the share
price return was slightly behind the NAV return.

No share buy-backs or issues were made during
the year.

The Company was the winner of in the Specialist
Equities category of the Citywire investment Trust
Awards for the second year running. It has also
been awarded ratings with a number of platforms
and publications and these are included in the
shareholder information section later in this report.

CITYWIRE

WINNER

INVESTMENT TRUST 2021

SPECIALIST EGJITIES

TR PROPERTY
INVESTMENT TRUST

The era of cheap money is coming to an end. inflation

is surging and central banks are reversing their balance
sheet expansion that has defined the period following

the Glabal Financial Crigis. Consequently, bond markets
are volatile and real (as opposed 1o nominal) yvieids

on duration debt are getting even more negative.

Infiation protected income is becoming harder to find

s0 index-linked property income should rermain attractive.
However, rising interest costs are clearly a headwind

for any leveraged asset class.

Our strategy remains the same, identifying asset classes
and sub-markets where demand outstrips supply and
where rents are capable of rising. Build cost inflation and
the regulatory/social pressure 1o build more sustainably
(higher upfront cost, but lower long-term maintenance
and running costs) has squeezed development marginis.
Our Manager expects a subdued development cycle in
many markets and a reduction in risk of oversupply must
be a positive in the medium term. We continue 10 seek
more exposure to asset classes where rebuild costs are
well above the current prescribed asset values. Equity
market volatility is providing us with some of these
opperiunities in the listed space and we hope to enlarge
our physica! property portfolic based on the same
investment thesis,

David Watson

TR Property Investment Trust



Manager's report

Although the economic
outlook remains unsettled,
property assets, particularly
where the income is index-
linked, should remain
relatively attractive despite
rising interesl cosls.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

The Net Asset Value total return for the year to the end of

March 2022 was +21.4%, ahead of the benchmark total
return of +12.2%.

The Spring and Sumrner of 2021 saw a benign backdrop
of continuing monetary pelicy largesse from central banks
coupled with an improving outiook for all economies and
this bode well for many parts of the real estate landscape,
Share prices acress our universe responded accordingly
and our NAV grew by 14% from April to August. Post

the summer holidays investors increasingly fretted over
the themes of a global slowdown {breakdown in supply
chains, COVID-19 impacted manufacturing capabilities

in Asia) coupled with rising wage and energy costs. All

of which heightened the risk of stagflation. Share price
volatility increased hugely and we experienced 20% swings
in the value of the benchmark between the beginning of
September and the end ¢of November. Such large swings in
sentiment reflected the changes in expectation of central
banks’ behaviour. In simple terms — would they turn
hawkish (and at what pace) to help control these renewed
infiationary pressures. The last phase of the financial year
{December to March) was marked by a steady decline in
real estate equity prices as the expectation of multiple rate
rises by the US Federal Reserve and the Bank of England
alongside more hawkish rhetoric from the European
Central Bark was priced in. The last month of the financial
year was, of course, overshadowed by the terrible events
in Ukraine immediately adding to energy and other raw
material inflation expectations.

What | have summarised here is the performance of
pan-European real estate equities over the 12 months to
the end of March rather than underlying property values.
Share prices are volatile and react quickly to macro

driven sentiment. Underlying real estate values tend to
adjust when the price of capital changes, as cpposed to
the expectation of future price changes. They are also
anchored much more locally being dependent on the
expectation of local rental growth or contraction. Spreads
have widened and debt costs are increasing but they remain
historically low and crucially, at the moment, debt is still
readily available. As | warned in last year's Annual Report,

if equity markets allow listed companies to trade on large
discounts to thelr implicit asset value then private vehicles
{who can operate with higher leverage and hence a lower
cost of capital) will take them private. This has been a

key theme this year and the Company's performance has
benefited from a number of transactions. Expectaticn of
capital growth amongst private owners (be it institutional
or retail investors) is much maore important to underlying
pricing than the gyrations of publicly listed share prices. it is
encouraging 1o see transaction volumes and private market
optimism normalise in many of our sub-markets and this is
examined in more detail later in the report.
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Manager's report
continued

The portfolio positioning had been heavily adjusted

in the immediate ‘post vaccine period (Q4 2020, Q1
2021) essentially closing the underweight to European
shopping centres and renewing exposure to office
markets with shorter commute times (i.e. a focus on

the smaller cities, not London and Paris). The year under
review saw that process extended, with the portfolio
further concentrating on capturing the impact of three
key trends. Firstly, those sectors likely to experience

the greatest rental growth in a recovering econgmic
environment such as logistics, industrial, self-storage
and prime office development continue to be heavily
represented in the portfolio. Secondly, security of income
is crucial. Private rented residential property continues
to enjoy virtually full occupancy, particularly in Germany
and Sweden where rents remain heavily regulated (and
at sub-market levels). The final theme was inflation
protection and seeking to own explicitly index-linked,
high guality income across a broad range of sectors. This
latter theme overlaps with the residential focus given the
highly defensive nature of the earnings.

All of these themes were drivers of rejative
cutperformance alongside the positive tmpact of
numerous merger and acquisition (M&A) situations
over the year {that activity wil! be detailed later in the
report). However, itis impertant to clarify that the listed
German residential names have - with cne exception -
performed relatively poorly this year. The sector saw the
largest piece of M&A activity with the cash takeover of
Deutsche Wohnen by Vonovia and this was extensively
reviewed in the Half Year Report. We have remained loyal
to our central view that Berlin residential property values
will continue to outperform the rest of Germany with a
continued supply/demand imbalance. Phoenix Spree
Deutschland (total return +18%) was the performance
outlier over the year and ensured that our German
residential portfolio contributed positively to our relative
outperformance of the benchmark.

The vast majority of office workers have now returned
to the office, at least part of the time. The longer term
conseguences of the dramatic increase in remote
warking since 2020 are still evalving. However, we are
increasingly confident of a number of key features which
either pre-existed or have emerged. The firstis all around
optionality. Most office workers to & greater or lesser
extent can work remotely. This optionality means that the
office environment must become more attractive and/or
meore efficient than the alternative for workers. This need
for a better quality workplace coincides with businesses
becoming increasingly focused on their environmental
footprint. At the same time government regulation
across the developad world is driving energy efficiency
improvemnents. The net result will be an increase in
dernand (and the rent achieved) for ‘green’ buildings, in

8

the right locations offering state of the art amenities.
There is already a clear polarisation in favour of CBD
(central business districts} over decentralised or
suburban markets. Central Paris saw take up of +49%
year on year, a drop inimmediate supply of 17% over
2020 with vacancy at 3% driving rents up, whilst the
Western Crescent and La Defense saw rents fall and
incentives ingrease. London experienced a very simiiar
picture with the West End, Midtown and the City seeing
Q4 2021 take up of 3.8m sq ft, a 7 year quarterly high.
The total take up for 2021 was 10m sq ft, 55% ahead of
2020. Docklands and other suburban markets did not
experience this level of improving statistics. Investors
remain bullish, Knight Frank (KF') repcrted a fourfold
increase in Q1, 2022 on the corresponding quarter of
2021 with £5.8bn of transactions (versus £1.2on).

Savills produced a detailed research note in March 2022,
predicting reductions in office space demand across all
European cities to varying degrees. We have sympathy
with the overall expectation but the crucial pointis the
other side of the equation. If this demand is very focused
on quality, where is that supply coming from? If we ook
at the UK's six regional markets (to avoid only discussing
London) we see all six cities as having less than two years’
supply. Cost inflation and the inability 1o tie down risk
pricing with contractors results in reduced speculative
construction which will exacerbate the problem.

KF's M25 report for Q4 2021 highlights technology, media
and telecom (TMT) and Life Science tenant demand but
generally subdued take up levels versus pre-pandemic
levels. Oxford and Cambridge continue to experience
strong rental growth but Reading, Uxbridge and St Albans
saw little, given greater supply of new buildings. The
traditional occupiers of these strong satellite towns are in
the throes of assessing their office needs. One would have
expected the investment market to also reflect this ‘pause
for thought but this has not been the case. According to KF,
South East office volumes reached £4bn in 2027, a record
for the region and 45% ahead of the long term average.
International buyers dorminated but they generally have a
longer investment horizon than local buyers. The build cost
inflation we are now seeing may well prove that buying high
quality existing assets was a very sensible strategy.

RERESE

Negative sentiment towards this sector had begun

to seften as the post pandemic retail environment
experienced the predicted recovery in saies and footfall.
Across Europe, consumers had rebuilt savings (or
reduced debt) over the last two years and the re-opening
statistics didn't disappoint the optimists. However,
locking forward the investment community is trying

to establish the likely sales volumes post this initial
re-opening surge. All the major firms of valuers are
reporting stability in vieids aver the last few quarters

TR Property Investment Trust



across both shopping centres and high strests for both
prime and secondary assets. This may well appear
cptimistic as it is based on low volumes but the number
of deals is increasing and we are confident of much
higher transaction volumes in 2022 than 2021.

The one area of real valuation reccvery has been retail
warehousing. The last year hag seen an extracrdinarily
competitive landscape in this sub-sector with yields
compressing over 1% al the prime end and even more
amongst secondary assets. What is understandable is
that where tenant demand/affordability has been proven
then investers are happy to own. As retailing evolves into a
seamless ‘clicks and bricks' omnichannel experience, retail
parks are a key part of the value chain for the retailers. If
the retailer can offer a fast and efficient ‘click and collect’
service which the customer is happy to use, then the sales
margins from selling online improve materially. It is the
‘last mile’ delivery which is so cost inefficient.

The outlook for large, regional shopping centres remains
uncertain. The vast majority are too big for their market in
an omnichannel world. Owners are seeking to demolish
part or repurpose to non-traditional uses, in many cases
trying to redefine themselves as a community hub as
opposed to just a covered retailing arena. The strategy
feels correct but the costs of conversion and the inability
of new users to pay anything like the previous rents

will lead to subdued returns. However, there has been
some price discovery with high profile examples such

as Hammerson's sale of Silverburn in Glasgow and a
wide range of smaller transactions across Europe from
Eurccommercial, Klepierre and Unibail providing evidence
that buyers believe that rents are stabilising.

HEIRE

Pncinsirs cans i

2021 was yet another record year in terms of take up, capital
value growth and, all importantly, further shrinkage in the
amount of vacancy. The UK market saw take up exceed 50
millicn sq ft and vacancy is now below 3% across the whole
range of ‘big box’ unit sizes. Like for like rental growth for
Segro's portfolic was in excess of 5% and this has driven
yields nationwide down 75-100 bps leading to huge capital
growth. Yet urban logistics has been even hotter, with
investors focused on the supply inelasticity of infill markets.
Greater London prime industrial transactional evidence
now reguiarly sees equivalent yields (i.e. based off market
rents which are higher than passing rents) of iess than 3%.
This price infiation has been fuelled by evidence of another
vear of rental growth exceeding 10%. Segro reported rental
growth averaging 13.1% in its UK portfolic during 2021.
Savills estimate that inner London rents have moved 25% in
the last year alone.

UK industrial transaction volumes reached £16.7bn in
2027, 113% growth on 2020 and 152% growth on the five

year average. Given such an acceleration we must closely

Annyal Report & Accounts 2022

watch the fundamentals, there may well be capital seeking
deployment without due consideration. However, for now,
the demand/supply imbalance at the cccupier level is driving
rental growth. The entire UK industrial market recorded a
drop in available space to 18 1millicn sqg ft, a contraction of
one third over the year. No wonder rents are rising.

On the Continent, we have alsc seen market rental growth
outstrip annual indexation. This is set to continue even with
the printing of record high annualised inflation of 5.1%.
Segro are the only fully pan-European listed player and they
reported 4.1% like for like rental growth across Continental
Europe for 2021. We remain confident that in many key
markets this level of growth will be exceeded in 2022. Across
Continental Europe, online sales penetration now averages
15-18%, still a long way behind the UK at ¢.28%. Shortening
supply chains and reshoring has driven demand in cheaper
markets such as Poland. Savills European Logistics Survey
2021 showed that 46% of all cceupiers canvassed expected
to increase their warehouse requirements over the next year.

Availability continues 10 shrink, with vacancy down from
5.1% 1o 3.5%, with record low levels in Dublin (1.1%), the
Netherlands (3.3%), Czech Republic (1.7%) and take up
levels well zhead of decade averages with Madrid (+9%),
Peland (+13%) and the Netherlands {(+10%). For the best
space, rents are responding very rapidly and we expect
average rental growth to exceed 5% across the Continent.
However, in early May this year (post the year end)
Armazon announced a dramatic pause in its expansion
programme. Whilst we believe that these comments
were focused on their domestic US market, it has caused
reverberations across all logistics/ecommerce real estate
markets. Major owners and developers such as Segro and
Tritax point to full orderbocks and strong transactional
evidence, forward lcoking equity markets took fright.
Share prices of these two names are down 22% and 17%
respectively, calendar year to date.

At el

This sector remains a strong store of value. Inthe
short-term capital values should be impacted by rising
interest rate expectations, For PRS {private rental sector)
this uneertainty (along with the broader gec-political
backdrop) has probably encouraged would be buyers to
remain renters inthe near term. Occupancy rates remain
at record levels across both open-market rental markets
(UK, Finland) and regulated rental markets {Gerrnany and
Sweden). In the latter group of companies, we expect
below market rents to assist in maintaining affordability
even as energy costs rise and consumption is squeezed.
Rent is not a bill which can be reduced particularly when
it is befow market. We are not predicting greater vacancy
(the structural issues of demand/supply disequilibrium
are still there) but we are mindful of the potential for
slower rental growth.
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Managet’'s report
continued

This cost of energy crisis will accelerate the need to
improve the energy efficiency of all residential stock. This
is particularly an issue in Germany where so much of the
nousing stock owned by the listed companies requires
upgrading, coupled with the need to find alternatives

to Russian gas (the major domestic energy source).

The cost of these improvements will ultimately be spiit
between the state, the landlord and the tenant. The
outstanding question is in what proportions. There is
certainly no ‘one size fits alt’ solution but if the bulk of this
energy efficiency expenditure is subsidised by the state
and the landlord can, in addition, gain a return on their
share of the investment via higher rents (and reduced
energy bills), this doesn't have to be a bear investment
case for this sector.

Although these potential headwinds are well flagged,
underlying house (and apartment) prices continue to rise
driven by affordability. Mortgage rates, whilst rising, are
still very low by historical standards and wage inflation is
feeding through, which drives affordability. Major cities
such as Berlin and Stockholm where there is very little
new supply continue to see values rising at ¢.1% per
month. According to JLL, there was an 11.6% year on
year increase in Berlin condominium prices.

L

The record occupancy increases and rate growth in self
storage recorded through the pandemic will undoubtably
slow. However, we are confident that growth will continue,
fuelled by the structural drivers of commercial usage (last
mile, business to consumer, supply chain resilience) and
increasing awareness of the product from residential
customers. The Self Storage Association UK reporied further
occupancy growth across all its members. Thisremains a
highly fragmented sector with over 1,900 separate sites and
only 30% are operated by ‘large operators {defined as those
with 10 or more stores). The marketing advantage for the
largest operators (ihe listed companies) is very valuable,
ensuring that almost all potential customers searching via
the internet (the vast majority) will see an offer from one or
more of the largest operators.

Healthcare property had a tougher year. Those focused

on primary healthcare have the benefit of rental underpin
(directly or indirectly) from the state however, inthe case of
the UK, rental growth risks being at sub-inflation levels due to
its deferred reference point {historic build cost). In Continental
Europe, the exposure of poor care and financial irregularities
at Orpea, alarge listed nursing home operator has highlighted
{amongst many things) the meagre margins which these
businesses are run off. A state investigation is underway

by the French authorities and we maintain very minimal
exposure to this underlying operator. The vast majority of

our Continental Eurcpean healthcare exposure is in the
Netherlands and Belgium rather than France.

Purpose built student accommodation (PBSA) has fared
better as students clearly want the campus experience
and value for money. The structural fundamentals remain
sound underpinned by the combination of the growing
numbers of students (post the recent demographic

dip) coupled with the desire to live in better quality
accommeodation than previous student generations.
According to UCAS, 30% of first year students live in
PBSA and this has increased from 22% five years ago.
An encouraging growth rate. Another 40% start their
university life in halls of residence but that percentage
has remained static over the same period, reflecting

the lack of capacity or capability for universities to

add to their own residential real estate pertfolios.
Cushman Wakefield have identified 687,000 student
accommeodation beds across the UK with a net increase
of just 21,000 over 2020/271. Q1 2022 data has also
revealed a marked slowdown in planning applications
for new PBSA units. Importantly, quality is a key priority
with prices up by 17% since 2015/20 for those with en
suite bathrooms.

We continue to hold Unite (UK) and Xior (Belgium, Spain) and
note the recent takeover of American Campus Cornmunities,
an $8bn market cap US student accommodation REIT by
Blackstone. Yet ancther privatisation.

Debt markets continued to be suppartive for real estate
companies throughout the year under review, with central
banks continuing to provide support through quantitative
easing and bond purchases as well ag maintaining very
low rates. The start of 2022 brought a change in investor
attitude with a marked shift in expectation of more
hawkish behaviour from central banks, led by the US
Federal Reserve. Reviewing listed European real esiate
debtissuance, we may well loak back on the €20.9bn
raised in 2021 (alongside the €23bn in 2017) as record
vears unlikely 1o be seen again as the cycle of rising rates
evolves during 2022 and beyond. German residentizal
businesses were again busy customers of the bond
market with Vonovia's cheapest deal raising €1,250m at
0.25% for a 7 year bond, whilst they also ratsed 30 year
money (€750m) at 1 625%. LEG, their smaller competitor,
managed 0.875% for 12 years raising €500m.

Equity markets were also very busy with the ‘deal sheet’
highhght being the record breaking €8bn rights issue by
Vonovia, required to fund the acquisition of Deutsche
Wohnen, Logistics businesses were once again avid
raisers of capital, given their premium rated paper. Tritax
Bigbox raised £350m, Eurobox £215m, VGP €300m and
Aherdeen European Logistics £45m. Elsewhere equity
raisings were focused an stocks with strong underlying
income with LXI raising twice in the year (totalling
£225m) alongside fellow index linked income play
Supermarket Incorme Reit raising £200m. The latter name

TR Property Investment Trust



has already come back to the market shortly after the
year end. Healthcare falls into this secure income camp
with the UK's Target Healthcare (£125m) and Assura
{£182m) seizing the moment alongside Belgium listed
Aedifica (€285m).

Whilst considerable primary issuance added to the size
of the listed real estate sector, this capital inflow was
dwarfed by the record breaking amount of M&A activity
which in the rajority of cases led Lo privatisation and
shrinkage in the sector's market capitalisation.

R N MR o [ T N

Turnover (purchases and sales divided by two) totalled
£549m equating 1o 36% of the average net assets over
the year. This is, coincidentally, the same as fast year's
equivalent figure (36%) which itself was slightly ahead
of the year to March 2020 (32%). It has therefore now
been three years of elevated portfolic rotation due to

a combination of market volatility, sector rotation and,
importantly, M&A activity.

Last year, this section of the report highlighted several
moves by private equity {PE) into the listed space with PE
firms such as Brookfield buying into British L.and and KKR
into Great Portland Estates (now called GPE). Starwood
had taken RDI {market cap £325m) private in February
2021and this turned out to be a precursor to the elevated
levels of activity seen thereafter.

In June, Blackstone was required to increase its initial bid
for St Modwen Properties, paying a 21% premium to the
net asset value of 463p. Once again, private equity was
able to look beyond the immediate development pipeline
and value the high guality land bank more aggressively
than public markets. In the sare month, ABG (alongside
Blackstone again) anncunced the acquisition of GCP
Student Living {(market cap £960m). Blackstone and
ABG were also co-investors in several UK and Furopean
student funds.

Brookfigld, another giant private equity firm struck three
times in the year. Firstly, in November in Germany, they
acquired 91% of Alstria (market cap €£3bn), the only pure
German only office investor. In Belgium in February this
year, they announced an agreed bid for Befimmo, an
unloved owner of primarily Brussels offices. As if that
was not enough, just before ocur year end they announced
the agreed take private of Hibernia, Dublin's only listed
office developer In each of these deals, Brookfield pzaid
substantial premiums {(+20%) to the undisturbed share
price but still acquired at close to or even below net asset
value. Offices rermain out of favour with stock market
investors and therefore these businesses were — in the
eyes of private equity ~ undervalued in the public domain.
The Company held both Alstria and Hibernia. In the case
of the tatter, our helding was 4% of the issued capital. The

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

transaction is bittersweet: whilst we saw a significant
valuation gaih we have lost a well managed company
with strong technical expertise in developing prime cffice
space. Not easy to replace.

Corporate activity between listed companies was also
rmuch in evidence. In November, Landsec acquired U+l
(oreviously called Development Securities) for £170m, at
an eyewatering 70% premium to the undisturbed share
price. I'his small urban regeneration stock's performance
had been lacklustre as investars worried about its balance
sheet and inability to fund its long dated development
pipeline. For Landsec, this was a precursor to announcing
a strategic initiative in regional regeneraticn with the
acquisition of 75% of MediaCity in Manchester (£426m).

CTR the newly listed Eastern European logistics developer
agreed to buy Deutsche Industrie, a small listed German
property company owning secondary industrial assets
and development fand across Germany. Whilst the
acquisition currency was shares in CTP the price reflected
a 48% premium to the undisturbed price. At the time we
felt this transaction was a positive read across 1o our
other German holdings, Sirius and VIB Vermoegen. A
couple of months later, DIC, alisted manager of property
funds, surprised the market with a partial tender for 51%
of VIB Vermoegen at €57 per share. This well run Bavarian
logistics owner /developeris listed on a local exchange
and not the main market. DIC were therefore able to
acquire over 10% before announcing their intentions and
they quickly reached 25% of the share capital (ahead of
the tender). At this point | chose to sell our holding (3% of
the Company's net assets) at a block premium of €54 per
share. I was fearful that BIC's control would result in the
loss of the highly regarded management team and this
has come to pass with CEO and CFO departing. However,
we have been handsomely rewarded through the
corporate activity. The share price at the beginning of the
financial year was just under €30 per share This company
has been a key component of our logistics exposure over
more than a decade and warranted more examination,
hence the attached case study.

in Sweden, SBB the highly acquisitive social infrastructure
company, announced control of a small residential
business, Amasten. We had recently completed our own
research on this business and we had begun to build a
holding. The bid price was a 20% premium to where

we were huying shares a month earlier.

Finally, in March we saw the final act in the McKay
Securities saga. Longstanding shareholders will have

been aware of our view that this well run owner of South
Fast office and industrial property was being materially
undervalued by the equity market. Essentially the company
was too small and the shares too illiguid for today's stock
rmarket. This company is absalutely not alone in this
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Manager's report
continued

regard, there are many companies which are just oo
small and need to join forces with feliow minnows.
The key with this business was the high quality of the
portfolio. We were pleased to read that Rothschild
had undertaken a competitive sales process which
culminated in an agreed bid fromm Werkspace, a listed
owner of flexible office space in London. Owning 9%
of the issued capital we were invited to provide an
irrevocable undertaking (subject to no higher offer)
which we provided. The bid was two thirds cash
(209p) and one third shares and reflected a premium
of 30% to the undisturbad price. We will open

a holding in Workspace in May on completion

of the transaction.

The physical property portfoiio produced a tota!
return for the 12 months of 18.1% made up of a
capital return of 15.4% and an income return of 2.7%.
This can be compared to the return from the MSCI
All Property Index which produced a total return of
23.9% made up of a capital return of 18.0% and an
income return of 5.0%.

The core driver of returns was rental growth at

the two industrial properties in Wandsworth and
Gloucester. At Gloucester, we let the largest unit at
a new headline rent on the estate following a short
marketing period to an online health food business.
This will allow us to move rents forward with other
lease events on the estate scheduled for 2022 and
2073, In Wandsworth we completed a number of
new lettings including a letting to the online leisure
fashion brand Sweaty Betty. They plan to use the
premises as a photographic studio for their online
offering. We are delighted to add them to the tenant
line-up and this not only reflects the diversity of
tenants on the estate but also exemplifies the
versatility of uses in a standard steel portal
industrial building.

At the Cclonnades our restaurant cperator, Happy
Lamb Hot Pot, completed their fit out and cpened for
trading as soon as COVID-19 restrictions were lifted
in May 2021, They have become a successful and
vibrant addition to the local area. We are currently
exploring opportunities to sell this asset.

12

Revenue earnings for the current year have increased by
almost 12% over the prior year.

The increase in earnings was attributable to the first half.
At the half year stage we announced earnings some 34%
ahead of the prior year. It was flagged at the time that
this increase would not be repeated in the second half.

The comparison of the first half (April to Septermber
2021) was being made against April to September

2020, which had suffered an extreme fall in income. As

a reaction to the COVID-19 pandemic many companies
suspended dividends and, in some cases even cancelling
ones which had already been announced. Distributions
were very cautious against such an uncertain backdrop.
In the current year, the vaccination programme was well
underway and confidence began to return in the first half.

Comparing second half earnings year to year in isolation,
they fell by around 27%, although this is not a fair
comparison. Just before March 2021 we finally received
atax refund as a resuit of along running reclaim. This
enhanced the earnings for the year to March 2021 so
amore realistic comparison of the second haif of the
year shows a fall of around 12% rather than the 27%
highlighted above. The explanation for this 12% fall

is explained largely by the fact that many companies
changed their dividend schedules, not only intiming but
also the frequency, annual payers moved to paying half
yearly, half-yearly to quarterly etc. so the amounts being
paid in each distribution were proportionately lower. The
new payment schedules will have been established for
the forthcoming year so we don't expect this to have an
ongeing impact.

The overall trend for earnings is positive, the majority of
companies have resumed distributions although there
are some exceptions, mainly in the retail sector where we
are significantly underweight.

Whilst the year to 31 March 2022 earnings result is still
some 6% behind pre COVID-16 levels, we do expect
some further recavery in the year to March 2023, There
are some new clouds on the herizon though, the era

of cheap money is over, inflation i reaching ievels not
seen for many years and a cost of living crisis looms
for a number of well documented reasons. However,
many of our companies secured debt at historically
low levels and will enjoy the benefit of this for a while.
Changing market ocutlook and sentiment js likely 1o lead
to lower gearing levels from time to time and that in turn
reduces income levels

TR Property investment Trust



As previously documented, providing the Board 1s
comfortable with longer term income prospects, it s
prepared to supplement distributions from the revenue
reserve to cover sherter term fluctuations.

Gearing and Debt

The Chairman has already commented on gearing
lavels and highlighted the bensfits of our flaxible
borrowing structure.

This flexibility has been crucial in such a volatile

year. Qur gearing oscillated ina 10 - 16% range as

we responded to the dramatic changes in market
sentiment through the year. Over the year we utilised
both our revelving loan facilities and cur CFD capability
in addition to our longer-term debt. Althcugh the
shorter-term debt is linked to market rates and therefore
the cost will increase, the flexibility this affords in
adjusting gearing levels is more of an advantage than
the lower cost of fixed term debt. We aim to achieve a
balance between pricing and flexibility which is why our
debt is sourced from a number of providers.

Outlook

As recently as this January, central bankers across

the world were indicating that they believed that
inflationary pressures were transitory. The rise in
energy costs seenin Q4, 2021 were then supercharged
by events in Ukraine in February and March. Supply
chain disruption, particularly around Chinese
shutdowns and post COVID-19 workforce shortages,
have compounded these pressures. The result has
been a period of sustained inflation, Euroland CPI
reached 7.5% in April, its sixth consecutive new
monthly high. The UK’s March figure was 7% We now
expect these elevated figures to continue into 2023 and
for the central banks to be forced to react quickly with
interest rate rises. The unanswered guestion is whether
raising mortgage costs, which will cool consumer
demand and house price growth, will do much to
assist in reducing the supply driven pressures. Build
costinflation is equally strong and we expect much
potential development to be mothballed as the required
return on capitat employed evaporates. However,

this drop in potential supply will form an underpin for
rental growth where demand is stable or growing.

Qur strategy remains twin-tracked. We will continue

to own long and strong income which offers genuine
index-linked income whilst simultansously maintairing
exposure to markets where we see tenant demand
remaining robust even in the face of an econamic
slowdown. Renewed focus on balance sheet strength,
debt structures and flexibility will help us ensure that
we steer the Company carefully through the terrain of
rising rates.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Writing this outlook in the middie of May, pan-European
real estate equities have already collectively corrected
14% from the start of the new financial year (1st April).
This fall is greater than the FTSE 100, 250 or the
EuroStoxx 600. The most leveraged businesses have,
predictably, been hit hardest bhut previously highly rated
businesses with strong growth prospects have also
been hit hard and we expect 1o find value amongst those
with the most secure balance sheets. Much of our world
offers sclid earnings from real asseats; buildings which
are often crucial to a company’s operation or a basic
necessity for domestic users.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager
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Manager’s report
continued

VIB Vermogen AG

We began investing in this Bavarian based property
company in 2011 when the share price was £8.50 per
share {market cap of £235m). The founder and CEQC
{unti! 2078} initially focused on a tight geographica!
_area around the company's hometown of Ingolstadt.
We were attracted to the deep local knowiedge and
excellent links to local banks enabling the company
to secure high quality secured lending. Over the next
decade, the business expanded to a portfolio of £1.4bn
focused on logistics/light industrial (70%) alongside
some roadside retail {mostly garden centres). The
value delivery came primarily from the very astute
purchases of [and and industrial assets requiring
refurbishment in the heartland of the booming
automotive industries of Southern Germany. The
company always maintained a conservative balance
sheet and whilst dividends grew consistently the
pay-out ratio never exceeded 50% enabling crganic
reinvestment into the development pipeline.

Share Price 2011 10 2022

B e
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Qur holding grew consistently over the next decade (we
only sold shares modestly on 8 separate occasions) and
by the end of 2021 it had reached over 1.5m shares with
avalue of £€74m. By this time the market cap exceeded
€1.2bn and the longstanding management team
continued to deliver year on year.

In February 2022 DIC Asset AG, alisted property asset
manager announced that they had acquired 10% of the
issued capital and intended to make a partial tender

for up to 50% at £51.5 per share. We did not want to

find ourselves owning equity in a business which was
controlled by a third party. At the same time, DIC were
happy o buy ahead of the tender date and we extracted
an exit price of €54 per share. This turmned out to be the
highest price at which the stock traded inits corporate
history. Whilst we were disappointed to lose such & well-
managed and successful business, the returns generated
over a long period of time warranted closer examination.

Over the 11 years of ownership, the return from this
investrment had been an astonishing 984% or a compound
return of 26.6% per annum (assuming dividends reinvested).

3y —

0 ——
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Portfolio

0.50/0
asat 31 March
2021 2021
~ £'oo0 %
UK Securities’
- quoted 518,417 33.2 305,644 28.3
UK Investment Properties 96,255 6.1 83,071 59
UK Tota! 614,672 39.3 478,715 34.2
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 940,744 60.2 921,801 65.8
Investments held at fair value 1,555,416 99.5 1,400,516 100.6
- CFD {creditor)/debtor? 7,657 0.5 (1413 -
Total Investment Positions 1,563,073 100.0 1,400,375 160.0 B UK Securities
UK Property
R R m Continental Europe
as at 31 March Securities
2021 2021 X CFD Debtors
o £000 %
UK Securities
- quoted 518,417 305 395,644 256
- CFD exposure? 57,324 3.4 45,447 29
UK Investment Properties 96,255 5.7 83,071 55
UK Total 671,996 39.6 524,156 340
Continental Europe Securities
-quoted 940,744 55.3 921,807 59.5
- CFD expcsure® 87,318 5.1 100,560 6.5
Total investment exposure* 1,700,058 100.0 1,546,517 160.0
RN R -
‘ Securities
as at 31 March " UK Property
2021 2020 2019 2018
Total investments £1,5855m £140Tm  £1,155m  £1,29Tm £1,316m
Net assets £€1,563m £1326m  £1,136m £1,328m £1,256m
UK quoted property shares 33% 28% 3% 33% 3%
Overseas quoted property shares 60% 66% 61% 59% 62%
Direct property {externally valued) 6% 6% 8% 8% 7%
]1g11‘{!|( Py et
as at 31 March
2022 2021 2021
Benchmark Company Benchmark
% ) % %
GBP 339 336 278 283
EUR 419 423 5.2 50.9
CHF 7.4 7.1 6.7 6.6
SEK 16.3 16.3 12.9 12.9
NOK 0.5 04 1.3 1.3

1 UK securities includes one unlisted halding (0.01%)

2 Netunrealised (loss)/gain on CFD contracts held as batance sheet (creditor)/debtor

3 Gross value of CFD positions

¢ Total investments lllustrating market exposure including the gress value of CFD and TRS positions.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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Investment portfolio by country

Market Market
value value
% \ %
Austria ’ ) o ' Sweden -
CA Immobilien 7,008 04 Fastighets Balder B 42,934 2.7
_"7 ) T~ 7,08 04 castellum 25,690 16
- " gibus Nordic Real Estate 23,553 1.5
Belgium Samhallsbyggnadsbolaget 23,424 1.5
Warehouses De Pau 28,661 1.8 Fabege 20,824 1.3
VGP 28,569 1.8 Wihlborgs 14,533 0.9
Cofinimmo 18,609 1.2 Sagax 11,870 0.8
Aedifica 11,976 0.8 Catena 9,279 0.6
Xior Student Housing 9,233 0.6 Platzer Fastigheter 3,723 02
Care Property Invest 7,106 5 Dios Fastigheter 2,818 0.2
Montea 3,134 0.2 Kiarabo Sverige 1,713 0.
Intervest Offices & Warehouses 2,604 02 Atriurn Liungberg 1,094 A
o 9892 7% 181455 115
Finland Switzerland
Kojamo B 14783 0s Psp Swiss Property 44,260 28
T T TMa7ss 05 SwissPrimeSte 27375 18
- ) - 71835 16
France T ‘ o
Argan 79,107 51 United Kingdom
Gecina 23,214 1.5 Segro 77,334 49
Klepierre 21,712 14 Safestore Holdings 54,228 35
Covivio 13,193 0.8 Industnials REIT 49,862 32
Carmila 7,097 Cs5 Phoenix Spree Deutschland 43,129 29
Altarea - 1,606 0.1 Derwent London 38,242 2.4
o - 145929 94 Picton Property Income 35,864 2.3
o © LandSec 35,662 2.3
Germany Londornmetric Property 31,524 20
Vonovia 149,893 96 McKay Securities 22,343 1.4
LEG Immobilien 55,529 36 Ediston Property 22,097 1.4
Aroundtown 32,740 2.1 Secure Income REIT 19,574 1.3
TAG Immobilien 19,557 13 Unite Group 18,368 7.2
Adler Group 5,394 0.3 Sirius Real Estate 17,854 1.1
Deutsche Euroshop 4,934 0.3 Supermarket Income REIT 13,125 08
268,047 372 CLSHoldings 9,897 0.6
Tritax Big Box REIT 9,365 0.6
ireland LXIREIT 5321 a3
Irish Residential Properties 1,981 0.1 Target Health Care 5310 03
7_7_; o o 198 A Primary Health Properties 3,850 03
N i ' ' i 7 AwateCap 2,341 0.1
Netherlands Helical 1,928 0.1
Eurocommercial Properties 43,104 28 Cap &Regional 1,169 o1
Unibail Rodameo Westfield 14,349 0o - 518417 331
NS i  a7se3 03 ’ o
- T T 62,236 40 ODirectProperty ) 96,255 6.2
Norway CFD Positions (included
Entra 6,898 0.4 in current liabifities) 7.657 05
o 6,898 04
T Total Investment Positions 1,563,073 100.0
Spai" Carmpanigs shawn by country of listing
Merlin Prcperties 47,799 31
Arima Real Estate 23,081 1.5
) 70,880 46
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Twelve largest equity investments

VONOVIA

WARGAN

SEGRO

31 March 2021 31 March 201 31 March 2021
Shareholding éﬁa_fehold;ng Shareholding

value £149.9m £146.0m value £79.5m  £54.0m | value £77.3m  £67.8m
% of investment % of investment % of investment

porifolio” _ B.B% 9.4% . portfolio! 4.7% 3.5% portfolio” 4.5% 4.4%
% of equity % of eguity % of equity

owned 0.5% 0.5% owned 3.6% 3.5% owned 0.5% 0 6%
Share price €42.31 €5570 Share price €115.6 €804 Share price 1346.0p  938.0p
Vonovia (Germany) Argan (France) Segro (UK)

Vonovia is a German listed residential
company and the largest real estate
company in Continental Europe by market
capitalisation. At the end of 2021, the
company owned a portfolio of £98bn split
between Germany (90%), Sweden (8%)
and Austria (2%); the portfolio Increased
by ¢ 28% fallowing the acquisition of peer
Deutsche Waohnen, which completedin
October 2021, Vonovia has developed a
large in-house craftsman organization
which allows the company torun a
strategy focusing on modernizing its
portfclio. The company is involved in the
whale value chain of the residential sector
viaits remal business (79% of group
EBITDA), its value-add branch (energy and
multimedia relzted services, 7%), its third-
party development business (6%) and its
recurring szles program (8%). Vonovia's
management has been particularly pro-
active with public authorities, complying
with regulations and assuming a social
role which should allow them to benefit
from critical political goodwill in the future
given the strict regulatory environment

of the German residential sectar In

2021, Vonovia delivered strong results in
absolute and relative terms. The company
delivered EPRA NTA growth of +14% Yoy
ona per share basis, and like for like rental
growth at was resilient at +3.2%. The five-
year total shareholder return to 31/03/22
has been +59%,

1 Notes:

Arganis a French company, created in
2000 by Jean-Claude Le Lan, which hag
been listed since 2007. The objective

of the company has beentcobuild a
portfolio of premium logistic assets which
guarantee a stable and high occupancy
rate at around 100%. The company is
vertically integrated and has full control

of the entire value chain by identifying
future needs of prospective and current
tenants and developing assets on their
behalf. Therefore, Argan is able to capture
the developer margin while having little

to no risk on the letting side. In 2021, the
portfolic value amcunted to €4bn {100%
exposed to France, with 33% expesed to
the Greater Paris region). The company
delivered strong 2021 results with an
EPRA NRV per share up 40% YoY achieved
with a relatively conservative LTV of 43%.
The relatively low dividend payout at
below 50% of distributable profit allows
the company to retain cash and reinvestin
new development projects while repaying
debts The management of the company
has been assumed by its founder Jean-
Claude Le Lan who owns alongside family
rmembers 40% of the share capital which
15 a strong guarantee of alignment. The
frve-year total shareholder returnhas
been +353%.

Segro has become the largest UK REIT by
market cap, and is the largest operator of
logistics and industrial property hsted in
the UK, with a total portfolio of £18bn (split
66% inthe UK, 34% in Continental Europe,
with 67% urban warehouses, 29% big
boxes and 4% other uses). Inthe UK, the
group is mainly exposed te Greater Londen
industrial and logistics. Rental growth

in these markets has been extrermely
strong as there remains an acute supply-
demandimbalance, fuelled by tenants’
requirernents to deal with the growth in
e-commerce. In Europe, Germany and
Frarice are the group’s largest markets
with Italy third; these markets have a
lower, but still pesitive, rental growth
outlook (and are geographically less
space-constrained) but like the UK have
seen yield compression as investors have
paid keener yields for access to strong
income. Segro has extensive development
exposure that it manages largely to pre-
let and develop at yields significantly in
excess of investment values (c.6-7% yield
an cost vs an EPRA netinitial yield of
3.0% at FY21). This has been a successful
formula to drive both earnings and NAV
growth, as well as high shareholder
returns. The five-year total shareholder
return has been +236%

> The percentage of investment portfolio positions set out above include exposures through CFD for both the individual posttions and the portfalio

> The Invastment Portfolio by Country positions set out on page 16 are the physical holdings only inchuded in the investrments held at fair value in the Balance Sheet.
The profit or loss positions on the CFD contracts (1.e. not the investment exposure) are alsc shown on page 16 and are included in the Balance Sheet as debtors or

creditors in the Current agsets.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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Twelve largest equity investments
continued

=<
5

KLEPIERRE
2021

31 March

Shareholding

value ~ £61.5m  £51.3m
% of investment

portfolio” _ 3.6%  33%
% of equity

owned 1.0% 1.0%
Share price €24.18 €19.89

Klepierre (France)

Klepierre is a European shopping centre
operator, managing around 140 centres
with & total portfolio valuation of EUR2 1bn.
The main exposures are in France/Belgium
(40% of tatal), taly (19%), Scandinavia
(15%) and |beria (10%). The company,

ke ali shopping centre owners, has been
impacted by the COVID crisis and ongoing
shiftiowards e-commerce as a growing
retail channel, which have hurt underlying
operations. Howaver in 2021 the company
was able to post EPS growth of +4.9%

Yoy, with EPRA NTA broadty flat Yo On

a refative basis, the cornpany benefits
from its focus on Continental Eurepe
where shopping ¢entres are anchored by
food retailers contrary to most UK or US
centers anchored by department stores,
which have been undergoing significant
challenges. The financial position of the
company is also more solid than some

of its direct peers with an LTV of 39% and
anet deblto EBITDA ratio of 8.8x. The
bioard benefits from the experience of
David Simon (Chairman of the Supervisory
Board}, Chairman and CEQ of Simon
Property Group which owns a 22% stake
in Kleplerre The five-year total shareholder
return has been -7%.

1 Notes:

|
f
|
|
|
|
|
|

31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Shareholding © | Shareholding T
value £60.4m  £440m | value £55.5m  £63.9m
% of investment % of investment

portfolio” 3.6% 28% partfolio” 83% 4%
% of equity % of equity

awned 2.1% 2.6% owned 0.9% 0.9%
Share price 1340p 796p Share price €103.25 €112.2
Safestore (UK) LEG (Germany)

Safestore is the UK's largest self-storage
operator, owning ¢ 160 stores, primarily
in the UK (and weighted towards London
and the South East with ¢.44% of total
group stores). In addition the company
has alarge footprint in the Paris market
and has recently been expanding into
new European cities (through both JV
structures and outright ownership) taking
footholds in Halland, Spain and Belgium
Safestore has a best in ¢class operating
platform which, along with peer Big
Yellow, allows it to dominate the UK
storage market, particularly in terms

of onfine search.

The company has driven consistent
earnings growth both organically (through
like-for-like occupancy and rate growth,
opening new developrmentis) and through
acquisitions The self- storage market also
proved rernarkably resilient during the
COVID-19 pandemic. The five-year total
shiareholder return has been +301%.

LEG is a German residential company
focused on the economically strong region
of North Rhine-Westphalia Itis one of the
largest real estate companies in Germany
with more than 166,000 units under
management and a combined value of
€19bn in addition to the strong focus on
NRW, the company looks for opportunities
on Band Clocations in adjacent states
with the view to leverage their market
access as well as their existing platfarm
still within strict and conservative financial
criteria, The company has a distinct
advantage to be less exposed to regulatory
risk than peers with a Berlin exposure and
to benefit from a relatively high share of
state subsidised tenants. The very low
average rent per sgm at EURG. T as well

as the relatively low value per sgm of
EUR1,706 make the company particularly
well suited to weather any potential macro-
economic shock. In addition, the company
has shown over the years a relatively
conservative rmanagement on the
liabiities side which continued to be the
casein 2021 witha LTV of 43%, an average
debt maturity of 7.5 years and a net debt
toadjusted EBITDA of 12 6x.1n 20217, LEG
delivered EPRA NTA growth of +19% YoV,
The five-year total sharenolder return nas
been+57%.

> The percentage of investment portfalic positions set out above include exposures through CFD for boih the individual positions and the portfolio

> Thelnvestment Portfolio by Country positions set aut on page 16 are the physical holdings only included it the investments held at fair value in the Balance Shset
The profit or loss positions on the CFD contracts (Le not the investment exposure) are also shown on page 16 and are included in the Balance Sheet as debtors or

creditors inthe Current assets,
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: : - PHOENIX [
industrials Ny :
+7” SPREE MERLIN
31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Sharehclding o Shareholding Shareholding -
value £53.3m - value ~ £51.9m  £328m value £47.8m £19.9m
% of investment % of investment % of investment
portfolio® 3.1% - portfolio” 31% 2.1% portfoliot 2.8% 1.3%
% of equity % of equity % of equity
owned 9.2% - owned 14.7% 10.4% owned 1.1% 0.6%
Share price 198p Share price 382p 330p Share price £10.59 €8.72
Industrials Reit (UK) Phoenix Spree (UK) Merlin Properties (Spain)

Industrials REIT (formerly known as
Stenprop) is a UK focused mu'tti-let
industrial business. The portfolio has
been transformed over a number of

years ta focus solely onthe UK MLI
sector, and the £570m portfoliois now
€.90% MLI (as at September 2021), and
moving towards 100% in the near term.
The UK MLt asset class has seen strong
capital value growth, driven by both yield
compression and ongoing ERV growth
(to March 2022 Industrials REIT has seen
like-for-like ERV growth of +4.3%), with
rents coming from a low base (average
passing rent in the portfolio was £5 72

at March 2022) In addition to its strong
underlying property fundamentals the
company's Hive operating platform gives
the company access to data on enquiry
levels and demand, as well as allowing for
innovative operational approaches such as
the use of digital short-form smart |eases,
speeding the letting process and reducing
any negative drag from portfolio vacancy.
Total shareholder return since PG in June
2018 has been +98%

T Notes:

Phoenix Spree is a UK histed company
with assets in Germany, specifically Berlin
residential assets The total valuation

of the company's property assets was
€802m at FY21, and the company
continues to benefit from the cngoing
supply demand imbalance in Berlin
residential, which has led 1o a housing
shortage. The Mietendeckel (German
rent restriction regutation) was repealed
in 2021, improving the outlcok for free
market rental growth as well as increasing
prices of condominiums, both of which
placed Phoenix Spree ina good position.
In 2021 the company achieved a total
return {EPRA NTA growth + dividends) of
8%, which was aided by the [Ike-for-like
annual valuation uphft of 6.3%. In addition
to strong property fundamentals the
company initiated a share buyback in
2021 at an average discount to 2020 year
end NAV of 17.8%), using the strategy 10
improve both its earnings and NAY metrics
onaper share bhasis. The five-year total
sharehclder return has been +80%.

Merlin is a Spanish diversified REIT with

a €£13bnportfolio The majority of the
company’s assets are offices (49%),

and the company focusses its exposure
on major cities, primarily Madrid and
Barcelona. In addition to the office
portfolic the company owns shopping
centres (17%), logistics {10%), net lease
assets (14%), with 10% of assets in other
uses. In 2021 the logistics assets were

the strongest contnbutar to valuation
growth, increasing in value by +14% like-
for-like, offsetting a negative movein the
shopping centres of -2%; total portfolio
like-for-like growth was +2%. This helped
drive the company's EPRA NTA +4% YoY,
and the caompany was also able to drive
FFO per share growth at a rate of +4%. The
company ensures that growth does not
require excessive financial risk, and LTV for
the year was maintained at 39%. Given the
current rising interest rate environment the
company also locks to protect its earnings
with 100% of its debt at fixed rates, and an
average debt maturity of 5.3 years. The
five-year total shareholder return has
been+21%

> The percentage of investment portfolia positions set out above include exposures through CFD for both the indwidual positions and the portfalio

> The Investrnent Portfolio by Country positions set out on page 16 are the physical holdings only included in the investments held at fair value In the Balance Sheet.
The profit or loss positions on the GFD contracts (i &. not the Investment exposure) are also shown on page 16 and are included in the Balance Sheet as debtors or

creditors in the Current assets.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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Twelve largest equity investments
continued

PISIP

L

gecina

“LandSecurities ,
i Swiss Propenty

31 March 2021 31 March 2027 \ 31 March 2021
Shareholding | Sharcholding | Sharehoiding -
value £452m £328m | valee ~  £44.6m  £420m | wvalue __E440m  £539m
% of investment % of investment % of invesiment
portfoliot 27%  21% portfolio* 2.6% 2.7% portfcho® 2.6% 3.5%
% of equity % of equity % of equity
cwned 0.8% 0.7% owned 1.0% 1.0% owned 0.6% 0.7%
Share price 786p 690p Share price CHF121.5 CHF115.2 Share price £€114.3 €117.4
Land Securities (UK) PSP (Switzerland) Gecina (France)

Landsecis one of the UK's largest REITs,
with a portfoho valued at £11bn The
company's assets are a mix of offices

{c 60%). retail assets (¢.30% spht between
shopping centres, outlets, and retail parks}
and other uses {c.10% such as leisure
assets and hotels}; 69% of the assets are in
central Londan. Since joining the business
iN 2020 new CEO Mark Allen has sought to
alter the company’s strategy, pledging to
sell out of its non-core agsets (e.g hotels,
leisure assets and retail parks), while
increasing the size of the development
pipeline to focus on large mixed-use
schemes that others do not have the
capabilities to deliver. In addition to the
established office development pipeline
the company now plans to spend an
additional £1.5bn over five years on mixed
use developments, with a 20% profit on
cost target. Balance sheet management
has been relatively conservative with a very
long debt raturity of 10.9 years, net debt
O EBITDA of 8.1x and LTV at September
2027 of 32% The company intends to
recycle capital to fund the davelopment
pipeline, avaiding gearing up despiie capex
spend, and has a mediumn-term target of
LTV rernaining in the mid-30s. The five-year
total shareholder return has been -9%

+ Notes:

PSP Swiss Property is one of Switzerlands
leading real estate companies ownmg
properties valued at ¢ CHF9 1hn

These are mainly office and business
premises in prime locations in
Switzerland's key economic centers
Zurich represents 57% of the company’s
exposure, with Geneva the other major
city at 14%. The portfaho vacancy rate

has moved downward from a ievelat 8.5%
in2018t0 3.8%at Fy21 The company
reported good resutts in 2021 with EPRA
EPS Increasing +8% YoY, while EPRA NRV
increased +10% YoY. The company will
benefit from a development pipeline with
ihe potential to add £22m of rent in the
next three years, with a capex requirerment
of £123m. The financial profile of the
company remains conservaiive, and the
company operaies with a LTV of 35%. The
costof debt is very low at an average of

0 4%, and the a weighted average loan
maturity reramns long at 5.0 years The
five-year total shareholder return has

been +58%

!
|
j
|
|
|
|
|

Gecina is the largest office landlord in
Europe with a portialio of more than
£20bn focused almost exclusively on

the Paris region. Itowns also a portfolio

of £3.9bn of residential assets (of which
£380m is student housing), again
predominantly located in the Paris region.
The company develops assels to enhance
returns, with the current management is
capitalizing on a developrnent pipeline of
¢ £4bn to be delivered in the coming years.
This is a contmuation of the total returm
strategy the company has historically
implemented The company looks to
redevelop assets where there are value
creating opportunities, disposing of
mature assets to crystalise capital gains;
£132m of value was created on assets
delivered In 2020 and 2027 1n 2021, the
company achieved like-for-like valugtion
growth of +3%, with EPRANTA increasing
13.7% Yov. The financial position of the
company is very stable with an LTV at 34%
(LTV has been declining consistently since
2017) and an average debt matunty of

7.4 years. The five-yeartotal sharehclder
return has been +13%

> The percentage of investment portfolio positions set out above include exposures through CFD for both the individual positions and the portfolio

> The investrment Portfolio by Country positions set out on pege 16 are the physical holdings only included in the investrnents held at farr value in the Balance Sheet,
The proft or less pesitions on the CFD contracts (1 &. hot the investment exposure) are also shown on page 16 and are included in the Balance Sheet as deblors or

creditors in the Current assets.
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Investment properties

Spread of direct portfolio by capital value (%)

Retail Industrial Residential and Other
ground rents
West End of London 37.3% o - 126% 0.5% 50.4%
Inner London* 1.4% 37.0% 38.5%
South West - 11.1% 11.1%
Total 38.7% 48.2% 12.6% 0.5% 100.0%

*Inner London detined as inside the North and South Circular.

Lease lengths within the direct property portfolio

© 0tos years

5to 10 years
B 10t15 years
B 151070 years
o 20+ years

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge Road,
London, W2

Sector: Mixed use

Tenure: Freehold

Size {sq ft): 64,000

Principal tenants: Waitrose Lid,
Graham & Green, Happy Lamb Hot Pot,
TRebel, Specsavers

The property comprises a large
mixed-use block in Bayswater, constructed
inthe mid-1970s The site extendsto
approximately 2 acres on the nerth east
corner of the junction of Bishops Bridge
Road and Porchester Road, close to
Bayswater tube station and ongoing
development of The Whiteley The
commercial element was extended and
refurtished in 2015 with a new 20 year
lease being agreed with Waitrose.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Gross rental

income

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London, SW18

Sector: industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 36,000

Principal tenants: Sweaty Betty, Richard
Dawes Fine Wines, Lockdown Bakers

Site of just over an acre, 50 metres from
Wandsworth Town railway station inan
areathat is predominantly residential.
The estate comprises 16 small industrial
units generally let to a mix of small

to medium-sized private companies.
Planning permission grantedin
December 2019 for amixed-use
employment led redevelopmenit.

Contracted rent

£2.8m

£10.25m

- £175m

10 Centre, Gloucester Business Park,
Gloucester, GL3

Sector: Industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 63,000

Principal tenants: Infusion GB, Pulsin Ltd

The 10 Centre comprises six industrial
units cceupied by two tenants and sits
on a 4.5-acre site Gloucester Business
Parkis located to the east of Junction
114 of the M5 and one mile to the

east of Gloucester City Centre. The
property also has easy accesstothe
A417 providing good links to the M4 via
junction 15.
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The Company’s investment objective is to maximise
shareholders’ total returns by investing in the shares
and securities of property companies and property
related businesses internationally and also in
invesiment property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in Sterling. The
index, calculated by FTSE, is free-float based and as
at 31 March 2022 nad 105 constituent companies.
The index limits exposure 10 any one company to 10%
and reweights the other constituents pro-rata. The
benchmark website www.epra.com contains further
details about the index and performance.

The Company's business modei follows that of an
externally managed investment trust company.
The Company has no employees. Its wholly non-
executive Board of Directors retains responsibility
for corporate strategy; corporate governance,

risk management and internal control; the overall
investment and dividend paolicies; setting limits

on gearing and asset allocation and monitering
investment performance.

The Board has appointed BMQ Investment Business
Limited as the Company’s Alternative Investment
Fund Manager (AIFM) with portfolio management
delegated to Thames River Capital LLP. Marcus
Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund Manager to the Company
on behalf of Thames River Capital LLP and Alban
Lhonneur is Deputy Fund Manager. George Gay is

the Direct Property Manager and Joanne Elliott the
Finance Manager. They are supported by a team of
equity and portfolio analysts.

Further information in relation to the Board and the
arrangements under the investment Management
Agreement can be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 4310 45.

In accordance with the Alternative Investment
Fund Managers Directive (AIFMD"), BNPF Paribas
has been appointed as Depacsitary to the Company.
BNP Paribas also provides custodial and
administrative services to the Company.

Company Secretarial services are provided

by BMO Investrment Business Limited.

A summary of the terms of the Investment
Management Agreement are set out on pages
54 and 55.



Strategy and investment policies

The investment selection process seeks to identify
well managed companies of afl sizes. The Manager
generally regards future growth and capital
appreciation potential more highly than immediate
yield or discount to asset vaiue.

Although the investment objective allows for
investrment on an international basis, the Company's
benchmark is a pan-European index and the majority
of the investments will be located in that geographical
area. Direct property investments are located in the
UK only.

As a dedicated investar in the property sector
the Company cannot offer diversification outside
that sector, however, within the portfolio there
are limitations, as set out below, on the size of
individual investmeants held to ensure that there
is diversification within the portfolic.

Lol TR
The maximum holding in the stock of any one issuer
or of a single asset is imited to 15% of the portfolio
at the point of acquisition. In addition, any holdings in
excess of 5% of the portfolio must not in aggregate
axceed 40% of the portfolio.

The Manager currently applies the following
guidelines for agset allocation:

UK listed equities o

- 25 - 50%
Continental European
listed equities 45 - 75%
Direct Property — UK 0-20%
Other listed equities B - 0-5%
Listed bonds 0-5%
Unguoted investments 0-5%

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

The Company may employ levels of gearing from
time to time with the aim of enhancing returns,
subject to an overall maximum of 25% cf the
portfolio value.

In certain market conditions the Manager may
consider it prudent not to employ gearing at all,
and to hold part of the portfolio in cash.

The current asset allocation guideline is 10%
net cash to 25% net gearing (as a percentage
of portfolio value).

| LS e

Investment properties are valued every six months by
an externa! independent valuer. Valuations of all the
Group's properties as at 31 March 2022 have been
carried out on a 'RICS Red Beok' basis and these
valuations have been adopted in the accounts.

Ol L A T R B
The Group charges 75% of annual base managerment
fees and finance costs to capital, in line with the
Board's expected long-term split of returns in the form
of capital gains and income. All performance fees are
charged to capital.

RN T I T e Y R R A EA IS
It is the Board's current intention to hold no more
than 15% of the portfolio in listed closed-ended
investment companies.

Seme companies investing in commercial or
residential property are structured as listed externatly
managed closed-ended investrment companies

and therefore form part of our investrnent universe.
Although this is not a model usually favoured by our
Fund Manager, some investments are made in these
structures in order to access a particular sector of the
market or where the management team is regarded
as especially strong. If those companies grow and
become a larger part of our investment universe and/
or new companies come 1o the market in this format
the Fund Manager may wish to increase exposure

to those vehicles. If the Manager wishes to increase
investrment to over 15%, the Company will make an
announcement accordingly.
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Company’s
objective against the following Key Performance indicators (KPIs"):

KPI

The Directors regard the out-performance of the
Company's net agset value total return relative to
the benchmark as being an overall measure of value
delivered to the shareholders’ over the longer-term.

Board monitoring
The Board reviews the performance in detail at each meeting
and discusses the results and outlook with the Manager.

KPI

The principal objective of the Company is a total
return objective, however, the Fund Manager also
aims to deliver a reliable dividend with growth over
the longer term.

Board mionitering
The Board reviews statements on income received to
date and income forecasts at each meeting.

Although dividend growth in the current year has not
matched the change in RPI, over 5 years it has been
comfortably exceeded.

Outcome
NAV Total Return* (Annualised) 21.4%  10.3%
Benchmark Total Return (Annualised) — 122%  5.4%

*NAV Total Return is calculated by re-invesiing the dividends in the assets and
the Company fror the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are deemed to be
re-invested on the ex-dividends date for the benchmark,

Outcome
Compound Annuai Dividend Growth* 21% 67%
Compound AnnualRP) 90% __ 37%

*The final dividend in the time series divided by the initial dividend in the period
raised to the power of 1 divided by the number of years inthe series.

KPI

Whilst expectation of investment performance is a key
driver of the share price discount or premium to the Net
Asset Value of an investment trust company over the
lenger-term, there are periods when the discount can
widen. The Board is aware of the vuinerability of a sector-
specialist to a change of investor sentiment towards that
sector, or to periods of wider market uncertainty and the
impact that can have on the discount.

Board monitoring

The Board takes powers at each AGM to buy-back and
issue shares. When considering the merits of share

buy- back or issuance, the Board looks at a number of
factors in addition to the short and longer-term discourt
or premium to NAV to assess whether action would be
beneficial to shareholders overall. Particufar attention

is paid to the current market sentiment, the potentia!
impact of any share buy-back activity on the liguidity of
the shares and on Ongoing Charges over the longer term.

24

Qutcome
Average discount* ) . 33%  46%
Total number of shares repurchased NiL NIL

* Average daily discount throughout the pericd of share price to NAV. with
Income Source Bloomberg.

TR Property Investmeént Trust



KPI
The Board is conscious of expenses and aims to
deliver a balance between excelient service and costs.

The AIC definition of Ongoing Charges includes any
direct property costs in addition to the management
fees and all other expenses incurred in running a
publicly listed company. As no other investment trust
companies hold part of their pertfolio in direct property
(they either hold 100% of their portfolio as property
securities or as direct property), in addition to Ongoing
Charges as defined by the AIC, this statistic is shown
without direct property costs in order to allow a clearer
comparison of overall administration costs with those
of other funds investing in securities.

The Eoard menitors the Ongging Charges, in
comparison to a range of other investment trust
companies of similar size, both property sector
specialists and other sector specialists.

Board monitoring

Expenses are budgeted for each financial year and
the Board reviews regular reports on actual and
forecast expenses throughout the year.

Outcome

5Hgoing charges excluding

performance fees - 0.60%  (.63%
Ongoing charges excluding

performance fees and Direct

Property Costs 0.58%  0.60%

The ongoeing charges are competitive when compared to
the peer group.

KPI

The Company must continue to operate in order to meet
the requirements of Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax
Act 2010,

Board monitoring

The Board reviews financial information and forecasts at
each meeting which set out the requirements outlined in
Section 1158.

Qutcome

The Directors believe that the conditions and ongoing
requirements have been met in respect of the year to 31
March 2022 and that the Company will continue tc meet
the requirements.

The KPIs are considered to be Alternative Performance Measures as defined later in the Annual Report.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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Principal and emerging risks and uncertainties

In delivering long-term returns to shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitor
the risks that have been taken in order to achieve that return. The Board has included below
details of the principal and emerging risks and uncertainties facing the Company and the
appropriate measures taken in order to mitigate these risks as far as practicable.

The ongoing impact of COVID-19 on economies arcund the world has been recovering
throughout this financial year however the invasion of Ukraine by Russia in February had
a significant effect on global markets and market uncertainty remains. In addition rising
inflation and interest rates bring challenges not seen for many years.

Share price parforms poorly in comparison
to the underlying NAV

The shares of the Company are listed on the London Stack  The Board monitors the level of discount or premium at
Exchange and the share price is determined by supply and which the shares are trading over the short and fonger-term.
demand. The shares may trade at a discount or premium
1o the Company's underlying NAY and this discount or
premiurm may fluctuate over time

The Board encourages engagernent with the shareholders.
The Board receives reports at each meeting on the aclivity
of the Company's brokers, PR agent and meetings and
events attended by

the Fund Manager.

The Company's shares are available through the BMO
share schemes and the Company participates in the active
marketing of these schemes. The shares are also widely
available on open architecture platforms and can be held
directly through the Company's registrar.

The Board takes the powers to issue and to buy back
shares at each AGM.

Poor investment performance of the portfolio
relative to the benchmark

The Company's portfolio is actively managed. in addition The Manager's objective is to gutperform the benchmark
to investment securities the Company also invests in The Board regularly reviews the Company’s long-term
commercial property and accordingly, the portfolio may not  strategy and investment guidelines and the Manager's
follow or outperform the return of the benchmark relative positions against these.

The Management Engagement Commiilee
reviews the Manager's performance annually.

The Board has the powers to change the Manager
if deemed appropriate

26 TR Property Investment Trust



Market risk

Both share prices and exchange rates may move rapidly

and adversely impact the value of the Company’s portfolio.
Although the portfolic is diversified across a number of
geographical regions, the investment mandate is focused
on a single sector and therefore the portfolic will be sensitive
towards the property sector, as well as global equity markets
more generally.

Property companies are subject to many factars which can
adversely affect their investment performance, these include
the general economic ang financial environment in which their
tenants operate, interest rates, availability of investment and
development finance and regulations issued by governments
and authorities.

Although we have now exited the European Union, the
structure of our relationship with Continental Europe continues
toevolve and there could be an impact on QCCeuUpation across
each sector.

The COVID-19 globzl pandemic continued for much of the
financial year. It has changed the way we live and work,
uncertainty remains regarding the impact on economies
and property markets around the world both in the short and
ionger term.

The invasion of Ukraine by Russia in February 2022 created
further market volatility and uncertainty which remains.
Inflation and interest rates are rising globally to levels not seen
inover 10 years.

Any strengthening or waakening of Sterling will have a direct
impact as a proportion of our Balance Sheet is held in non-GBP
denominated currencies. The currency exposure is maintained
in line with the benchmark and will change over time. As at

31 March 2022, 66% of the Company's exposure was 10
currencies other than Sterling.

The Board receives and considers a regular report from the
Manager detailing asset allocation, investment decisions,
currency exposures, gearing levels and rationale in relation
to the prevailing market conditions.

The report considers the impact of a range of
current issues and sets cut the Manager's response
in pasitioning the portfolio and the ongoing
implications for the property market, valuations
overall and by each sector.

The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lower earnings in the underlying portfolio putting pressure
on the Company’s ability {o grow the dividend could result from
a number of factors:

- lower earnings and distributions in investee companies.
Companies in some property sectors continue to be negatively
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic although most have
returned to paying dividends, sorne are at a lower level than
previously and a few are continuing to withhold dividends;

* prolonged vacancies In the direct property portfolio and lease
or rental renegotiations as a result of longer term changes
anticipated fellowing COVID-19;

* strengthening of Sterling reducing the value of overseas
dividend receipts in Sterling terms. The Company did see a
material increase in the level of earnings in the years leading up
to the COVID-1% pandemic. A significant factor in this was the
weakening of Sterling following the Brexit decision. Although
this has now passed, the value of Sterling may comtinue to
fluctuate inthe near or medium term as the longer term
implications of Brexit and COVID-19 and the impact on the
UK and European economies become clearer. The invasion
of Ukraine by Russiz has also increased market uncertainty.
The longer term implications will differ across the European
economies. This could lead to currency volatility. Strengthening
of Sterling would lead 16 a fall in earnings;

- adverse changes in the tax treatment of dividends or other
income received by the Company; and

- changes in the timing of dividend receipts from
investee companies.

+impact of higher interesi rates on distributions from investee
companies.

» negative outlock leading to a reduction in gearing levels in order
to protect capital has an adverse effect on earnings.

« Tne Board raceives and considers regular
income forecasts.

- Income forecast sensitivity to changes in FX rates is
also monitored.

» The Company has substantial revenue reserves which are
drawn upon when required.

+ The Board continues to monitor the impact of Brexit and
COVID-19 and the long term implications for income
generation.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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Principal and emerging risks and uncertainties
continued

Accounting and operational risks

Disruption or failure of systems and processes Third party service providers produce periodic reporls
underpinning the services provided by third parties 1o the Board on their control environments and business
and the risk that these suppliers provide a sub- continuation provisions on a regular basis.

standard service. The Management Engagement Committee considers the

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the longer term  performance of each of the service providers on a regular
changes In working practices at the administrator and basis and considers their angoing appointment and terms
other service providers. . and conditions

The Custedian and Depositary are responsible for the
safeguarding of assets. In the event of a loss of assets
the Depositary must return assets of an identical type
or corresponding value unless it is able to demonstrate
that the loss was the result of an event beyond their
reasonable control.

Monitoring the guality and timeliness of service as service
providers adopt widespread home working following the
COVID-19 pandemic and consideration of the durability

of the arrangements. Many organisations have now
incorporated home working into their operational struciure
as a permanent feature.

Financial risks

The Company's investment activities expose i1 10 a variety Details of these risks together with the policies for

of financial risks which include counterparty credit risk, managing them are found in the Notes to the Financial
liquidity risk and the valuation of Staterments in the Tull Annual Report and Accounts,
financial instruments

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Company has been accepted by HM Revenue & The Invesiment Manager monilors the investment portfolio,
Custorns as an investment trust company, subject to incorne and proposed dividend levels {o ensure that the
continuing to meel the relevant eligibility conditions. provisions of CTA 2010 are not breached. The results are
As such the Company is exempt from capital gains tax on reported to the Board at each mesting.

the profits reali h fi . . :
profits reglised fromm the sale of vestments The income forecasts are reviewed by the Company's

Any breach of the relevant eligibility conditions could lead tax advisor through the year who also reports to
to the Company losing investment trust status and being the Board on the year-end tax position and on CTA
subject 1o corporation tax on capital gains realised within 2010 compliance.

the Company's portfolio.
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Legal, regulatory and reporting risks

Failure to comply with the London Stock Exchange
Listing Rules and Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules; failure to meet the requirements of the Alternative
Investment Fund Managers Regulations, the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 and other UK, Eurcpean and
overseas legislation affecting UK companies,

Failure to meet the reguired accounting standards or make
appieptiate disclosures in the Interim and

The Board receives regular requlatory updates from
the Manager, Company Secretary, legal advisors and
the Auditor. The Board considers these reports and
recommendations and takes action accordingly.

The Board receives an annual report and update from
the Depositary.

Internal checkhists and review procedures are in place at
service providers.

Inappropriate use of gearing

Gearing, either through the use of bank debt or derivatives
may be utilised from time to time Whilst the use of
gearing is ntended to enhance the NAV total return, 1t will
have the opposite effect when the return of the Company's
investment portfolic is negative or where the cost of debt
is higher than the return from the portfolio.

The Board receivas regular reporis from the Manager on
the levels of gearing in the portfolio. These are considered
against the gearing limits set in the Investment Guidelines
and alse in the context of current market conditions and
sentiment. The cost of debt is monitored and a balance
sought between term, cost and flexibility.

Personnel changes at Investment Manager
Loss of portfolio manager or other key staff.

The Chairman conducts regular meetings with the Fund
Management team.

The fee basis protects the core infrastructure and depth
and quality of resources. The fee structure incentivises
outperformance and is fundamental in the ability to retain
key staff.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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Long-term viability

In accordance with provision 31 of the UK Corporate
Governance Cede, which reguires the Company 1o
assess the prospects of the Company over the longer
term, the Directors have assessed the prospects of
the Company over the coming five years. This period
is used by the Board during the sirategic planning
process as it considers this period of time to be
appropriate for a business of the Company's nature
and size.

This assessrment takes account of the Company's
current position and the policies and processes for
managing the principal and emerging risks set out on
pages 26 to 27 and the Company's ability to continue
in operation and meet 1is liabilities as they fall due
over the period of assessment.

In making this staterment the Board carried out a
robust assessment of the principal and emerging
risks facing the Company, including those that might
threaten its business maodel, future performance,
solvency and liquidity.

in reaching their conclusions the Directors
have reviewed flve-year forecasts for the
Company with sensitivity analysis to a number
of assumptions: investee company dividend
growth, interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
tax rates and asset value growth.

In assessing of the viability of the Company the
Directors have noted that:

+ The Company has a long-term investment strategy
under which it invests mainly in readily realisable,
publicly listed securities and which restricts the
leve! of borrowings. .

« Of the current portfalio, 63% could be
liquidated within five trading days and 76%
within 10 trading days.

- Ona Group basis, current assets exceed current
liabilities at the Balance Sheet Date.

+ The Company invests in real estate related
companies which hold real estate assets and
invests in commercial real estate directly. These
investments provide cash receipts in the form
of dividends, Property Income Distributions and
rental income.

30

+ The Ccmpany is able to take advantage of its

closed- ended investment trust company structure
and able to hold a proportion of its portfolio in less
liquid, direct property and the less liquid securities
of smaller comapies with a view to [ong-term
outperformance.

+ Al the Balance Sheet date the Company had £85

million undrawn on its revolving loan facilities.

- The structure has alsc enabled the Company to

secure long-term financing. EUR 50 millicn loan
nctes issued in 2016 are due to mature at par in
2026 and GBP 15 million loan notes issued on the
same date are due tc mature at par in 2031,

- Theimpact of COVID-19 on the UK and European

commercial property markeéts has steadily
diminished through the year. This resulted in
dividend receipts from investee companies in
the current year significantly stronger than the
prior year as the majority of companies have now
returned to paying dividends, although scme at
lawer levels than before the pandemic. There
was an improvement in income in the year under
review, although changes in dividend timetables
delayed receipt of some income and we expect
further recovery in the forthcoming year

» The invasion of Ukraine in February created further

market volatility and uncertainty. Howaver the
portfolio remains highly liquid.

+ The direct praperty portfolio was well positioned in

respect of the COVID-19 crisis and rental collection
was robust. We have very [imited exposure to retaif
and some smaller cccupiers in the hospitaiity
sector, however, overall the drop inincome from
the direct portfofio throcugh the COVID-19 crisis
was not material.

+ The expenses of the Company are largely

predictable and modest in comparison with

the assets. Regular and robust monitoring of
revenue and expenditure forecasts are undertaken
throughout the year. Analysis has shown that the
Company could suffer a reduction in earnings of
80% and still be able 1o meet its liahilities from
revenue cashflow as they fell due. Expenses could
be met entirely from capital if required due to the
liquid nature of the portfolio

TR Property Investment Trust



- The Company has no employees and consequently

does not have redundancy or other employment
related liabilities or responsibilities.

» The Company retains title to its assets held by the
Custodian which are subject to further safequards
imposed on the Depositary.

+ The impact of a range of factors have been
considered in terms of lhe polenlial effect on
Sterling. 66% of the portfolio is exposead to
currencies other than Sterling.

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

+ Real Estate will continue to be an investable sector
of international stock markets and investors will
continue to wish to have exposure to that sector.

- Closed-ended investment trust companies
will continue to be in demand by investors and
regulation or tax legislation will not change to
an extent to make the structure unattractive in
comparison to other investment products.

+ The perfermance of the Company will continue
to be satisfactory. Should the Board deem
that performance is less than satisfactory, it
has the appropriate powers to replace the
Investrment Manager.

The Company’s business model, capital structure
and strategy have enabled the Company to operate
over many decades, and the Board expects this

to continue into the future, The Directors confirm
therefore that they have a reasonable expectation
that the Company will continue in operation and
meet its liabilities in full over the coming five years
to 31 March 2027.

Annual Report & Accounts 20272
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Responsible investment

Approach

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) factors
can present both opportunities and threats to the
performance we aim to deliver 1o our shareholders.
The Board is therefcre committed to taking a
responsible approach on ESG matters. This covers
the Company's own responsibilities on governance
and reporting and, the most material way in

which the Company can have an impact, through
responsible ownership of the investments that are
made on its behalf by its Manager.

As along-term investor, governance and
sustainability considerations have always been
embedded in cur Manager's investment process.
ESG risk assessments and considerations are
integrated into the detailed fundamental investment
research and analysis that takes place on any
potential investment befora it is considered for
inclusion in the portfolio and continues on an
ongoing basis for all investments held.

This approach is in line with the definition of an
Article 6 Fund under the EU's Sustainable Finance
Disclosure Regulations. Whilst this is currentty
European not UK regulation it is nonetheless a widely
utilised definition.

There are two fundamental considerations to
investment in property companies: the assets
themselves and their management. The Manager
seeks to invest in sustainable assets which are
managed by quality teams in a well governed
corporate structure. As a result, there has been a
long-standing and strong culture of stewardship in
the Manager's investment approach. The Manager
believes that engaging with companies is best in
the first instance, rather than simply divesting or
excluding investment opportunities. However, there
are instances where governance matters have
driven a decisicn not {o invest in a company. As
one of the largest teams investing in pan-European
real estate equities, our Manager meets with a
significant number of the management teams of
investee and potential investea companies each
year and has a robust record of engagement with
arr agenda of reducing risk, improving performance
and encouraging best practice. Over the course of
the year, our management team participated in 269
individual or group meetings with companies and
their management teams.

Corporate Governance disclosure requirements have
increased transparency enormously in recent years
and enabled informed engagement, with social and
employment practices also gaining increased

3z

focus and disclosure. Environmental measures are now
rapidly coming to the fore and with wider disclosure
requirements being placed upon our investee companies,
the Manager Is able to scrutinise more easily other
measures such as climate change and sustainability
policies and outcomes.

Company Corporate Governance and Reporting

The Board also recognises the importance of the
Company’s own Governance and disclosures. The
Company’s compliance with the AIC Code of Corporate
Governance is detailed in the Corporate Governance
Statement on page 46 of this Annual Repart.

Under Section 414 of the Companies Act 2006

there is the requirement to detail information about
ermployee and human rights, including information
about any policies it has in relation to these matters
and effectiveness of these policies. As the Company
has no employees, this requirement does not apply.
The Company is not within the scope of the UK Modern
Slavery Act 2075 because it has not exceeded the
turnover threshold and is therefore not obliged 1o make
a slavery and human trafficking statement. The Directors
are satisfred that, to the best of their knowledge, the

‘Company's principal suppliers, which are listed on page

114, comply with the provisions of the UK Modern
Slavery Act 2015. These are principally professional
advisers and service providers in the financial services
industry, consequently the Board considers the Company
to be low risk in relation to this matter.

The Board currently comprises three male Directors and
two female Directors. The activities of the Nomination
Committee in relation to Beard changes are referred to in
the Nomination Commuttee Report on pages 52 and

53. The Board's diversity policy is outlined in more detail
in the Corporate Governance Report. The Manager

has an equal opportunity policy which is set out onits
website at www.bmo.com

The Company has no greenhouse gas emissions to
report from its operations, nor does it have responsibility
for any other emissions producing sources under the
Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Repert and Directors’
Reports Regulations 2013). [nvestment trust companies
are currently exempt from reparting against the Task
Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclasures (TCFD),
but the Board will centinue to monitor the situation.

TR Property Investment Trust



Governance of Investee Companies and Exercise

of Voting Power

The Manager has a corporate governance voting policy
which, in its opinion, accords with current best practice
whilst maintaining a primary focus on financial returns.
The exercise of voting rights attached to the portfolio
has been delegated to the Manager. Where practicable,
all shareholdings were voted at all company meetings
in the financial year in accordance with BMO GAM's
own corporate governane policles. This ensures that
a strong, consistent approach is taken to proxy voting
which backs up and reinforces engagement, takes a
robust line on key governance issues such as executive
pay and integrates environmental, sccial & diversity
issues and sustainability practices into the voting
process. The Manager regularly engages with companies
on governance matters, supported by our significant
stakes in large property companies. Gur size in this
specialist area of the equity rarket has helped ensure
our views are haard, augmented by the strength

of BMO's Responsible Investment team and their
broader engagement.

BMO's Responsible Investment Annual Review provides
more information on its firm-level stewardship policies,
as well as how these comply with the expectations of
the UK Stewardship Code 2020. The Manager is a
signatory of the UK Stewardship Code. Its statement

of compliance can be found on the Managers’ website
at bmogam.com,

During the financial year, the Manager voted against 86
iterns, resulting in at least one vote against management
proposals at 47% of shareholder meetings. Of the items
voted against, the proposals can be broadly categorised
as follows:

oy
4% 2%

Ay

- Remuneration
Election / Reelection of
Directors

| tncrease in capital
| Anti-takeover
mechanism

Director terms
Share Repurchase

Other

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

For the year, the Manager engaged with 28 companies
directly on a range of ESG related matters. These
engagements were conducted at both the board and
senior executive level as well as directly with investor
relations. Topics of engagement were split as follows:

1% 1%
11

Climate Change
Corporate Governance

| Labour Standards
[ ] Environmental
Standards
Business Conduct
Human Rights

The Manager tracks the milestone of the engagement
strategy and has seen progress this year cn a number
of matters. Examples include the publication of net-zero
carbon targets, the publication of sustainability reports,
comparties becoming a living wage employer and
improvements in corporate governance, incorparating
changes to remuneration palicies.

Environmental

Environmental policies in the property sector
focus largely on sustainability-and climate change.
Climate change is one of the defining challenges
of modern times.

The management team have scurced data and research
from several providers, including the BMO Responsible
Investment team, MSCI and Global ESG Benchmark for
Real Assets (GRESB).

The quantity and depth of data available in our sector
varies greatly; the larger companies now have teams
dedicated to providing environmental impact data and
reporting, however many of our companies are small,
and do not currently have the resources to contribute
data to the organisations providing analysis to the
investor community. As a conseguence, we see strong
correlations between company size, maturity and overall
scores. Since our investment strategy leads us to own
focused mid-sized companies in preference to some
of the larger diversified ones, the portfolios overall ESG
score might tend to be unflattering compared to the
wider benchmark.

With environmental issues coming to the fare and
inevitable increased legislation we expect to see
quite rapid improverments and standardisation in
data provision, increasing our ability to engage with
companies on these matters.
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Responsible investment
continued

GRESB

GRESB is a mission driven and investor led
organization providing standardised and validated
ESG data to the capital markets. Established in
2009, GRESB now covers over USD 5 trillion in real
estate assets, publishing i} an annual real estate
assessment score for participating companies,
and ii) a public disclosure score for all listed real
estate companies. The real estate assessment
score ranks Environment, Social and Governance
metrics based on data contributed directly from
participating companies, whilst the public disclosure
score evaluates the fevel of ESG disclosure by listed
property companies and REITS.

Further detail on GRESB can be found at
www.gresb.com

For 2022 there is reduced GRESB Real Estate
Assessment coverage of the Cormpany's equity
nartfolic {50% from 54%). Wea have provided
feedback to GRESB and a reguest to identify and
prioritise those companies in the portfolio which are
not covered under the Real Estate Assessment.

Data coverage as % of weight of the invested equity pertfolio

A number of the listed German Residential companies
did not participate in the Real Estate Assessment due
to GRESE requiring data to be submitted at the asset or
building level and concerns around fair comparisons of
data aggregation. We accept that thisis a reascnable
position to take for large apartment portfolios and have
discussed changes to the Real Estate Assessment with
GRESB to better reflect this asset class and encourage
particination.

MSCI

MSCI ESG research covers a wide range of
environmental impact measures including COZ and
greenhouse gas emissions, energy and water usage, in
addition to wider corporate governance scores. Further
detail can be found at www.msci com/our-sotutions/
esg-investing/esg-ratings

Coverage of our sector increased from 98% to 99% and
the Fund's portiolio from 83% 1o 8%%. Where coverage
is based on public data, a significant proportion is
included, whereas where specific data has to be
submitted by companies the coverage is currently
much thinner.

The table below compares coverage by both data
providers year on year.

2022

Reted  ~~~ ~ 50% = 54% 9% 9% 0 89% 9%
Unrated 50% _ 48% 3% ™ Ny 1%
Total 100% 100%  100% 00% 100% 100%

Source GRESE, MSCH, BMO Global Asset Management Dataasat 31.03.2022 Fund exposure cajculated as the % weight of the invested equity portfolio.
[

2021

Rated %% 0 55% 9% 9% W% 9%
Unrated 46% .2 S, ;. SN | Sy i S5 3
Total 100% C100%  100% 100% 100% 100%

Source GRESE, MSCI, BMO Global Asset Management Data as at 31 03,2021 Fund exposure calculated as the % weight of the invested equity portfolio,
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One area where we are starting to see more data is
in emissions reporting so we have tentatively begun
to map out some data below with the emphasis
being more on direction of travel than the absolute
measures themselves. Thisis also an area where we
expect {o see change which is also explained.

Portfolio-weighted carbon intensity

Last year, for the first time, we disclosed, as best we
were able to, the por tfulio-weighted carbon intensity
of the total portfelio.

Carbon Risk measures exposure to carbon intensive
companies. MSCI's definiticn and calculation, with
data based on MSCI CarbonMetrics, is the portfolio
weighted average of issuer carbon intensity. At the
issuer level, Carbon Intensity is the ratio of annual
scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions to annual revenue.
Carbon Risk is categorized as Very Low (0t <15),
Low (15 to<70), Mcderate (70 to <250), High (250 to
<525), and VeryHigh (>=525).

The Carbon Risk of the equity portfolic, measured at
the financial year end, was 63.3 T CO2E/SM Sales,
falling within the low risk MSCI category. The fund's
portfolio weighted carbon intensity was broadly in
line with that of the benchmark of 60.6.

Cemparing against the results from last year shows
a headline ¢.25% increase in carbaon intensity for

both our own equity portfolio and the index. There
are a number of reasons for this. Whilst the ratic is a
snapshot taken at each financial year end reflecting
the change in equity holdings over the period, there is
alsc wider coverage of data at the 2022 financial year
end (89% for the current year fund holdings versus
82% far the prior year). The latest emissions data for
each company is captured by MSCt on publication of
their data; each company is not releasing their data
at the same point so timing differences will arise. The
ratio will also be impacted by the changing vatue of

$ Sales, including the impact of FX rates. However,
within these limitations, we can be reasonably
confident that the Carbon Risk of the fund is in line
with the wider benchmark.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022
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FTSE EPRA Nareit Developed Europe Capped Index

In order to attempt to give a picture of the direction
of travel, we have lccked at the individual companies
the fund holds to assess which have improving or
deteriorating carbon intensity metrics over 3and 5
year periods.

This analysis depends upon the integrity of the
underlying data and breadth of data coverage, so
we would flag that this is a workin progress, but it
indicates a positive trend as awareness improves
and companies are obliged to disclose data.

3yr Syr
momentum momentum
T ~ Improving
Deteriorating
I Neutral

By number of companies. Improving where end of period value
is less than start of period Deteriorating where end of period
value s greater. 3yrs: Data for 47 of 66 stocks Syrs:Data for 40
of 66 stocks

Source MSCI, BMO Global Asset Management. Datags at 31.03.2022.
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Responsible investment
continued

For the property sectar, the focus is currently on the
energy efficiency of buildings ence they are occupied,
but we expect in time more attention will be paid to
the carbon emitted in gatting them built and eventually
dismantled which accounts fer a large proportion of

a building’s emissions over its lifespan.

The Company is committed to ESG as a core principle
and we expect to increase the visibility of the various
ESG initiatives over time.

We are of the view that the ESG rating industry and
its approach and processes is still immature with
significant limitations making it difficu't to draw true
comparisons and make fully informed decisions.
The assessments from the various data providers
reach different conclusions as they do not all score
in a consistent way. Some of the assessments are
subjective and different data provides have different
definitions and criteria.

We expect this to eventually converge into some
form of consensus or standardisation but it still hasg
a way 1o go. Conceptually, making ESG comparisons
between companies and porifolios appears simple,
but it is actually rather complex and it is important

10 ensure that valid comparisons are being made,
Asset Managers, Wealth Managers and the industry
Gatekeepers are investing a great deal of resource

in this area and scrutinising the data provided more
rigorously. A lot of shortcomings are being uncovered
and the different approaches highlighted. This in turn
will put pressure on the data providers to improve the
quality and clarify the basis of their analysis.

The Manager is dedicating resource to the analysis

of the information available and also has the benefit
of the knowledge of its award winning Responsible

Investment Team.

As data coverage improves, our Manager will in turn
be able to engage with our investee companies on
environmental matters and report to our shareholders
in more depth.
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Direct Property Portfolio

The Management team recognise the importance

of sustainability in cur Business and in the direct
property assets which we invest in, hold and manage
on behalf of cur investors. Property impacts upon
the environment, the health and wellbeing of
occuplers, and the communities in which they are
situated. Specific issues relevant to the physical
property investment partfolio include, for example,
responsible and sustainable refurbishment practices,
efficient use of resources throughout their operation,
and design and services to support the health and
wellbeing of occupiers and local communities.

The Trust aims te integrate ESG into all elements of
its business practice through our investments in our
assets directly and through our partnership with our
Managing agents and tenants.

Occupiers are increasingly considering employee
wellbeing when selecting workspace. Natural

light, biophilia, fitness facilities and other occupier
amenities all provide a competitive edge. Through
our occupier focused, opportunity led approach, this
means being a responsible owner of commercial
real estate, helping our occupiers succeed and being
valued by all our stakeholders.

To deliver on our purpose, we have in place three
distinct strategic pillars: Asset Energy Performance
{Environmental), Occupier Engagernent (Social) and
Operational Performance (Governance). These pillars
frnclude a range of strategic priorities which guide the
direction of our ESG Strategy and we regularly review
this together with cur managing agents.

(Environmental) - Asset Energy Performance
During the year our managing agents joined the
Better Buildings Partnership, a collaboration of the
UK’s [eading commercial property cwners 10 support
our mutual focus for the coming year on establishing
our pathway 1o achieving carbon neutrality by 2050.
Part of this is establishing an energy data baseline
through Automatic Meter Readers (AMRs) across all
assets to set targets against a recognised framework
and our business peers in REEB via the BBP.

The Company is implementing software enabled
data management alongside changes in the data
coliection processes to obtain greater visibility of our
utility consumption. Having access to good quality
data and the ability to monitor consumption patterns,
supported by more granular reporting at meter level,
will enable us to have a tetter understanding as to
where to focus in establishing cur energy targets.

TR Property Investment Trust



The groundwork being undertaken to further develop
the data management processes and improve data
quality will underpin the creation of asset sustainability
action plans.

As part of our continuing asset management strategy
we review the EPC ratings of all our assets to identify
opportunities to improve the EPC rating on re-letting of
units or engagement with occupiers 1o undertake works.
TRPITs exposure to EPC risk has been well managed,
with every applicable UK property having a valid EPC
rating. To future-proof the portfolio, the Managers
Sustainability and Social Respoensibility Committee has
established a target to achieve a minimum EPC rating
of D for all planned refurbishments and upgrade works
to the portfolio. We acknowledges the shift towards a
minimum EPC grade of B by 2030.

ULk

GRESB and our use of data from GRESB has been
described on page 34. For 2022/23 the Company will be
submitting fund data to GRESB for benchmarking against
its peers. 2022/23 will be the first benchmarking year for
the Trust's property portfolio and we are targeting annual
improvements in the GRESB score on our direct pertfolio.

(Social) Occupier Engagement

The Trust recognises that despite many sustainability
related activities being devolved to tenants, it stillhas a
duty to influence their behaviour. Through our hands on
management approach we seek to pre-actively engage
with occupiers and explore ways in which we

can suppert, encourage and potentially invest in their
ESG-related ohjectives.

(Governance) Operational Performance
Pooiiag Bofoniio b o1l

We are, in partnership with our building advisers
establishing an ESG-focused refurbishment checklist.
This will provide a set of guidelines to ensure our
refurbishment process and refurbished buildings meet
the appropriate environmental, social and governance
standards based on the scope and type of refurbishment
works being undertaken, The Trust has already
cemmitted to all major refurbishment projects being
grounded in Performance by Design at developed by the
Better Buildings Partnership.

[CPRNFITI I

Our occupiers account for the majority of the energy
consumption of our buildings. In recogniticn that we need
to partner with our occupiers, in 2021 we developed a
Green Lease toolkit for all new leases. This involves tenant
education into the benefit to working together to reduce
energy and water consumption as well waste generation.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

U R

We are aware of the impact via our supply chain and
have formed our ESG strategy way in which we engage
in business with 3rd party suppliers to complement
our Net Carbon Zere goals whilst also making positive
contribution to society, minimizing any negative impact
on people and the environment and to promote safe
and fair working conditions and the responsible
management of sccial, ethical, and environmental
issues in our supply chain,

This year we have completed the review of our
sustainability priorities and material issues. Akey
recommendation regarding one of those material issues,
Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation, was to start
the journey towards net zero carbon and assess its
feasibility. This is a key challenge facing the real estate
sector, with many companies beginning to publish their
own net zero carbon pathways. A related issue is to
develop our reporting under the Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures recornmendations. We have
recognised that to develop our net zero carbon pathway
we will need to partner with a third party specialist, and
are currently working through the selection process. We
intend to define our net zero carbon pathway and targets
in line with the Better Buildings Partnership framework
during the course of this year.

By order of the Board
David Watson
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Directors

Board diversity

40

David Watson Kate Bolsover

Chaormae Non-Exesutie O

Appointed: Appointed:

April 2012 October 2019

Experience: Experience:

David became Chairmanin July 2020, Kate previcusly worked for Cazenove

prior to which he served as the Board's Group and J P Morgan Cazenove

Senior independent Directar {SI0] between 1995 and 2005 where she was
and Chairman of the Audit Commiitee Managing Director of the mutual fund
David spent 9 years as Finance Director business and latterly director of Corporate
of M&G Group plc, where he was a Communications. Prier to that, she worked
director of four equity investment extensively in the investment fund industry
trusts, and more recently at Aviva plcas and was Managing Director of Baring's
Chief Finance Officer of Aviva General mutual funds group Kate was previously
Insurance, Heis a Chartered Accountant anon-executive director of JPMorgan

and has had a distinguished career in Arnerican Investment Trust plc, Senior

the financial services industry. Independent Director of Montanaro UK

Smaller Comparves Trust and Chairman
and Trustee of Tomarrow's People

Skills and contribution to the Board: Skills and contribution to the Board:

Throughout his executive career, David From her executive experience, Kate

has accumulated relevant skills in coniributes significant and relevant skills
finance, audit and nsk management and of the investment industry Her role on
experience in the investment industry. various boards also gives her the relevant
His experience as SID and Chairon a experience in shareholder and investor
riurnoer of hoards have built significant engagement

expenience in shareholder and investor

engagernent.

Other appointments: Other appointments:

Davidis currently Chairman of Aegon Kate is currently Chairman of Fidelity
Asset Management UK ple and a Asian Values PLC and Senior Independent
Diractor of the Prudeniial Assurance Director of Invescao Bond Income Plus
Company, where he Chatrs the Audit Limited. She 15 also a non-executive
Committee Director of Baillie Gifford & Co Ltd and of

Bellevue Healthcare Trust
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Sarah-Jane Curtis
Non-Fxec. tive Director

Simon Marrison
Senior Indepardent Director

Tim Gillbanks
Charman of tne Aocit Committese

Appointed: Appointed: Appointed:
January 2020 September 2011 January 2018
Experience: Experience: Experience:

Sarah-Jane is a Member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors She
was previously Business Director at
Bicester Village for Value Retail. Prior

to that, Sarah-Jane was a director of
Covent Garden for Capital and Counties
PLC. She has also worked for Grosvenor
for 24 years, including as Londen Estate
Director (retail/residential) and Fund
Manager for LiverpoolONE,

Simon joined the Board in September 2011
andbecame Senior Independent Directorin
July 2020. He has over 30 years’ experience
in the European property investment
industry. Heis currently senior adviser for
Furopean Real Estate at Kohiberg Kravis
Roberts (KKR). Prior ta that he spent 18
years at L aSalle Investment Management
where he was European CEOQ for 12 years
with responsibility for a portfolio of over €20
billion across Europe.

Sirmion has been based in Paris since 1990
having started his career in Lendon. Until
1997 he was a partner at Healey & Baker
{now Cushman & Wakefield) and from
199710 2001 he was at Rodamco where he
becarne Country Manager for France. He
joined LaSalle in 2001 as Managing Director
for Continental Eurcpe

Tim is a Chartered Accountant, with 30
years' experience in the financial services
and investment industry. Most recently he
spent 13 years at Columbia Threadneedle
Investments, initially as Chief Financial
Officer, then Chief Operating Officer and
finally as interim Chief Executive Officer.

Skills and contribution o the Board:
Sarah-Jane has gained extensive
experience during her varied

career, particularly in the retail and
experience sectors and in fund and
investment management activities

Other appointments:

Sarah-Janeis currently Property
Director of Bicester Motion as well asa
consultant to Value Retail PLC.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Simaon brings a wealth of experience,
particularly inthe European property
market He has gained leadership and
management skills in his executive
roles and relevant skills in investment
management

Skills and contribution to the Board:

Tirn brings a wide experience, particularly
in financial services and investment
management. His previcus financial
experience during his executive career
informs him in his role as the Chairman of
the Audit Committee.

Qther appointments:
Senior advisor for European Real
Estateat KKR.

Other appointments:

Tim is currently a Non-Executive Director

of Brown Shipley & Co Limited, Janus
Henderson (UK) Investors Limited and
Janus Henderson Group Holdings Limited.
He is alsa Vice-Chalr of the Board of Trustees
of Bloed Cancer UK.
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Managers

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

Fund Managoer

Marcus Phayre-Mudge joined the management team for
the Company at Henderson Global Investers in January
1997, initially managing the Company's direct property
portfolio and latterly focusing on real estate equities,
managing a number of UK and pan-European real eslate
equity funds in aeddition to activities in the Trust Marcus
moved to Thames River Capital in Octaber 2004 where he
is also fund manager of Thames River Property Growth &
Income Fund Limited. Prior to joining Henderson, Marcus
was an investment surveyor at Knight Frank (1990) and
was made an Associate Partner in the fund management
division {1995). He qualified as a Chartered Surveyor in
1992 and has a BSc (Hons) in Land Management from
Reading University.

George Gay

IS TN P

George Gay has been the Direct Property Fund Manager
since 2008. He joined Thames River Capitalin 2005 as
assistant direct property manager and qualified as a
Chartered Surveyor in 2006, George was previously at
niche City investrnent agent, Morgan Pepper where as
an investment graduate he gained considerable industry
experience. He has an MA in Property Valuaticn and Law
from City University.
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Jo Elliott

Firance "Aanagsr

Jo Elfiott has been Finance Manager since 1995, first at
Henderson Global Investors then, since January 2005,
at Thames River Capital, when she joined as CFO for the
property team. She joined Henderson Global Investors
in 1995, where she most recently held the position of
Director of Property, Finance & Operations, Eurcpe.
Previously she was Corporate Finance Manager with
London and Edinburgh Trust ple and prior to that was
an investment/treasury analyst with Heron Corporation
plc. Jo has a BSc (Hons) in Zoology from the University
of Nottingham and quzlified as a Chartered Accountant
with Ernst & Young in 1988.

Alban Lhonneur

+ T - .
ta ) i o

Alban Lhonneur, Ceputy Fund Manager, joined Thames
River Capital in August 2008, He was previously at
Citigroup Global Markets as an Equity Research analyst
focusing an Continental European Real Estate. Prior

to that he was at Societe Generale Securities, where

he focused on transport equity research. He has a BSc
in Business and Management from the ESC Toulouse
including one year at Brunel University, London.

He also attended CERAM Nice High Business School.
In 20C5 he obtained a post-graduate Specialised Master
in Finance in 2005 from ESCR-EAR

TR Property lnvestrment Trust



Report of the Directors

The Directors present the audited financial statements
of the Group and the Campany and their Strategic Report
and Report of Directors for the year ended 31 March
2022. The Group comprises TR Property Investment
Trust plc and its whally ownead subsidiaries. As permitted
by legislation, some matters normally includad in

the Report of the Directors have been included in the
Strategic Report because the Board considers them to
be of strategic importance. Therefore, the review of the
business of the Company, recent events and outlogk can
be found on pages 4 to 37.

Status

The Company is an investment company, as defined in
Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and operates as
an investrment trust in accordance with Section 1158 of
the Carporation Tax Act 2010.

The Company has a single share class, Ordinary shares,
with a nominal valua of 25p each which are premium
listed on the London Stock Exchange.

The Company has received confirmation from HM
Revenue & Customs that it has been accepted as an
approved investment trust for accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 April 2012 subject to the
Company continuing to meet the eligibility conditions of
Section 1158 Corporation Tax Act 2010 and the ongoing
requirements for approved companies in Chapter 3 of
Part 2 Investment Trust (Approved Company) (Tax)
Regulations 2017 (Statutory instrument 2011/2599).

The Directers are of the opinion that the Company has
conducted and will continue to conduct its affairs so as
to maintain investment trust status. The Company has
also conducted its affairs, and will continue to conduct
its affairs, in such a way as to comply with the Individual
Savings Accounts Regulations. The Ordinary shares can
be held in Individual Savings Accounts (1SAS').

Results and dividends

At 31 March 2022 the net assets of the Cornpany
amounted to £1,563 million (2021: £1,326 miillion), on a
per share basis 4%2.43p (2021: 417.97p) per share.

Revenue earnings per share for the year amounted to
13.69p (2021: 12.25p) and the Directars reccmmend
the payment of a final dividend of 9.20p (2027:9.00p)
per share bringing the total dividend for the year to
14.50p (20271:14.20p). In arriving at their dividend
proposal, the Beard also reviewed the income forecasts
for the year to March 2023.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Performance details are set out in the Financial Highlights
on page 2 and the outcorne of what the Directors consider
to be the Key Performance indicators on pages 24 and 25.
The Chairman's Statement and the Manager's Report give
full details and analysis of the results for the year.

Share capital and buy-back activity

At 31 March 2022 the Company had 317,350,980 (2021:
317,350,880) Ordinary shares in issue.

At the AGM in 2021 the Directors were given power to buy
back up to 47,570,911 Ordinary shares. Since that AGM the
Directors have not bought back any Ordinary shares under
that authority, which will expire at the 2022 AGM. The Board
will seek to renew the authority o make market purchases
of the Company's Ordinary shares at this year's AGM.

Since 1 April 2022 to the date of this report, the Company
has made no market purchases for cancellation. The
Board has not set a specific discount at which shares will
be repurchased.

Management arrangements and fees

Details of the management arrangements and fees are

set out in the Report of the Management Engagement
Cormmittee beginning on page 52. Total fees paid to the
Manager in any one year (Management and Performance
Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group Equity Shareholders’
Funds. Total fees payable for the year to 31 March 2022
amount to 2.0% (2021: 1.2%) of Group Equity Shareholders’
Funds. included in this were performance fees earned

in the year ended 31 March 2022 of £24,489,000 (2021:
£9,659,000).

Basis of accounting and IFRS

The Group and Company financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2022 have been prepared cn a
going concern basis in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards and in conformity with
the requirernent of the Companies Act 2006. The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with
the Staterment of Recommended Practice 'Financial
Statements of Investment Trust Companies and Venture
Capital Trusts' (SORP" to the extent that is is consistent
with UK-adopted International accounting standards.

The accounting policies are set out in note 1 tg the
Financial Statements on pages 76 t0 79.
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Report of the Directors
continued

Financial instruments

The Company’s Financial Instrumeants comprise its
investment portfolio, cash balances, borrawings and
debtors and creditors that arise directly from its operations
such as sales and purchases awaiting settlement, profit

or loss balances on derivative instruments and accrued
income and expenses. The financial risk management
objectives and policies arising from its financial
instruments and exposure of the Company to risk are
disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

Risk management and internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system
of risk management and internal control and for reviewing
its effectiveness. The Portfolio Manager is responsible

for the day to day investment management decisions on
behalf of the Group. Acceunting and Cormpany Secretarial
services have both been outsourced.

The system of risk management and internal control
aims to ensure that the assets of the Group are
safeguarded, proper accounting records are maintained,
and the financial information used within the business
and for publication is reliable. Control of the risks
identified, covering financial, operational, compliance
and risk management, is embedded in the controls

of the Group by a series of regular investment
performance and atiribution statements, financial

and risk analyses, AlFM and Portfalioc Manager reports
and quarterly control reports.

Key risks have been identified and controls putin

place to mitigate them, including those not directly the
responsibility of the AIFM or Portfolio Manager. The key
risks are explained in more detail in the Strategic Report
on pages 26 10 29

The effectiveness of each third-party provider's internal
controls is assessed on an ongoing basis by the
Compliance and Risk departments of the AlIFM and
Porttoho Manager, the Administrator and the Company
Secretary. Each maintains its own system of risk
management and internal control and the Board and
Audit Committee raceive regular reports from them. The
risk management and internal control system is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against matenal misstaterment or loss and to manage,
rather than efiminate, risk of failure to achieve objectives.
As the Company has no employees and its operational
functions are undertaken by third parties, the Audit
Committee does not consider it necessary for the

Company to establish its own internal audit function.
Instead, the Audit Cormmiittee relies an internal control
reports received from its principal service providers to
satisfy itself as to the controls in place.

The Board has established a process for identifying,
evaluating and managing any maijor risks faced by the
Group. 1t undertakes an annual review of the Group's
system of risk management and internal control in line
with the Turnbull guidance. Business risks have also been
analysed by the Board and recorded in a risk map that

is reviewed regularly. Each quarter the Board receives a
formal report from each of the AIFM, Portfolio Manager,
the Administrator and the Company Secretary detailing
any identified internal control failures or errors.

The Board also considers the flow of information and
the interaction between the third-party service providers
and the caontrols in place to ensure accuracy and
completeness of the recording of assets and income.
The Board receives a report from the Partfolio Manager
setting out the key controls in operation.

The Board also has direct access to Company Secretarial
advice and services provided by BMO Investment
Business Limited which, through its nominated
representative, is responsible for ensuring that the

Board and Committee procedures are foilowed and that
applicable regulations are complied with.

These controls have been in place throughout the year
under review and up to the date of signing the accounts

Key risks identified by the Auditor are considered by the
Audit Committee tc ensure robust internal controls and
monitoring procedures are in place in respect of these
risks on an ongoing basis.

Annual general meeting (the ‘AGM’)

The Company's AGM will be helfd at the Royal Automobile
Club, 29/91 Pall Mall, London SW1Y BHS on Tuesday 26
July 2022 at 2.30pm. The Notice of AGM is set out on
pages 106 and 110 The full text of the resolutions and
an explanation of each is contained in the Notice of AGM
and explanatory notes on pages 10610112

Material interests

There were na contracts subsisting during or at the end
of the year in which a direcior of the Company is or was
materially interested and which is or was significant in
relation to the Company's business. No Director has a
contract af service with the Company. Further details
regarding the Directors’ apgointment letters can be found
on page 53.

TR Property Investment Trust



Listing Rule 5.8.4R

The Company confirms that there are no items which
require disclosure under Listing Rule 9.8 4R in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2022.

Voting interests

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares

Subject to applicable statutes and other shareholders' rights,
shares may be issued with such rights and restrictions as
the Company may by ordinary resolution decide, or (if there
is no such resolution or so far as it does not make specific
provision) as the Board may decide. Subject to the Articles
of Association (the ‘Articles), the Companies Act 2006

and other shareholders’ rights, unissued shares are at the
disposal of the Board.

Vating

At a general meeting of the Company, when voting
is undertaken by way of a poll, each share affords
its owner one vote.

Restrictions on Voting

No member shall be entitled to vote if he has been served
with a restriction notice (as defined in the Articles) after
failure to provide the Company with information concerming
interests in those shares required to be provided under the
Companies Act 2006.

Deadlines for Voting Rights

Votes are exercisable at a general meeting of the Company
in respect of which the business being voled upon is being
heard. Votes may be exercised in person, by proxy, orin
relation to corporate members, by corporate representatives.

The Articles provide a deadline for submission of proxy forms
of not less than 48 hours {or such shorter time as the Board
may determine) before the meeting (not excluding non-
working days).

Transfer of Shares

Any shares in the Company may be held in uncertificated
form and, subject to the Articles, title to uncertificated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant system. Subject
tothe Articles, any member may transfer all or any of his
certificated shares by an instrument of transfer in any usual
form or in any other form which the Board may approve.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Significant Voting Rights

At 31 March 2022, no shareholders held over 3% of voting
rights on a discreticnary basis. However, the following
shareholders held over 3% of the voting rights on a non-
discretionary basis:

Shareholder ¥ QIS
Brewin Dolphin Lid 10.5%

Nctail Investors — UK 9.3%
Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 8.4%
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 58%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 55%
Quitter Cheviot Investment Managernent Ltd 37%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 3.6%
Charles Stanley Group plc 3.2%
Smith & Williamson Investment Managers 3.0%

*See above for further information on the voting rights of Ordinary shares

Since 31 March 2022 to the date of this report, the Company
has not been informed of any notifiable changes with respect
tothe Ordinary shares.

Articles of Association

The Company's Articles of Assoclation may only be
amended by a special rescluticn at a General Meeting of
the shareholders. They were amended at the 2021 AGM
and are available to view on our website.

Corporate Governance

Full details are given in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 46 to 51. The Corparate Governance Report
forms part of this Directors’ Report.
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Corporate Governance report

The Board of Tirectors is accountable to shareholders
for the governance of the Company’s affairs. This
statement describes how the principles of the 2018
UK Corporate Governance Code (the 'Code') issued

by the Financial Reporting Council (the 'FRC) in 2018
have been applied to the affairs of the Company. The
Cade can be viewed at www.frc.org.uk.

Application of the AIC Code’s Principles

In applying the principle of the Code, the Directors have
also taken account of the 2019 Code of Corporate
Governance published by the AIC (the ‘AIC Code?,

of which the Company is 2 member. The AIC Code
establishes the framework of best practice specifically
for the Boards of investment trust companies.
Furthermore, the AIC Code has full endorsement

of the FRC, which means that AIC members who
report against the AIC Code, on the whole, meet their
cbligations under the Code and the related disclosure
requirements contained in the Listing Rules. The AIC
Code can be viewed at www theaic co.uk.

The Directors believe that during the year under review
the Company has complied with the main principles
and relevant provisions of the Code, insofar as they
apply to the Company's business, and with the
provisions of the AIC Code.

Compliance Statement

The Directors note that the Company did not cormply
with the following provisions of the Code in the year
ended 31 March 2022

Provision 9. Due to the nature and structure of the
Company the Board of non-executive directors does
not feel it is appropriate to appoint a chief executive.

Provision 24. The Board believes that all Qirectors,
including the Chairman, should sit on all of the
Board's Committees

Provision 26 As the Company has nc employees
and its operational functions are undertaken by third
parties, the Audit Committee does not consider it
appropriate for the Company to establish its own
internal audit functian. The Company's service
providers provide assurance of their effective system
of risk management and internal and control.

Provision 32, The Board does not have a separate
Remuneration Committee. The functions of a
Remuneration Cormmittee are carried out by the
Management Engagement Commitiee.

46

Composition and independence of the Board

The Board cutrently consists of five Directors, all of
whom are non-executive. The Board's independence,
including that of the Chairman, has been considered
and all of the Directors are deemed to be independent in
character and have no relationships or circumstances
which are likely to affect their judgement.

The Board subscribes 1o the view expressed in the
AlIC Code that long-serving Directors should not
be prevented from forming part of an independent
majority. It does not consider that the length of

a Director's tenure, in isclation, reduces his or her
ability to act independently. The Board's policy

on tenure is that continuity and experience add
significantly to the strength of the Board although
the Board believes in the merits of an ongoing and
progressive refreshment of its composition.

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefit of diversity and
as at the date of this report it comprises three men
and two wornen. Diversity is taken into account as
part of the recruitment, appointment and succession
planning process and the Board is also aware

of the developing corporate governance with
regard to ethnicity of individual Directors. The
Board is committed to appeointing the most
appropriate candidate, regardiess of gender

or other forms of diversity and therefore no
targets have heen set against which to report.

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Cornpany's Articles of Association,

the Companies Act 2006 and any directions given

by special resolution, the business of the Company
is managed by the Board who may exercise all the
powers of the Company, whether refating to the
management of the business of the Company or not.
In particular, the Board may exercise all the powers of
the Cormpany ta harrow money and to mortgage or
charge any of its undertakings, property, assets and
uncalled capital and to issue debentures and other
securities and to give security for any debt, liability

or obligation of the Company to any third party.

There are no contracts or arrangements with third
parties which affect, alter or terminate upon a
change of control of the Company.

TR Property Investment Trust



Directors

There were no changes to the Board of Directors in
the year under review. The Directors’ biographies are
set out on pages 40 and 41. In accordance with the
Code, all Directors are subject to annual re-election.
Therefore all Girectors will retire at the farthcoming
AGM in accordance with the Code and, being
eligible, with the exception of Mr Marrison, will offer
themselves for re-election. Mr Marrisen will stand
down from the Board at the vonclusion of the AGM
and the Board has announced that Andrew Vaughan
will be appointed with effect from 1 August 2022 to
succeed him,

Board meetings

Board committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee,

a Nomination Committee and a Management
Engagement Committee, which also carries out

the functions of a Remuneration Committee. All

the Directers of the Company are non-executive

and serve on each Committee of the Board. It has
been the Company’s policy to include all Directors

on all Committees. This encaurages unity, clear
communication and avoids duplication of discussion
between the Board and the Ccmmittees.

The roles and responsibilities of each Committee
are set out in the individual Committee reports
which follow. Each Committee has written terms
of reference which clearly define its responsibilities
and duties. These can be found on the Company's
website, are available on reguest and will also be
available for inspaction at the AGM.

The number of meetings of the Board and Committees held during the year under review, and the attendance of

individual Directors, are shown below:

David Watscn 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Tim Gillbanks 6 6 2 2 1 1 9 1
Simon Marrison 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Kate Bolsover & 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Sarah-Jane Curtis 6 6 ? 2 1 1 1 1
In addition to formal Board and Committee meetings, the Directors also attend a number of informal meetings to
represent the interests of the Company and to discuss operational markets and succession planning.

The Board asset allocation and investment and gearing limits

The Beard is responsible for the effective stewardshipof the  within which the Portfolio Manager has discretion
Company's affairs. Certain strategic issues are monitored to act and thus supervises the management of

by the Board at meetings against a framework which has the investment portfolic, which is contractually

been agreed with the Manager. Additional meetings may delegated to the Portfolio Manager.

ke arranged as required. The Roard has a formal schedule

of matters specifically reserved for its decision, which are The Board has responsibility for the approval of
categorised under various headings, including strategy, investments in unquoted investments and any
managernent, structure, capital, financial reporting, internal investments in funds managed or advised by the
controls, gearing, asset allocation, share price discount, Portfolio Manager. It has also adopted a procedure
contracts, investment policy, finance, risk, investment for Directors, in the furtherance of their duties, to take
restrictions, performance, corporate governance and Board independent professional advice at the expense of
membership and appointments. the Company.

In order to enable them to discharge their responsihilities,

all Directors have full and timely access to relevant

information. At each meeting, the Board reviews the

Company's investment performance and considers

financial analyses and other reports of an operational

nature. The Board monitors compliance with the

Company's objectives and is responsible for setting

Annual Report & Acoounts 2027 a7
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Corporate Governance repoit
cantinued

Conflicts of interest

fn iine with the Companies Act 2606, the Board
has the power to authorise any potentral conflicts
of interest that may arise and impose such limits
or conditions as it thinks fit. A register of potential
conflicts is maintained and is reviewed at every
Board meeting to ensure all details are kept up-to-
date. Appropriate autherisation will be sought prior
1o the appointment of any new Director or if any
new conflicts arise.

Relations with shareholders

Shareholder relations are given high priority by

the Board, the AIFM and the Portfolio Manager.
The prime medium by which the Company
communicates with shareholders is through

the Half Year and Annual Reports which aim

1o provide sharehclders with a clear understanding
of the Company’s activities and their results.

This information is supplemented by the daily
calculation of the Net Asset Value of the Company's
Ordinary shares which is published on the London
Stock Exchange.

This information is also available on the Company's
website, www.trproperty.com together with a
monthly factsheet and Manager commentary.

Itis the intention of the Board that the Annual Report
and Accounts and Notice of the AGM be issued to
shareholders so as to provide at least twenty working
days' notice of the AGM. Shareholders wishing to
lodge questions in advance of the AGM, or to contact
the Board at any other time, are invited 1¢ do so Dy
writing to the Company Secretary at the registered
address glven on page 107/.

General presentations are given 1o both shareholders
and analysts following the publication of the annual
resulis. All meetings between the Manager and
shareholders are reported to the Board.

Section 172 Companies Act 2006

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires
directors to actin goed faith and in a way that

is the most likely to promate the success of the
Company In accordance with the requirements
of the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting)
Regulations 2018, below, the Company explains
how the Directors have discharged their duty under
section 172 during the year. Fulfilling this duty
naturatly supports the Company ir achieving its
Investment Objective and helps to ensure that
all decisions are made in a responsible and
sustainable way.
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Upon appointment, Directors’ are provided with

a detailed induction outlining their duties, legally
and regulatory, as a Director of a UK publiclimited
company and continue to receive regular relevant
technical updates and training. Under their letter of
appointment, the Birectors aisc have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary, and
when deemed necessary, the Directors have the
opportunity to seek independent professional advice
in the furtherance of their duties as a director, at the
Company's expense

Decision making

The importance of stakeholder considerations,

in particular in the context of decision-making,

is regularly brought to the Board's attention by

the Company Secretary and taken intc account

at every Board meeting. The Board considers the
impact that any materia! decision will have on all
relevant stakeholders to ensure that it is making a
decision that promotes the long-term success of the
Company, whether this be, for example, in relation
to dividends, new investment opportunities or the
Company’s future strategy. in addition, the Board,
together with the Manager, holds a meeting focused
on strategy on an annual basis to look ahead in the
market and anticipate potential scenarios and how
this may impacti the Company’s stakeholders.

Stakeholders

The Board recognises the needs and importance
of the Company's stakeholders and ensures that
they are considered during all its discussions

and as part of its decision-making. Since the
Company is an investment trust company that

is externally managed, the Company doas not
have any emnployses {the Directors have a Letter
of Appointment and are not employees of the
Company), nor does it have a direct impact on the
community or envirenment in the conventicnal
sense. The Board recognises its key stakeholders
and explains below why these stakeholders are
considered important to the Company and the
actions taken to engure that their interests are taken
Into account.

TR Praperty Investment Trust



Shareholders

Shareholder support is
essential to the existence
of the Company and
delivery of fong term
strategy of the business.

The Manager

Holding the Company’s
shares offers investors a
liquid investment vehicle
through which they can
obtain exposure to the
Company's diversified
portfolio. The Investment
Manager's performance is
critical for the Company
to successfully deliver its
investment strategy and
meet its chjective.

The Company has over 3,000 Shareholders, including institutional and retait investors. The
Board is committed to maintaining open channels of communication and to engage with
Shareholders in a manner they find most meaningful in order to gain an understanding of
thelr views These include the channels below

- Annual General Meeting — The Company welcomes and encourages attendance and
participation from Sharehnlders at its AGM. Sharcholders have the oppur lunily 1o meet the
Directors and Manager and tc address questions to them directly. The Manager attends the
AGM and provides a presentation on the Company’s performance and the future outlook.
The Company values any feedback and questions it may receive from Shareholders ahead
of and during the AGM and takes action or makes changes, when and as appropriate.

- Publications — The annual and half year reports are made available on the website and
sent to shareholders. These publications provide information on the Company and its
portfolio of investments and a better understanding of the Trust’s financial position. This
is supplemented by daily publication of the NAY on the Stock Exchange and monthly
factsheets on the Company's website. The Company is open to feedback from shareholders
to improve its publications.

- Shareholder meetings — The Manager meets with shareholders periodically and often and
feedback is shared with the Board.

- Working with the Brokers — The Manager and Brokers work togethear to maintain dialogue
with shareholders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings. The Board is provided
with regular updates at meetings and cutside meetings if required.

- Shareholder concerns - In the event that Shareholders wish to raise issues or concerns
with the Board, they are welcome to do so at any time by writing to the Chairman at the
registered cffice. The Senior Independent Director is also avallable to Shareholders if they:
have concerng that cantact through the normal channe! of the Chairman has failed to
reselve or for which such contact is inappropriate.

Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship with the Manager is crucial, as the
Board and the Manager both aim to continue to achieve consistent, long-term returns in line
with the Company’s investrnent objective. Important components in the collaboration with
the Manager, representative of the Company’s culture include those listed below.

- Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discussions at all levels, allowing time and
space for original and innovative thinking.

- Ensuring that the impact on the Manager 1s fully considered and understood before any
business decision is made.

- Ensuring that any potential conflicts of interest are avoided or managed effectively.

The Board holds detailed discussions with the Manager on all key strategic and operational
topics on an ongoing basis. In addition, the Chairman regularly meets with the Manager to
ensure a close dialogue is maintained.

External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the Depository and

the Broker

A range of advisers
enables the Company to
functicn as an investment
trust and a constituent of
the FTSE 250 to ensure

it meets its relevant
obligations.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

The Board maintains regular contact with its key external providers and receives regular
reporting frorn them through the Board and committee meetings, as well as cutside of the
regular meeting cycle. Their advice, as well as their needs and views are routinely taken into
account. The Management Engagement Committee formally assesses their performance,
fees and continuing appointment at least annually to ensure that the key service providers
continue ta function at an acceptable level and are appropriately remunerated to deliver

the expected fevel of service. The Audit Committee reviews and evaluates the control
envircnments in place at each service provider as appropriate.
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Corporate Governance report
continued

Lenders

Availability of funding and
liquidity are crucial to the
Company's ability to take
advantage of invesiment
opportunities as they arise

Regulators

The Company can only
operate with the approval
of its regulators who have
a legitimate interest in how
the Carmpany operates

in the market and treats

its shareholders

Investee Companies

Portfolio companies are
ultimately shareholders
assels and the Board
recognises the impaortance
of good stewardship

and communication

with investee companies
in meeting the Company's
investment objective

and strategy.

The Board is always mindful of the requirement to act in

the best interests of shareholders as a whole and to have
regard to the other requirements of section 172 which form
part of Board's decision-making process. The following key
decisions taken by the Board during the year ended 31 March
2022 are examples of this:

Gearing _

During the financial year, the Company continued to utilise its
existing revalving annual loan facilities and following a review
of the available options each were renewed on broadly similar
terms as the renewals fell due throughout the year. The Board
i5 keen to maintain a wide range of banking relationships to
ensure that it has access to adiverse range of terms and s
not reliant on any one provider. The facilities provide flexibility
and complement the longer-term private placement fixed
term debt thatis in place.

Dividends

Subject to shareholder approvai of the proposed final
dividend, the Company paid a total dividend of 14.50p for the
financial vear, representing an increase of 2. 1% compared

to the previous year. Uncertainty related to the COVID-19
pandemic continued through the 2021-22 financial year.
ncome levels improved as companies resumed paying
dividends although still not at pre COVID-19 levels. The Board
recognises the importance of dividends to sharehclders

and after careful review of the Company's revenue forecasts
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The Board needs to demonstrate to lenders that it is a well-managed business, capable of
consistently delivering long-term returns.

The Board regularly considers how it meets various regulatory and statutory obligations and
follows voluntary and best-practice guidance, including how any governance decisions it
makes can have an impact on its stakeholders, both in the shorter and in the longer-term.

The Manager communicates regularly with portfelio cempanies and is an engaged
shareholder {on behalf of the Company). The Board monitors the Manager's stewardship
arrangements and receives reqular feedback on meetings with the management of portfolio
companies and voting at their general meetings

and reserves together with the investment outlook with the
Manager, the Board decided that, it would once again draw on
the revenue reserve to support the dividend.

The board is prepared te use revenue reserves o support the
dividends paid ta sharehalders over short term periods of
income shortfall or volatility for identified reasons,

Portfolic management

During the year the Board continued to focus on the
performance of the Manager in achieving the Company’s
investrent objective within an appropriate risk framework.
The Board continued to consider the impact on the Company
{inchuding portfolio activity, risks and opportunities, gearing,
revenue forecasts and the operations of other third party
providers) of a number of events through the financial year

1o ensure that the portfolic had sufficient resilience together
with the Company's operaticnal structure to meet the
unprecedented circumstances.

Directorate

The Boards palicy on tenure was reviewed during the

year. The stability of the Board during one of the most
challenging pericds was considered important particularly
as appointments had been made to the Board in Octaber
2019 and January 2020 Therefore, no changes were made
to the Board composition during the financial year. However,
the Board is mindful of the importance of having a suitable

TR Property Investment Trust



succession plan Sirmen Marrison will stand down from the
Board at the conclusion of the 2022 AGM and will be replaced
by Andrew Vaughan with effect frorm 1 August 2022.

Culture and husiness conduct

The Board is in agreement that having a good corperate
culture, particularly in its engagement with the Manager,
shareholders and other key stakenolders will aid delivery

of its long term strategy. The Board promaotes a culture

of openness, In {ine with this purpose through ongoing
engagement with its service providers and the Manager. The
Directors agree that establishing and maintaining a healthy
corporate culture within the Board and in its interaction

with the Manager, sharehalders and cther stakeholders will
support the delivery of its purpose, values and strategy. The
Board seeks to promote a culture of openness, debate and
integrity through ongoing dialogue and engagement with

its service providers, principally the Manager. The Board
strives to ensure that its culture is in line with the Company’s
purpose, values and strategy.

The Company has a number of policies and procedures in
place to assist with maintaining a culture of good governance
including thase relating to diversity, Directors’ conflicts of
interest and Directors’ dealings in the Company's shares. The
Board assesses and monitors compliance with these policies
as well as the general culture of the Board regularly through
Board meetings and in particular during the annual evaluation
process which is undertaken by each Director (for more
information see the Board evaluation section on page 52).

The Board seeks to appoint the best possible service
providers and evaluates their service on a regular basis as
described on page 54. The Board considers the culture of the
Manager and other service providers, including their policies,
practices and behaviour, through regular reporting from
these stakeholders and in particular during the annual

review of the performance and continuing appointment

of all service providers.

Employee, social impact and wider community
The Board recognises the requirement under the Companies
Act 2006 1o detail information about humanrights,
employees and community issues, including information
about any policies it has in relation to those matters and

the effectiveness of those policies. These reguirements,
practically, are not applicable to the Company as it has no
emgployees, all the Directors are non-executive and it has
outsourced all operational functions to third-party service
providers. Therefore, the Company has not reported further in
respect of these provisions.

Directors’ indemnity

Directors' and Officers' liability insurance cover is in
placein respect of the Directors. The Company’s Articles
of Association provide, subject to the provisions of UK
legislation, anindemnity for Directors inrespect of costs

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

which they may incur relating to the defence cf any
proceedings brought against thern arising out of their
pasitions as Directors, in which they are acquitted or
judgement is given in their favour by the court.

Tothe extent permitted by law and by the Company's
Articles of Association, the Company has emtered into deeds
of indemnity for the benefit of each Director of the Company
in respect of liabilities which may attach to them in their
capacity as Directors of the Company. These provisions,
which are qualifying third party indemnity, provisions as
defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006, were
introduced Tn January 2007 and currently remain in force.

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of
information to the Auditor

The Directers who were members of the Board at the time
of approving the Directors' Report are listed on pages 40
and 41. Having made enquiries of fellow Directors and of the
Company's Auditor, each of the Directors confirms that.

« g0 far as they are aware, there is no information of which
the Company's Auditor is unaware; and

- each Director has taken all the steps that they ought to
have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company’s Auditor is aware of that information.

This information is given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the

Caompanies Act Z2006.
P 9&»@0@» L atten

By order of the Beard

BMO Investment Business Limited
Company Secretary

CI o 2R
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee
Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities

+ Review the Board and its Committees and make
recommendations in relation to structure, size and
composition, the balance of knowledge, experience
and skill ranges;

+ Consider succession planning and tenure policy and
oversee the development of a diverse pipeling;

. Consider the re-election of Directors; and
- Review the outcome of the board evaluation process.

The Nomination Committee meets at least annually,
and more freguently as and when reguired and Jast
met in March 2022

Activity during the year

The Committee discussed succession planning of the
Board, its tenure and diversity policies. The Commitiee
reviews annually the size and structure of the Beard and
will continue to review succession planning and further
recruitment, taking into account the recormmmendations
of Board evaluations.

Board evaluation

Following the engagement of Tim Stephenson

of Stephenson & Co, to facilitate an independent,
external evaluation of the effectiveness of the Beard,

its committees and the performance of each director

for the year ended 31 March 2020, the annual evaiuation
for the year ended 31 March 2022 was carried out
internally. This took the form of questionnaires fallowed
by discussions to identify the effectiveness of the Board's
activities, including its Committees.

The Chairman also reviewed with each Director their
individual performance, contribution and commitrnent, The
appraisal of the Chairman followed the same format and was
led by Sirmon Marriscn. The results of the evaluation process
were presented 10 and considered by the Board. There were
no significant actions arising from the evaluation process
and it was agreed that the current composition of the Board
and its Committees reflected a suitable mix of skills and
experience, and that the Board as a whale, the individual
Directors and its Commitiees were functioning effectively
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After careful consideration, particularly of the Board's
palicy governing Directors’ tenure and reappointment,
all Directors, with the exception of Simon Marrison, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
it is considered that each of them merit re-election by
shareholders. Further information cn each Director's
skills, experience and their contribution to the Board are
outlined in the bicgraphies on pages 40 and 41.

in accordance with the provisions of the Code, it is the
intention of the Board to engage an external facilitator to
assist with the performance evaluation every three years
and the next external evaluation will be carried out for
the year ending 31 March 2023. The Board will continue
to complete an internal board evaluation annually in the
intervening years.

Board's policy on tenure

Provision 24 of the AIC Code of Corporate Governance, it
allows a different approach to tenure in relation to investment
companies, reflecting how they differ to chairs of operating
companies, where the Board does not have a chief executive,
The Board 1ok into consideration the approach and
introduced its ‘Policy Governing Board Members’ Tenure and
Reappointment’. This policy outlines the Board's approach
totenure and reappointment of nor-executive directors. It
states its belief that the value brought through continuity

and experience of Directors with longer periods of service is
not only desirable, but essential in an investment company.
The Board did not feel that it would be appropriate to set a
specific tenure limit for indrvidual Divectors or the Chairman
of the Board orits committées. Instead, the Board will seek
ta recruit a new Director on average every three years so

as regularly to bring the challenge of fresh thinking into the
Board's discussions, ensuring that on each occasion that
ihe Board enters into new investment commitments, at least
haif the Board members have direct personal experience of
negotiating previous commitrnents with the Manager.

Board Succession

Having served as a Director singe 20171, Mr Marrison
will stand down from the Board at the conclusion of
the ferthcoming AGM. He will be succeeded by Andrew
Vaughan, who joins the Board on T August 2022, An
independent third party agency, Egon Zehnder, was
engaged for the recruitment process which resulted

in Andrew's appointment. Egon Zehnder have no other
connection with the Company.
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Directors’ training

When a new Director is appointed, he/she is offered
training to suit their needs. Directors are also provided
with key information on the Company’s activities on

a regular basis, including regulatory and statutory
requirements and internal controts. Changes affecting
Directors’ responsibilities are advised to the Board as
they arise. Directors ensure that they are updated on
requlatory, statutery and industry matters.

wodaioiBalens

Letters of appointment

No Director has a contract of employment with

the Company. Directors’ terms and cenditions for
appointment are set out in letters of appointment which
are available for inspection at the registered office of the
Company and at the AGM.

David Watson
Crarrman of the Nominaton Sommittes
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Report of the Management Engagement Committee

Management engagement
committee (the ‘'MEC")

Chairman: David Watson

Key responsihilities
- Monitor and review the performance of the
AlFM and Portfolio Manager,

+ Review the terms of the Investment
Manager Agreement;

- Annually review the contract of terms and
agreements of each external third party
service provider; and

« Review, on an annual basis, the remuneration
of the Directors.

n addition to investment management, the Board has
delegated to extarnal third parties the depositary and
custodial services (which include the safeguarding

of assets), the day to day accounting, company
secretarial services, administration and share
registration services. Each of these contracts was
entered into after full and proper consideration of the
quality of the services offered, including the control
systems in operation insofar as they relate {0 the
affairs of the Company. The MEC determines and
approves Directors' fees, having regard to the level of
fees payable to non- executive Directors in the industry
generally, the role that individual Directors fulfil in
respect of Board and Committee responsibilities and
the time committed te the Company's affairs. For
further details please see the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on pages 56 1o 58.

The MEC meets at least annually, towards the end of
the financial year and last met in March 20722,

Activity during the year

Al the meeting held in March 2022, the MEC
reviewed the performance of the AIFM and Partfolio
Manager and considered both the appropriateness
of the Manager's appointment and the contractual
arrangements (including the structure and level of
remuneration) with the Manager.

In addition to the reviews by the MEC, the Board
reviewed and considered performance reports from the
Portfolic Manager at each Board meeting. The Board
also received regular reports from the Administrater
and Company Secretary.

The Board believe that the Manager's track record
and performance rermains outstanding. As a result,
the MEC confirmed that the AIFM and Portfolio
Manager should be retained far the financial year
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ending 31 March 2023, being in the best interests of all
shareholders. A summary of the significant terms of
the Investment Management Agreement and the third
party service providers who support the Company are
set out belpw,

During the year the MEC also reviewed the
performance of all their third party service providers
including BNP Paribas, Computershare, BMO acting as
Company Secretary, both firms of corporate brokers
and PwC (as tax advisors). The Portfolic Manager
provides regular updates on the performance of all
third party providers during the year and attended this
part of the MEC Meeting. The MEC confirmed that it
was satisfied with the level of services delivered by
each third party provider.

Management arrangements and fees

On 11 July 2074, the Board appointed BMO investment
Business Limited as the Campany’s Alternative
Investment Fund Manager {in accordance with the
Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive)

with portfolio management delegated to the
Investment Manager, Thames River Capital LLP

The significant terms of the Investment Management
Agreement with the Manager are as follows:

Notice period

The Invesiment Management Agreement (IMA)
provides far termination of the agreernent by either
party without compensation on the provision of not
less than 12 months’ written notice.

Management fees

The fee for the pericd under review was a fixed fee of
£3,745,000 plus an ad valorem fee of 0.20% pa based
on the net asset value {determined in accordance with
the ALC method cf valuatien) on the last day of March,
June, September and December, payabla guarterly in
advance. The fee arrangements have been reviewed by
the Board for the year to 31T March 2023 and the fixed
element of the fee will increase to £3,8935,000 and the
ad valorem rate will remain unchanged.

The Board continues to consider that the fee struciure
aligns the interests of the shareholder and the Manager
as well as being highly competitive.

The fee arrangements will continue 1o be reviewead on
anannual basis.

Performance fees

In addition to the management fees, the Board has
agreed to pay the Manager performance related fees in
respect of an accounting period if certain performance
objectives are achieved.

TR Property Investment Trust



A performance fee is payable if the total return of
adjusted net assets (after deduction of all Base
Management Fees and other expenses), as defined
in the IMA, at 31 March each year outperforms the
total return of the Company’s benchmark plus 1%
(the 'hurdle rate’); this cutperformance {expressed
as a percentage) is known as the ‘percentage
outperformance’. Any fee payable will be the
amoeunt equivalent to the adjusted net assets at

31 March each year multiplied by the percentage
outperformance, then multiplied by 15%. The
maximum performance fee payable for a period is
capped at 1.5% of the adjusted net assets. However,
if the adjusted net assets at the end of any period
are less than at the beginning of the period, the
maximum performance fee payable will be limited
to 1% of the adjusted net assets.

If the total return of shareholders’ funds for any
performance period is less than the benchmark

for the relevant perfermance period, such
underperformance {expressed as a percentage) will
be carried forward to future performance periods.

If any fee exceeds the cap, such excess performance
{(expressed as a percentage) will be carried

forward and applied 1o offset any percentage
underperfarmance in future performance periods.

In the event that the benchmark is exceeded but

the hurdle is not, that outperformance of the
benchmark can be used to offset past or future
underperformance. These amounts can be used for
offset purposes only and therefore cannot have the
effect of creating a fee in a year where a fee would
not otherwise be payable or increasing the fee in that
year. At 31 Margh 2022 there is a carry forward of
outperformance of 1.9% (2021: 1.8%).

Management company

On 8 Novemnber 2021 BMO's asset management
business in Europe, the Middle East and Africa

became part of Columbia Threadneedle investments,

the global asset management business of
Ameriprise Financial, Inc. The process of integrating
the two firms is progressing and both companies
have corifirmed the importance of maintaining the
stability and continuity of the teams which support
the Company.

Depositary arrangements and fees

BNP Paribas was appointed as Depositary on

14 July 2014 in accordance with the AIFMD.

The Depositary's responsibilities include: cash
menitoring; segregation and safe keeping of the
Company’s financial instruments; and monitoring
the Company's compliance with investment and
leverage requirements. The Depositary receives

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

for its services a fee of 2 0 basis points per annum
on the first £150 million of the Company's assets,
1.4 basis points per annum on assets above £150
million and below £500 million and 0 75 basis points
on assets above £500 million.

Review of third party service

providers fees

Custody and Administration Services are provided
by BNP Paribas and Company Secretarial Services
by BMO Investment Business Limited. The fees for
these services are charged directly to the Company
and are contained within other administrative
expenses disclosed in notes to the accounts.

David Watson
Charrman of the Ma~agemaoent
Engagement Comnuttes
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

The Board has prepared this report and the Directors’
Remuneration Policy, in accordance with the
reguirements of Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium
Sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2013. An ordinary resolution for the
approval of this report will be put to the members at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The law requires the Company's Auditor, KPMG LLP,
to audit certain of the disclosures provided Where
disclosures have been audited, they are indicated
as such. The Auditor's opinion is includet in the
‘Independent Auditor's Report’.

Annual statement from the chairman
of the committee

The MEC met in March 2022 and considered the

results and feedback from the Board evaluation.

ltwas agreed that the Directors’ fees would be
increased, with effect from 1 April 2022, to the following
levels: Chairman £72,000; Audit Committee Chairman
£42,000; Senior Independent Directer £42,000; and other
Directors £36,000.

Directors’ remuneration policy

The Company’s policy is that the fees payable to the
Directors should reflect the time spent by the Board on
the Company's affairs and the responsibilities borne
by the Directors and should be sufficient to enable
candidates of high calibre to be recruited. The policy is
for the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Senior Independent Director to be
paid higher fees than the other Directors in recognition
of their more cnerous roles. This policy was approved
by the members at the 2020 AGM, and the Directors’
intention is that this wili continue for the year ending 31
March 2023

The Directors are remunerated in the form of fees,
payable monthly in arrears, to the Director persanally or
to a third party specified by that Director There are no
long-term incentive schemes, share option schemes or
pension arrangements and the fees are not specifically
related to the Directors’ performance, either individually
or collectively

The Board consists entirely of non-executive Directors,
whose appointments are reviewed formally every year.
None of the Directors have a contract of service and a
Director rmay resign by notice in writing to the Board at
any time; there are no notice periods and no payments
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made for loss of office. The terms of their appointment
are detailed in an appointment letter when they join the
Board. As the Directors do not have service contracts,
the Company does not have a policy on termination
payments. The Company's Articles of Association
currently limit the total aggregate fees payabie to the
Board to £300,000 per annum.

Sharehoiders’ views in respect of Girectors’ remuneration
are communicated at the Company’s AGM and are taken
into account in formulating the Directors remuneration
palicy. At the 2021 AGM, over 99 6% of shareholders’
votes cast were in favour of the resoluticn approving the
Directors’ Remuneration Report (0.3% againgt), showing
significant shareholder support.

The components of the remuneration package
for Non-executive Directors, which are comprised
in the Directors’ remuneration policy of the
Company are set out below, with a description
and approach to determination.

TR Property Investment Trust



Fixed Fees Additional Fees Expenses Other

The aggregate limit Additional fees may be paid  The Directors are entitled Board members are not

for the Fees for the to any Director who fulfils the  to be paid all reasonable eligible for bonuses, pension
Board as a whole is role of the Chairman, who expenses properly incurred benefits, share options, long-
£300,000 per annum, in chairs any committee of the by them attending meelings  term incentive schemed or
accordance to the Articles Board or who is appointed with shareholders or other other non-cash benefits or
of Association, which as the Senicr Independent Directors or otherwise in taxable expenses.

is divided between the Director. connection with the discharge

Directars as they may of therr duties as Directors

These fees will be set
at a competitive level to
Annual fees are set 1o reflect experience and time
reflect the experience commitment.

of each board member

and time commitment

required by Board

memibers to carry

out their duties and is

determined with reference

to the zppointment

of Directors of similar

investment companies.

deem appropriate.

Annual remuneration report

For the year ended 31 March 2022, Directors’ fees were paid at the annual rates of Chairman: £70,000 (2021: £70,000}
and all other Directors: £35,000 (2021: £35,000}. An additional £5,000 was paid per annum for each of the roles of Audit
Committee Chairman and Senior Independent Director. The actual amounts paid to the Directors during the financial year
under review are as shown below.

Amount of each Director's emoluments (audited)
The fees payable in respect of each of the Directors who served during the financial year were as follows;

31 March 2021

£
David watson™ 70,000 60,461
Sirmon Marrison® 40,000 38,410
Tim Gillbanks 40,000 40,000
Kate Bolsover 35.000 35,000
Sarah-Jane Curtis 35,000 35,000
Hugh-Seaborn® - 23,333
Total 220,000 232,204

All fees are at a fixed rate and there is no variable remuneration Fees are pro-rated where a change takes place during a
financial year There were no payments 1o third parties included in the fees referred to in the table above There are ng further
fees to disclose as the Company has no employees, chief executive or executive directors.

"} appointed as Chairman on 28 July 2020

@ appainted as Senior Independent Director on 28 July 2020

¥ retired as Chairman on 28 July 2020
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Directors’ Remuneration report
continued

Company performance

The graph below compares, for the ten years ended

31 March 2022, the percentage change over each period
in the share price total return to shareholders compared
{o the share price total return of benchmark, which the
Board considers to be the most appropriate benchmark
forinvesiment performance measurement purposes. An
explanation of the performance of the Company is given
in the Chairman’s Statement and Manager's Report.

Ordinary Share Class Performance; Total Return
over 10 years (rebased)

4500

4000
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. TR Property Share Price Tatal Return %‘3’5 8enchmark Tolal Return

Share Price Total Return assuming investment of £1,000 on 31 March 2012
and reinvestment of all dividends (excluding dealing expenses) (Source.
Thames River Capital)

Benchmark Total Return assuming notional investment into the index of
£1,000 on 31 March 2012, (Source Thames River Capital)

Directors’ shareholdings (audited)

The interests of the Directors in the shares of the
Company, at the beginning and at the end of the year, or
date of appointment, if later, were as follows:

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

31 March 2021

David Watsor 36.4G7 36083
Simon Marrisen 43,991 43 367
Tim Giftbanks - -
Kate Bofsover 2360 2,360
Sarah-Jane Curtis 5237 -

Since 31 March 20272 to the date of this report, there have
been no changes to the Directors’ interests in the shares of
the Company

58

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

2021

£'000 Change
Dividends pais 45381 44129 +2.8%
Directors’ fees 220 232 5.2%

Five year change cornparison

Over the [ast five years, Directors’ pay has increased as set
out in the table below:

Change

2017 over Annualised

£000  Syears Change
Chairman 70000 0% 0%
Audit Committes
Chairman 40,000 37,000 81% 7.6%
Senior
Independent
Director 40,000 37,020 81% 1.6%
Director 35,000 32,000 9.4% 1.8%

For and on behalf of the Board
David Watson
Thar i of e Liananemnont Zog atsie -t O
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit commitiee
Chairman: Tim Gillbanks

Key responsibilities
+ Review the internal financial and non-financial controls;

+ Review reports from key third party service providers;

- Consider and recommend to the Board for approval the
culilents of the draft Interim and Annual Reports;

+ Review accounting policies and significant financial
reporting judgements;

+ Monitor, together with the Manager, the Company’s
compliance with financial reporting and regulatory
requirements;

+ The review and subsequent proposal 1o the Board of
the interim and final dividends; and

+ Considering the impact of providing non-audit services
on the external Auditor's independence and objectivity.

Representatives of the Manager’s internal audit and
ccmpliance departments may attend committee
meetings at the Cammittee Chairman’s request.

Representatives of the Company's Auditor attend the
Committee rmeetings at which the draft Half Year and
Annual Report and Accounts are reviewed and are given the
oppertunity to speak to the Committee members without
the presence of the representatives of the Manager.

The Beard recognises the requirement for the Audit
Committee as a whole to have competence relevant

1o the sector and at least one member with recent and
relevant financial experience. The Chairman and Mr
Waltson are Chartered Accountants with extensive and
recent experience in the Financial Services Industry. The
other members of the Committee have a combination of
property, financial, investment and business experience
through senior positions held throughout their careers.

Activity during the year
During the year the Commiitee met twice with all
members at each meeting and considered the following:

- Consideration of the Risk Map, any changes to the
likelihood or impact of risks and consequential
changes reguired to Board Monitaring and mitigation
procedures. Consideration of any new or emerging
risks and inclusion in the Risk Map if appropriate,

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

This has included consideration of the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic and towards the end of the year the invasion
of Ukraine, inflationary and interest rate increases and
impact across a range of risk categories,

+ The Group's Internal Controls and consideration of the
Reports thereon;

+ The ISAE/AAF reports or their equivalent frem DMO
and BNP Paribas;

= Whether the Company should have its own internal
audit function;

- The External Auditor's Planning Memgrandum setting
out the scope of the annual audit and proposed key
areas of focus;

+ The reports from the Auditor concerning their audit
of the Financial Statements of the Company and
Consideration of Significant issues in relation to the
Financial Statements;

+ The appropriateness of, and any changes to, the
accounting policies of the Company, including
the reasonableness of any judgements required
by such paolicies;

- The Long-Term Viability Statement and consideration
of the preparation of the Financial Statements on
a Going Concern Basis taking account of forward
looking income forecasts, the liguidity of the
investment portfolio and debt profile;

- The financial and other disclosures in the Financial
Staterments;

- Theinformation presentedin the Half Year and Annual
Reports to assess whether, taken as a whole, the
Reports are fair, balanced and understandable and the
information presented will enable the sharehclders to
assess the Company's position, performance, business
model and strategy,

- The performance of the external auditor, to approve
their audit fees and consider the assessment of
independence,

» The review and subsequent proposal to the Beard of
the interim and final dividends; and

- The reviewal of the Committee's terms of reference,

ensuring they remain appropriate and compliant with
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code.
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Report of the Audit Committee
continued

Going concern

in assessing whether it continues to be appropriate

to prepare the Accounts on a Going Concern basis,

the Committee has made a detailed assessment of the
ability of the Company and Group to meet its liabilities
as they fall due, including stress and liquidity tests which
considered the effects of substantial falls in investment
valuations, substantial reductions in revenue received
and reductions in market liquidity.

In light of testing carried out, the overall levels of the
investment liquidity held by the Company and the
significant net asset position, the Parent Company and
Group, the Directors are satisfied that the Company and
the Group have adeqguate financial resources o continue
in operation for at least the next 12 months following
the signing of the financial statements and therefore

it is appropriate to adopt the Going Concern basis of
accounting.

The long term viability of the Company was also
assessed as set out on pages 20 and 31.

Risk management and internaf control

The Board has averall responsibility for the Group's
system of Risk Management and Internal Control and for
reviewing their effectiveness. Key risks identified by the
Auditor are considered by the Audit Committee to ensure
that robust internal controls and monitoring procedures
in respect of these are in place on an ongoing basis.
Further details can be found on page 44.

The Audit Cormnmittee received and considered reports on
internal Controls from the key service providers. No areas
of concern were highlighted.

The Company's Risk Map was considered 1o identify
any emerging risks and whether any adjustrents were
required to existing risks, and the controls and mitigation
measures in place in respect of thase risks The impact
of COVID-19, the response of financial markets, the
ongoing impact cn economies around the world and
operational changes made by our service providers in
response to government guidelines were considered and
the risk map adjusted accordingly.

Rising inflation in the latter half of the year the invasion
of Ukraine in February and the increasing interest rates
were also considered and the risks associated with these
events reflected in the risk map.

Based on the processes and cantrols in place within the
BMO Group and other significant service providers, the
Board has concurred that there is no current need for the
Company to have its own internal audit function.

60

Significant issues in relation to the
financial statements

The Commitiee has considered this report and financial
statements and the Long-term Viability Statement

on pages 30 and 31. The Committes considered

the Auditor's assessment of risk of material
misstaterment and reviewed the internal controls

in place in respect of the key areas identified and the
process by which the Board monitors each of the
procedures to give the Committee comfort on these
risKs on an ongeing basis. These risks are also
highlighted in the Cormpany’s Risk Map.

» Carrying amount of listed investments (Group and
Parent Company) - The Group's invesiments are
priced for the daily NAV by BNP Paribas.

The quoted assets are priced by the Administrator’'s
Globat Pricing Platform which uses independent external
pricing scurces. The control precess surrcunging this s
set out in the BNP Paribas AAF 01/06 Internal Cantrols
Report and testing by the reporting accountant for the
period reported to 30 September 2021 which did not
reveal any significant exceptions. The guarterly control
report to the Board from BNP Paribas covering the
period up to 31 March 2022 had no significant issues

1o repart. in addition, the Manager estimates the NAV
using an alternative pricing source on a daily basis as an
independent check.

The Auditor agreed 100% of the listed investments of the
portfolio to externally guoted prices and independently
received third party confirmations from investment
custedians and found the carrying value of listed
investments to be acceptatte.

+ Valuation of Direct Property Investments (Group and
Parent Company) — The physical property portfolio is
valued every six months by prefessional independent
valuers.

Knight Frank LLP value the portfolio on the basis of

Fair Value in accordance with the RICS Valuation -
Professional Standards VPS4 (1.5) Fair Value and VPGA
1 Valuations for Inclusion in Financial Statements,
which apply the definition of Fair Value adopted by the
International Financial Reporting Standards. IFRS 13
defines Fair Value as:

‘The amount for which an asset could be exchanged, a
fiability settled, or an equity instrument granted could be
exchanged, between knowledgeable, willing parties inan
arm's length transaction’,

TR Property Investment Trust



In undertaking their valuation of each preperty,
Knight Frank make their gssessment on the basis of
a collation and analysis of appropriate comparakble
investments, rental and sale transactions, together
with evidence of demand within the vicinity of each
property. This information is then applied to the
properties, taking into account size, location, terms,
covenant and other material factors.

The Board has reviewed reports from the Manager
and the external valuer and determined the valuation
to be reasonable.

The Auditer has set out their detailed testing and
procedures in respect of the Direct property valuation
and concluded that they found the Company’s
valuation of investment properties to be acceptable.

There has been nothing brought to the Committee’s
attention in respect of the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2022 that was material

or significant or that the Committee felt should be
brought to shareholders’ attention.

Auditor assessment and independence
The Company's external auditor, KPMG LLP (KPMG)
was appointed as the Company’s auditor at the 2016
AGM. The Committee undertook a tender process
during 2021 to ensure that shareholders were getting
the best services and value for money. A number of
firms were invited to express interest and respond
on a small number of key points. The decision

was made for the audit to remain with KPMG. The
Commitiee expects 10 repeat a tender process

no later than 2026 in respect of the audit for the
following 31 March year end, in line with the current
audit regulaticns.

At the half year meeting of the Committee, KPMG
presented their audit plan for the year end and the
Committee considered the audit process and fee
proposal. The Commitlee also reviewed KPMG's
independence pelicies and procedures including
quality assurance procedures. It was considered that
these policles are fit for purpose and the Directors
are satisfied that KPMG is independent.

Total fees payable to the Auditor in respect of

the audit for the year 16 31 March 2022 were’
£82,000 (2021: £80,000), which were approved

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

by the Audit Commitiee.

The Committee has approved and implemented

a pelicy on the engagement of the Auditor to

supply non-audit services, taking into account the
reccrmmmendations of the Accounting Practices Board
with a view to ensuring that the external Auditor does
not provide non-audit services that have the potential
to impair or appear to impair the independence of
their audit role, In additinn, the Committee reviewod
the actions put in place by the Auditor 1o ensure there
was a clear separation between audit and advisory
services. The Committee does not believe there to

be any impediment to the Auditor's objectivity and
independence.

The fees for non-audit services for the year to 31
March 2022 were nil (2027: nil).

Full details of the Auditor's fees are provided in note &
to the accounts on page 81,

Mr Merchant, was appointed audit partner for the
2022 year-end audit succeeding Mr Kelly, who was
required to rotate off the Company’'s account, having
served as audit partner for five years.

Following each audit, the Committee reviews the
audit process and considers its effectiveness and
the quality of the services provided to the Company.
Within this process, the Committes takes into
consideration their own assessment, the self-
evaluation of the auditor and the Audit Guality Review
Report produced by the FRC in arder to moniter the
progress of the Auditor's performance comparable
with its peers and the targets set by the FRC. The
review following the completion of the 2021 audit
concluded that the Committee was satisfied with the
Auditor's effectiveness and performance.

The Committee felt that KPMG had run an effective
and efficient audit process with apprepriate
challenge. A resolution to re-appoint KPMG LLP as
the Company’s Auditor will be put to shareholders at
the forthcoming AGM.

Tim Gillbanks
Ceairnurr ot tee Ao Doomrreffee
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Statement of Directors’ respansibilities in relation
to the Group financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report, the Strategic Report, the Birectors” Report and
the financial statementis in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group
and Parent Company financial statements for each
financial year. Directors are reguired to prepare the Group
financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards and applicable

law and have elected to prepare the Parent Company
financial statements on the same basis.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statermnernits unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and Parent Company and of the Group's profit ar
loss for that period. In preparing each of the Group and
Parent Company financial statements, the Directors are
required to:

+ select suitable accounting poiicies and apply
them consistently,

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonabie,
relevant and reliable;

- state whether they have been prepared in accordance
with international accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of UK-adopted international
accounting standards

-+ assess the Group and Parent Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and

- use the going concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent
Company or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for maintaining adequate
accounting records that are sufficien! to show and
explain the Parent Company's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Parent Company and enable therm to
ensure that its financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such
internal contral as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or
error, and have general respansibility far taking such
steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the
assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irrequiarities.
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Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors
are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report,
Directors’ Report, Directars” Remuneration Report
and Corporate Governance Statement.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance
and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Company’s website,
Legisiabon inthe UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement of the Directors
in respect of the annual financial report
Each of the Directors confirms that 1o the best of
their knowledge:

« the financial statements, prepared in accordance
with the applicable set of accounting standards,
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit ar loss of the Group
and Parent Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole; and

« the strategic report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business
and the position of the issuer and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties that they face.

In accordance with Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rule 4.1.74R, the financial statements
willform part of the annual financial report prepared
using the single electronic reporting format under the
TD ESEF Regulation. The auditor's report on these
financial statements provides no assurance over the
ESEF format.

The Directors consider the annual report and
accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced

and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group's position and performance, business
model and strategy.

By order of the Board
David Watson

TR Property Investment Trust
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of TR Property Investment Trust plc

2
3
8
=
071 Our opinion is unmodified Basis for opinion
We have audited the financial statements of TR We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Property Investment Trust ple (the ‘Company’) for Standards on Auditing (UK} (1SAs (UK)") and applicable
the year ended 31 March 2022 which comprise the law. Cur responsibilities are described below. We beligve
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, Group that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient
and Company Staterments of Changes in Equity, Group and appropriate basis for cur opinion. Our audit opinion
and Company Balance Sheets, Group and Company is consistent with our report 1o the audit committee.
Cash Flow Statements and the related notes, including
the accounting policies in note 1. We were first appointed as auditor by the directors on
2 November 2016. The pericd of total uninterrupted
In our opinion: engagement is for the six financial years ended 31 March
+ The financial statements give a true and fair view 2022. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under,
of the state of the Group's and of the Parent and we remain independent of the Group in accordance
Caompany's affairs as at 31 March 2022 and of with, UK ethical requirernents including the FRC Ethical -
the Group's profit for the vear then ended, Standard as applied to listed public interest entities. g
No non audit services prohibited by that standard &
+ The financial statements have been properly were provided. &
prepared in accordance with UK adopted %
international accounting standards g

- The financial statements have been prepared ality: g £16.8m (2021:£14.9m)
prep financial statements 1% (2021: 1%) of Total Assets

in accordance with the requirements of the as awhole
Companies Act 2006

Key audit matters vs 2021 _vs2021
Recurring risks Valuaticn of direct property <»
investments
Carrying amount of listed - >
investments
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02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgernent, were of most significance in the audit of the

financial statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or nct due g

to fraud) identified by us, including those which had the greatest effect cn: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of e

resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. We summarise below the key audit matters E

{unchanged from 2021}, in decreasing order of audit significance, in arriving at our audit opinion above, together with =

our key audit procedures to address those matters and our findings from those procedures in order that the Company’s

members, as a body, may better understand the process by which we arrived at our opinion. These matters were

addressed, and our findings are based on procedures undertaken in the context of, and solely for the purpase of, our

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently are incidental to

that opinion, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
g
1]
g
&
5
g
3
B
5
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Independent auditor's report
continued

Valuation of direct property
investments (Group and
Parent Company)

(£96.3 million; 2021

£83.1 million)

Refer to pages 59 to 61
(Audit Commitiee

Repart), pages 77 and

78 (accounting policy),

and note 10 on pages 85

to 88 (financial disclosures).

64

Subjective valuation:

5.7% (2021: 5.6%) of the Group's,

and 5.6% (2021: 5.4%) of the Parent
Company’s, total assets (by value) are
held in investment properties.

The fair value of each property requires
significant estimation, in particular
with regard 10 the key estimated rental
value and yield assumptions. The
assumptions will be impacted by a
number of factors including quality and
condition of the building and tenant
covenant strength.

The effect of these matters is that,

as part of our risk assessment, we
determined that the valuation of
invastment properties has a high
degree of estimation uncertainty, with a
potential range of reasenable cutcomes
greater than cur materiality far the
financial statements as a whole. The
financial statements (note 10} disclose
the sensitivity estimated by the Group.

We performed the detailed tests below rather
than seeking to rely on any of the Group's
controls, because the nature of the halance
is such that we would expect to obtain audit
evidence primarily through the detailed
procedures described.

Qur procedures included:

- Assessing valuer's credentials: Using our own
praperty valuation specialist, we evaluated the
competencea, experience and independence of
the external valuer;

Tests of detail: We compared the information
provided by the Group to its external property
valuer for a sample of properties, such as
rental income and tenancy data to supporting
documents including lease agreements;

- Methodology choice: We held discussions
with the Group's external property valuer
to determine the valuation methodology
used is appropriate. We included our own
property valuation specialist to assist usin
critically assessing the results of the valuer's
report by checking that the valuations were
in accordance with the RICS Valuation
Professional Standards 'the Red Book' and
IFRS and that the methcdology adopted
was appropriate by reference to acceptable
valuation practice;

- Benchmarking assumptions: With the
assistance of our own property valuation
specialist, we held discussions with the
Group's external property valuer to understand
movements in property values. For a sample of
properties, we assessed the key assumptions
used by the valuer upon which the valuations
are based, including those relating to estimated
rental value and yield, by making a comparison
to our own understanding of the market and 10
industry benchmarks;

- Assessing transparency: We also considered
the adequacy of the Group's disclosures about
the degree of estimation and sensitivity to key
assumptions made when vaiuing the direct
property investmeants.

Qur findings
We found the Group's valuation of investment
properties to be balanced (2021 balanced)

TR Property Investment Trust



02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement corrita.

Cartying amount of
listed investments
{Graup and Parent}
(£1,456.8 million; 20271
£1,316.0 million}

Refer to pages 59 to 61
{(Audit Comriillee Reporl),
page 78 (accounting policy)
and note 10 on pages 85 to
88 (financial disclosures},

Low risk, high value:

The Group's portfolic of listed level 1
investments makes up 86.4% (2021:
88.2%) of the Group's, and 84.6% (2021:
85.8%) of the Parent Company’s, total
assets (by value) and is one of the key
drivers nf results. We da not congider
these investments to be at a high risk
of material misstatement, or to be
subject to a significant level of
judgement because they comprise
liquid, qucted investments. However,
due to their materiality in the context
of the financial statements as a whole,
they are considered to be one of the
areas which had the greatest effect on

We performed the detailed tests below rather
than seeking to rely on any of the Group's
controls, because the nature of the balance
is such that we would expect to obtain audit
evidence primarily through the detailed
procedures described,

Our procedures included:

« Test of detail: Agreeing the valuation of 100%
of leve| 1 listed investments in the portfolic to
externally quoted prices; and

- Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 100% of
level 1 listed investment holdings in the
portfolio 1o independently received third party
confirmations from investrment custodians.

our overall audit strategy and allocation

of resources in planning and completing

our audit

Our findings

We found no differences from third party
holdings confirmations nor from the externally
quoted prices of a size 1¢ require reporting to the
Audit Committee (2021 no differences).

03 Our application of materiality and an
overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the Group financial staterments as a whole
was set at £16.8m (2021 : £14.9m), determined with
reference to a benchmark of total assets, of which it
represents 1.0% (2021: 1.0%).

Materiality for the parent company financial statements
as a whole was set at £16.0m (2021: £14.1m), which

is the component materiality for the parent company
determined by the group audit engagement team. This
is fower than the materiality we would otherwise have
determined with referance to parent company total
assets, of which it represents 0.95% (2021: 0.95%).

inline with our audit methodology, our procedures
onindividual account balances and disclosures were
performed to a lower threshaold, performance materiality,
so as to reduce to an acceptable level the risk that
individually immaterial misstaternents in individual
account balances add up to a material amount across
the financial statements as a whole. Performance
materiality was set at 75% (2021; 75%) of materiality

for the financial statements as a whole, which equates
to £12.6m (2021 £11.1m) for the Group and £12.0m
(2021 : £10.5m) for the Parent Cormpany. We applied

this percentage in our determinaticn of performance
materiality because we did not identify any factors
indicating an elevated level of risk. In addition, we applied
materiality of £2.0m (2021: £2.0m ) and performance

Annhual Report & Accounts 2022

materiality of £1.5m (2021: £1.5m) to investment
income, other operating income , gross rental income,
service charge income and net returns on contracts for
difference for which we believe misstaterments of lesser
amounts than materiality for the financial staterments
as a whole could reascnably be expected to influence
the Company's members’ assessrment of the financial
performance of the Group.

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any
corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements
exceeding £0.84m (2021 £0.75m} in addition to other
identified misstatements that warranted reporting on
gualitative threshaolds.

Total Assets
£1,686m (2021: £14.9m)

Group Materiality
£16.8m (2021: £14.9m)

£16.8m
Whole financial statements
materiality (2021 £14.9m)

£16.0m
Parent Company Materiality
(2021: £14.1m) B

£0.84m

Misstatements reported
to the audit committee
{2021: £0.75m)

o Total Assets
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Independent auditor’s report
continuad

03 Qur application of materiality and an cverview of the
scope of our audit <1

The audit teamn performed the audit of the Group as if it
was a single aggregated set of financiai infermation. This
approach is unchanged frem the prior year. The audit of
the Group and Parent Company was performed using the
materiality levels set out above and was performed by a
single audit team.

The scope of the audit work performed was fully
substantive as we did not rely upon the Group's internal
contrels over financral reporting.

04 The impact of climate risk on our
audit report

We have performed a risk assessment of how the impact
of climate change may affect the financial statements
and our audit. Level 1 listed investments make up
86.4% of the Group'’s total assets, for which fair value

Is determined as the quoted market price. Therefore,
we assessed that the financial statement estimate that
is primarily exposed to climate risk is the investment
property partfolio, for which the valuation assumptions
and estimates may be impacted by physical and policy
orlegat climate risks, such as floading or an increase

in climate related compliance expenditure. We held
discussions with cur own climate change professionals
to challenge our risk assessment. We assessed that,
whilst climate ¢change posed a risk 10 the determination
of investment property valuations in the current year,
this risk was not significant when considering both the
nature and domicile of the properties and the tenure of
unexpired leases. Therefore there was no significant
impact of this on our key audit matters.

We have read the disclosure of climate related narrative
in the front half of the financial statements and
considered consistency with the financial staterments
and our audit knowledge.

05 Going concern

The Directors have preparad the financial statements on
the going concern basis as they do not intend to liguidate
the Group aor Company or 1o cease their operations,

and as they have concluded that the Group's and the
Company's financial position means that this is realistic
They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over
their ability to continue as a going concern for at least a
year from the date of approval of the financial statements
{the going concern period .

We used cur knowledge of the Group, its industry, and the
general economic environment 1o identify the inherent
risks 1o its business model and analysed how those

risks might affect the Group’s and Company’s financial

66

resources or ability to continue operations gver the
going concern period. The risks that we considered most
likely to adversely affect the Group's and Company's
available financial rescurces and metrics relevant 1o debt
covenants over this period were:

+ The impact of a significant reduction in the valuation of
investments and the implications for the Group's and
Company's debt covenants;

» The liguidity of the investment portfolio and its ability
to meet the liabilities of the Group as and when they
fall due; and

» The cperational resilience of key service organisaticns,
on which the Group is dependent to continue.

We considered whether these risks could plausibly affect
the liquidity or covenant compliance in the going concern
period by assessing the degree of downside assumption
that, individually and collectively, could result in a liquidity
issue, taking into account the Group's or Company’s
current and projected cash and liquid investment
position (a reverse stress test ). We considered whether
the going concern disclosure in note 1 to the financial
staterments gives a full and accurate description of the
Directors' assessment of going concern, including the
identified risks and related sensitivities

Our conclusions based on this work:

+ We consider that the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial staterments is appropriate;

+ We have not identified, and concur with the Directors’
assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's
or Company's ability to continue as a going concern for
the going concern period;

- We have nothing material to add or draw attention to
in refation to the Directors’ statement in note T to the
financial staterments on the use of the going concern
basis of accounting with no material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt over the Group's or
Company’s use of that basis for the going concern
period, and we found the going concern disclosure in
note 1 1o be acceptable; and

- The related staterment under the Listing Rules set out

on page 60 is rmaterially consistent with the financial
staternents and our audit knowledge.

TR Property Investment Trust



However, as we cannot predict all future events cr
canditions and as subsequent events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that
were reasonable at the time they were made, the above
conclusions are not a guarantee that the Group or
Company will continue in operation.

06 Fraud and breaches of laws and
regulations ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

Toidentify risks of material misstatement due to fraud
(‘fraud risks) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud
or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

+ Enquiring of Directors as to the Group's high leve!
policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud,
as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud;

+ Assessing the segregation of duties in place between
the Directors, the Administrator and the Group's
Investrent Manager; and

+ Reading Board and Audit Committee minutes.

As required by auditing standards, we perform
procedures to address the risk of management override
of controls, in particular to the risk that management may
be in a position to make inapprepriate accounting entries.
We evaluated the design and implementation of the
controls over journal entries and other adjustments and
made inquiries of the Administrator about inappropriate
or unusual activity relating to the processing of journal
entries and other adjustments. ‘

We substantively tested all material post closing entries
and, based on the results of our risk assessment
procedures and understanding of the process, including
the segregation of duties between the Directors and the
Administrator, no further high risk journal entries or other
adjustments were identified.

On this audit we have rebutted the fraud risk related

to revenue recognition because the revenue is

non judgemental and straightforward, with limited
opportunity for manipulation. We did not identify any
significant unusual transactions or additional fraud risks.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non compliance with laws and
regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could
reasonably be expected to have a material effect on

the financial statements from our general commercial
and sector experience and through discussion with the
Directors, the Investment Manager and the Administrator
{as required by auditing standards) and diccussed with
the Directors the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations. As the Parent
Company is regulated, our assessment of risks involved
gaining an understanding of the control environment
inctuding the entity’s procedures for complying with
regulatory requirements.

The potential effect of these laws and regulaticns on the
financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations
that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related
companies legislation), distributable profits legislation,
and its qualification as an Investment Trust under UK
taxation legislation, any breach of which could lead to
the Group losing various deductions and exemptions
from UK corporation tax, and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of
our procedures on the related financial statement items.

We assessed the legality of the distributions made by
the Company in the period based on comparing the
dividends paid to the distributable reserves prior to each
distribution.

Secondly , the Group is subject to many other laws and
requlations where the consequences of non compliance
could have a material effect cn amounts or disclosures
in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the
following areas as those most likely to have such an
effect: money laundering, data protection, bribery and
corruption fegislation and certain aspects of company
legislation recognising the financial nature of the
Group’s activities and its legal form. Auditing standards
limit the reqguired audit procedures to identify non
compliance with these laws and reguiations to enquiry
of the Directors and the Administrator and inspection of
regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore, if
a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us
or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not
detect that breach.
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

06 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations ability
to detect convirnad

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud

or breaches of law or regulation

Qwing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an
unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even
though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the
further removed non compliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures
required by auditing standards would identify it

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk
of non detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are
designed to detect materiai misstaternent. We are not
responsible for preventing non compliance or fraud and
cannot be expected 1o detect non compliance with all
laws and regulations.

07 We have nothing to report on the other
information in the Annual Report

The Directors are responsible for the other information
presented in the Annual Report together with the financial
statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accerdingly, we do
not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated
below, any form of assurance conclusion theregn.

Our respansibility is to read the other information ang, in
doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein is
materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial
staternents or our audit knowledge Based solely on that
work we have not identified material misstaternents in
the other information.

Strategic report and directors’ report
Based saolely on our work on the other information:

« we have not identified material misstaiements in the
strategic report and the directors’ report;

+in our apinion the information given in those reporis
for the financial year is consistent with the financial
staternents; and

< in our opimon those reports have been prepared In
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

68

Directors’ remuneration report

In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Disciosures of emerging and principal risks and longer
term viability

We are required to perform procedures 10 identify
whether there is a material inconsistency between the
directors disclosures in respect of emerging and principal
risks and the Long-Term Viability Statement, and the
financial statements and our audit knowledge.

Based on those procedures, we have nothing material to
add or draw attention to in relation to:

the Directors’ confirmation within the Long-Term
Viability Statement on pages 30 and 37 that they have
carried out a robust agsessment of the emerging

and principal risks facing the Group, including those
that would threaten its business model, future
performance, sclvency and liquidity;

the Principal Risks and Uncertainties disclosures
describing these risks and how emerging risks are
identified, and explaining how they are being managed
and mitigated; and

the Directors’ explanation in the Long-Term Viability
Statement of how they have assessed the prospects
of the Group, over what pericd they have done so and
why they considered that period to be appropriate, and
their statement as to whether they have & reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue

in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due

over the period of their agsessment, including any
related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualifications or agsumptions.

We are also required to review the Long-Term Viability
Staterment, set out on pages 30 and 31 under the Listing
Rules Based on the above procedures, we have concluded
that the above disclosures are materially consistent with
the financial statements and our audit knewledge.

Our work is imited to assessing these matters in the
context of only the knowledge acquired during our
financial staterments audit. As we cannat predict all
future events or conditions and as subsequent events
may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with
judgements that were reasonabfe at the time they
were made, the absence of anything to report on these
statements is not a guarantes as to the Group's longer
term viability.
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Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to perform procedures to identify
whether there is a material inconsistency between the
Directors’ corporate governance disclosures and the
financial statements and our audit knowledge.

Based on those procedures, we have concluded that
each of the following is materially consistent with the
financial statements and our audit knowledge:

- the Directors’ statement that they consider that the
annual report and financial statements taken as
a whale is fair, balanced and understandable, and
provides the information necessary for shareholders
10 assess the Group's position and performance,
business model and strategy;

+ the section of the annual report describing the work of
* the Audit Committee, including the significant issues
that the qudit committee considered in relation to
the financial statements, and how these issues were
addressed; and

+ the section of the annual report that describes
the review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems.

We are required to review the part ¢f Corporate
Governance Statement relating to the Group's
compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified by the Listing Rules for our
review. We have nothing to report in this respect.

08 We have nothing to report on the other
matters on which we are required to report
by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are reqguired to report

te you if, In our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or
returns adeqguate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

+ the parent Company financial statements and the part

of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns: or

« certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration
specified by law are not made; or

« we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit,

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

09 Respective Responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on
page 62 , the Directors are responsible for: the
preparation of the financial statements including being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation cf financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to frand or error;
assessing the Group and parent Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and using the gaing
concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to
liquidate the Group or the parent Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud
or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 13As (UK) will always detect 2 material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the kasis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is
provided on the FRC's website at www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibitities

The Company is required to include these financial
statements in an annual financial report prepared using
the single electronic reparting format specified in the
TD ESEF Regulation. This auditor's report provides no
assurance over whether the annual financial report has
been prepared in accordance with that format.
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

70 The purpose of our audit work and to
whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company's members,
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and the terms of our engagement
by the Company. Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state {o the Company’s members
those matiers we are required to state 1o them in an
auditor's report and the further matters we are required
to state to them in accordance with the terms agreed
with the company, for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Philip Merchant (Senior Statutory Auditor) for and on
behalf of KPMG LLP Statutory Auditor

i tere s AnLonatants

KPIG
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Group statem

PoT ey At e Ge a0 L

LU

{income
Investmentincome

Other operating income
Gross rental income

Service charge income

Gains on investments held

at fair value 1
Nel movernent on foreign

exchange; investments

and loan notes

Net movement on foreign

exchange; cash and cash

equivalents

Net returns on contracts for

difference 1

Netreturn on total returnswap 1

Total Income

Expenses

Management and performance
fees

Direct property expenses, rent
payahle and service charge costs
Other administrative expenses

Tota! operating expenses

Operating profit/{loss)

Finance costs B o

Profit/(foss) from operations
before tax
Taxation

Total comprehensive incom

Earnings/{loss) per Ordinary
share

3

6,,

T

8

9

Revenue:,

ent of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 March 2021

Revenue Capital Tota!
" Return Return Return
- £000 £'000 £000 £000
44170 - 44170 36,557 - 36,557
5 - 5 6/ - 67
2,773 - 2,773 3,185 3,185
1,103 - 1,103 1,051 - 1,057
- 249,038 249,038 - 196,582 196,582
- 1,136 1,136 (3,144) (3.144)
- 637 637 - (1.474) (1.474)
5,701 16,361 22,062 3320 17978 21,298
L SO R 4 - :) N 4 :.:)
53752 267,172 320924 44180 209754 253934
(1,663} {29,477) (31,140) {1,556) (14,328) {15884}
(1,435) - (1,435) (1,321) (1321)
_ Q@e2ny,  (608)  (2229) @ (1231)  (e04) (1,835
_(4719)  (30,085)  (34804)  (4,108) (14932)  (13,040)
49,033 237,087 286,120 40,072 194,822 234,894
. (629)  (1.886)  (2515)  (416) (1969  (2385)
48,404 235,201 283,605 39,656 192,853 232,509
(4967) 3049  (1918) _(767) 2,667 1,500
43437 238,250 281,687 38889 195520 234,409
13.69p 75.07p 88.76p 12.25n 61.67p 73.86p

The Total column of this staternent represents the Group's Statement of Comprehensive income, prepared

in accordance with UK-adopted International accounting Standards. The Revenue Return and Capital Return
columns are supplementary to this and are prepared under guidance published by the Association of investment
Companies. Al items in the above staternent derive from continuing operations.

The Group does nat have any other income or expense that is not included in the above statement therefore

"Total comprehensive income” is also the profit for the year.

All income Is attributable to the shareholders of the parent company.

The notes from pages 76 to 100 form part of these Financial Statements
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Group and Company statement of changes in equity

Group
UL ghare™ ' Capital L
Share - - Premium Redemption Retained - '
... Capital  -Account "~ Reserve - Earnirigs
For the year ended 31 March 2022 NCICLE . - £000 £000 . £000 -0 £000 .
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
Total comprehensive income - - - 281,687 281,687
Dividends paid B 17 - - - (45,381) {45,381)
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Company
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes - £000
At 31 h;;rch 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
Total comprehensive income - - - 281,687 281,687
Cividends paid - 17 - - - (45,381) (45,381)
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Group
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
At31 March 2020 ' 79,338 43162 43,971 960,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid a7 - - B (44.429) (44,429)
At 31 March 2021 79,328 43,162 43971 1,159,962 1,326,433
Company
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total

For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes £000 £'000 £000 £7000 £'000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income T - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 17 - - - (44,429)  (44,429)
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
The notes from pages 76 to 100 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Group and Company balance sheets

gaal A3 daock SaEe

Company
2021
£000
Non-current assets
investments held at fair value i0 1,506,436 1,506,436 1,400,516 1,400,516
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - 36,297 - 43,312
Investmentsheldforsale 30 48980 =~ 48980 - N -
1,555,416 1,591,713 1,400,516 1,443,828
Deferred taxation asset ot e3 903 686 686
1,556,319 1,592,616 1,401,202 1,444,514
Current assets
Debtors 12 97,673 97,208 60,990 60,520
Cashandcashequivatents 8109 8107 = 29114 29012
129,782 129,315 90,104 89,632
Current liabilities 13 (66,109) (101,939) (107,280) (150,120)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 63,673 27,376 (17176} (60,488)
Total agsets plus net current
assets/(liabilities) 1,615,992 1,619,992 1,384,026 1,384,026
Non-current liahilities 13 (57,253) (57,253) (57,593} (57,593)
Net assets 1,562,739 1,562,739 1,326,433 1,376,433
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 14 79,338 79,338 79,338 79,338
Share premiurm account 15 43,162 43,162 43162 43162
Capital redemnption reserve 15 43,971 43,971 43,977 43971
Retained earnings 16 1,396,268 1,396,268 1,159,962 1,159,962
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,562,739 1,562,739 1,326,433 1,326,433
Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share 19 492.43p 492.43p 41797p 417.97p

These financial statements were approved by the directars of TR Property Investment Trust ple (Company No:84492) and

authorised for issue on 13 June 2022

Daved Wation

D Watson
Director

The notes from pages 76 to 100 faorm part of these Financial Statements.
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d Company cash flow statements

7 Company Group Company
2022 2021 2021
© £000 £000 £000
Reconciliation of pfaﬁt from operations o S o o
before tax to net cash outfiow from
operating activities
Profit from operations before tax 283,605 283,605 222,609 231,844
Finance costs 2,515 2,515 2,385 2,385
Gains on investments and derivatives held
at fair value through profit or loss (265,399) (258,387) (214,372) (207,255)
Net moverment on foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents and loan notes (977) (977} (179 (179)
Scrip dividends included in investment
income and net returns on contracts for
difference (10,839) {10,839) (B.489) (8,489)
Sales of investments 544,370 544,370 353,167 353,167
Purchases of investments (430,830) (430,831) (370,496) (370,496)
Decrease / (increase) in prepayments and
accrued income 8 8 {(102) (102)
(Increase) / decrease in sales settlement
debtor (32,871) (32,871) 4,753 4,753
Increase / (decrease) in purchase
gettlement creditor 5170 5,170 (5,781) {5781}
Decrease / (increase) in other debtors 2,951 2,951 {(11,436) {11,436}
Increase / (decrease) in other creditors 13,809 6,798 245 {4,001}
Net cash (flow/outflow) from operating
activities before interest and taxation 111,512 111,512 (15,590) (15,590}
Interest paid (2,515) (2,515) (2,607} (2,607}
Taxation paid o (1,258) {1,258) {1,915) (1,915
Net cash (flow/outflow) from
operating activities 107,739 107,739 (20,112) (20,112}
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (45,381) (45,381) (44,429) (44,429)
(Repayment)/Drawdown of loans ' (60,000} {60,000) 55,000 55,000
Net cashflow from financing activities (105,381) (105,381) 10,577 10,571
Increase/(decrease) in cash ’ 2,358 2,358 (9,541) (9.541)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 29,114 29,112 40,129 40,127
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents 637 637 (1,474) (1,474)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 32,109 32,107 29,114 20112
The notes from pages 76 1o 100 form part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

07 Accounting policies

76

The financial statemants for the yvear ended 31 March 2022 have been prepared on a going concern basis, in accordance with
UK-adopted international accounting standards and In confermity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial
staternents have also been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice, "Financial Statements of
Investment Trust Companies and Venture Capital Trusts, (SORPY, to the extent that it is consistent with Uk-adopted Internationai
accounting Standards.

I assessing Going Concern the Board has made a detailed assessment of the zbility of the Company and the Group to meet
its liabilities as they fall due, including stress and liquidity tests which considered the effects of substantial falls in investment
vajuations, substantial reductions in revenues received and reductions in market hquidity including the effects of the likely
ongoing economic impact of the war in Ukraine. The Board is satisfied with the operational resilience of the Company's

third party service providers as warking practices change foliowing the COVID-18 pandemic, but continues to monitor their
performance.

in light of the testing carried out, the liquidity of the level 1 assets held by the Company and the significant net asset value,
and the net current asset pasition of the Group and Parent Company, the Directors are satisfied that the Company and
Group have adequate financial resources te continue in operation for at least the next 12 months following the signing of
the financial statements and therefore it is appropriate to adopt the going concern tasis of accounting.

The Group and Company financial statements are expressed in Sterling, which is their functional and presentational
currency. Sterling is the functional currency because it is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates. Values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000) except where otherwise indicated.

Key estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements necessarily requires the exercise of judgement, both in application of
accounting policies, which are set out below, and in the selection of assumptions used in the caleulation of estimates.
These estimates and judgements are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are continually evaluated based on historical
experience and cther factors However, actual results may differ from these estimates. The only key estimate

is considered to be the valuation of investment properiies. See section (f) of this note There are not considered

to be any key judgements.

a) Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statermnents of the Company and its subsidiaries to 31 iMarch
2022 All the subsidiaries of the Company have been consolidated in these financial statements. In accordance with
IFRS10 the Company has been designated as an investment entity on the basis that:

- it abtains funds from nvestors and provides those investors with investmant management services,

It commits to its investors that its business purpese is to invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation and
investment income; and

- [t measures and evaluates performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Each of the subsidiaries of the Company was established for the sole purpose of operating of supporting the investment
operations of the Company (including raising additional financing), and is not itself an investment entity. IFRS 10 sets out
ihat in the case of controlled entities that support the investment activity of the investment entity, those entities should be
consolidated rather than presented as investments at fair value. Accordingly the Company has consclidated the results
and financial positions of those subsidiaries,

Subsidiaries are consolidated frorm the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Company abitaing control, and continue
to be consalidated until the date that such control ceases. The financia) staternenis of subsidiaries used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are based on consistent accounting policies. Allintra-group balances and transactions, including
unrealised profits ansing therefrom, are eliminated

b) Income

Dividends receivable on equity shares are treated as revenue for the year on an ex-dividend basis Where no ex-dividend
date is available, dividends receivabie an or before the year end are treated as revenue for the year. Provision is made for
any dividends not expected to be received Where the Group has elected to receive these dividends in the form of additional
shares rather than cash the amount of cash dividend foregone is recognised as income Oifferences between the value

of shares received and the cash dividend foregone are recognised In the capital returns of the Group Statement of
Comaprehensive Income The fixed retumns on debt securities are recognised on a time apportionrment basis so as 10 reflect
the effective yield on each such security interest receivable from cash and short term deposits is accrued to the end of the
year. Stock lending income Is recagnised on an accruals basis. Underwriting commission is taken to revenue, unless any
shares underwritten are required to be taken up, in which case the proportionate commission received is deducted from
the cost of the Investrment

Recognition of property rental income is set out in section () of this note.

Recognition of income from contracts for difference s set out in section (g} of this note

TR Property invastmeant Trust
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Accounting policies continued
c) Expenses

All expenses and finance costs are accounted for on an accruals basis. An analysis of retained earnings broken down into
revenue and capital items is given in note 16. In arriving at this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue
items except as follows:

+ Expenses which are incidental to the acquisition or disposal of an investment;

* Expenses are presented as capital where a connection with the maintenance or enhancement of the value of the
investments can be demonstrated:; this includes irrecoverable VAT incurred on cosis relating to the extension of
residential leases as premiums received for extending or terminating leases are recognised in the capilal account.

- One quarter of the base management fee is charged to revenue, with three guarters allocated to capital return to reflect
the Board's expectations of long term investment returns. All performance fees are charged to capital return;

» The fund administration, depositary, custody and company secretarial services are charged directly to the Company and
are included within 'Other administrative expenses' in note 6. These expenses are charged on the same basis as the base
management fee; one quarter to income and three quarters to capital.

d) Finance costs

The finance costin respect of capital instruments other than equity shares is calculated so as o give a constant rate
of return on the outstanding balance One quarter of the finance cost is charged to revenue and three quarters to
capital return.

e) Taxation

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited or charged to equity.
Otherwise income tax is recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income,

The tax effect of different iterns of expenditure is allocated hetween capital and revenue using the Group's effective rate of
tax for the yvear. The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because
of temporary differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

In accordance with the recommendations of the SORP the allocation method used to calculate tax relief on expenses
presented against capital returns in the supplementary information in the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the
“marginal basis”. Under this basis, if taxable income is capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the
revenie return column of the Statement of Comprehensive Income, then no tax relief is transferred 1o the capital column.

Deferred tax is the tax expected 1o be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences

and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utiliseg.

The Campany is an investment trust under $.1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, is net liable for tax on
capital gains. Capital gains arising in subsidiary companies are subject to capital gains tax.

f) Investment property

Investment property is measured initially at cost including transaction costs. Transaction costs include transfer taxes,
professional fees for legal services and initial leasing commissions 1o bring the property to the condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating. The carrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment propearty
at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. The purchase and sale of properties is recognised to be
effected on the date unconditional contracts are exchanged.

Subsequert to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair values are included in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

Investment property is derecagnised when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property
are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year of disposal.

Gaing or losses on the disposal of investment property are determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds
and the carrying value of the asset at the date of disposal.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investrnent properties at fair value in accordance with IFRS 13, revalued twice a year, with changes
in fair values being recognised in the Group Staterment of Comprehensive Income. The Group engaged Knight Frank as
independent valuation specialists to determine fair value as at 31 March 2022,
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

01

78

Accounting policies coni L.
Valuations of investment properties

Determination of the fair value of investment properties has been prepared on the basis defined by the RICS Valuation -
Gichat Standards (The Red Book Global Standards) as follows:

"The estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeabty, prudently
and without compulsion”

The valuation takes into account future cash flow from assets (such as lettings, tenants’ profiles, future revenue streams,
capital values of fixtures and fittings, plant and machinery, any environmental matters and the gverall repair and condition
of the property) and discount rates applicable to those assels. These assumptions are based on local market conditions
existing at the balance sheet date -

In arriving at their estimates of fair values as at 31 March 2022, the valuers have used their market knowledge and
professional judgement and have not only relied solely on historical transactional comparables Examples of inputs to the
valuation can be seen in the sensitivity analysis disclosed in note 10 (e}

Held for sale investment are presented separately on the face of the Balance Sheet.

Held for sale
Investment property classified as held for sale is measured fair value.

This condition is reégarded as met only when the investment property is availabte for immediate sale in its present
condition and the sale is highly probable.

Management must be committed to a plan for sale with an active programme to identify a buyer at a reasonable price in
relation to its fair value which shou!d be expecied to qualify for recognition as a complated sale within one year from the
date of classification.

Rental income

Rertal income receivatzte under operating leases is recognised on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease, except for
contingent rental income which is recognised when it arises

Incentives for lessees to enter into lease agreements or other negotiated rent free periods agreed are spread evenly over
the lease term, even if the payments are not made on such a basis. The lease term is the non-cancellable pericd of the
lease together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of
the lease, the directors are reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that option. Premiurns received to terminate or
extend leases are recognised in the capital account of the Group Statement of Comprehensive income when they arise.

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

Income arising from expenseas recharged to tenants is recognised in the period in which the expense can be contractually
recovered. Service charges and other such receipts are included gross of the related costs in revenue as the directors
consider that the Group acts as principal in this respect.

g) Investments

When a purchase or sale is made under contract, the terms of which require delivery within the timeframe of the relevant
market, the investrments concerned are recognised or derecognised on the trade date.

All the Group's investments are defined under IFRS as investrments designated as fair value through profit or loss but are
also described in these financial statements as investments held at fair value

Allinvestments are designated upon initial recognition as held at fair value, and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair
value, which, for quoted investments, is deemed to be closing prices for stocks sourced from European stock exchanges and for
SETS stocks sourced from the London Stock Exchange SETS s the Lendon Stock Exchange electronic trading service covering
most of the market inchuding &l the FTSE Al -Share and the most iquid AIM constituents Unguoted investments or investmants for
which there is only an inactive market are held at fair value which s based on valuations made by the diractors in accordance with
IPEVCA guidelines and using current market prices, trading conditions and the general economic climate.

in its financial statements the Cormpany recagnises the fair value of its investmeants in subsidiaries as being the adjusted nat asset
value. The subsidiaries have histancally been holding vehicles for direct propenty investrment or financing vehicles No assets are
currently held through the subsidiary structure and all financing instruments are directly held by the Company.

Changes in the fair value are recognizsed in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Incorne On disposal, realised gains
and losses are also recognised in the Group Staterment of Comprehensive income.

Derivatives

Derivatives are held at fair value based on traded prices. Gains and losses on derivative transactions are recognised in the
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses on CFDs and total return swaps resuliing from movements
in the price of the underlying stock are treated as capital Dividends from the underlying investment and financing costs of
CFDs and total return swaps are treated as revenue/capital expenses

Gains and losses on forward currency contracts used for capital hedging purposes are treated as capital

TR Property Investment Trust
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Accounting policies canlmu.s
Derivatives continued
Contracts for Difference (‘CFDs") are synthetic equities and are valued by reference to the investments' underlying market values.

The sources of the returns under the derivative contract (e g. notional dividends, financing costs, interest returns and
capital changes) are allocated to the revenue and capital accounts in alignment with the nature of the underlying source
of income and in accordance with the guidance given in the AIC SORP. Notional dividend income or expenses arising

on long or short positions are apportioned wholly to the revenue account. Notional interest expense on long positions

is apportioned between revenue and capital in accordance with the Board's long term expected returns of the Company
{currently determinad to be 25% to the revenue account and 75% to capital reserves). Changes in value relating to
nnderlying price movements of sccurities in relation tu CFD exposures are allocated wholly to capital reserves.

h) Borrowings, loan notes and debentures

All loans and¢ debentures are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, less issue costs where
applicable. After initial recognition, all interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on settlernent. The costs of arranging
any interest bearing loans are capitalised and amortised over the life of the loan on an effective interest rate basis.

i) Foreign currency transliation
Transactions involving foreign currencies are converted at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

l':oreign currency monetary assets and liabllities are translated into Sterling at the rate ruling on the balance sheet date
Foreign exchange differences are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amorlised cost and comprise cash in hand and demand deposits.

k) Dividends payable to shareholders

_Interirn dividends are recogrised in the period in which they are paid and final dividends are recognised when approved

by shareholders.
1) Adoption of new and revised Standards

Standards and interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previcus consclidated financial statements except as
noted below.

IAS 39, IFRS 4, 7, 2 and 16 Amendments - Interest Rate Benchrmark Reform (Phase 2) (effective 1 January 2021) IBOR reform
refers to the global reform of interest rate benchmarks which includes the replacernent of some interbank offered rates ([BOR)

with alternative benchmark rates. To ensure users of financial statements can understand the effect of the reform on a company’s
financiat instrurnents and risk management strategy, additional informaticn on the nature and extent of risks to which the company
is exposed arising from financial instruments subject to IBOR reform is required. In addition, details of the company's progress in
completing its transitions to alternative benchmark rates is required.

IFRS 16 Amendments -Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions (effective 1 April 2021) the May 2020 amendments, which introduced
an optional practical expedient that simplifies how a lessee accounts for rent concessions that are a direct consequence of
Covid-19, have been extended to lease payments criginally due on or before 30 June 2022,

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued before the reporting date that become effective after 31 March 2022 are not expected to have

a material effect on equity or profit for the subseguant period. The Group has not early adopted any new International
Financial Reparting Standard or Interpretation. Standards, amendments and interpretations issued tut not yet effective up
to the date of issuance of the Group's financial statements are listed below:

IAS T Amendments - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (effective date amended to 1 January 2023).
The amendments specify the reguirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

IAS 1 Amendments - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (effective 1 January 2023). The amendments reguire an entity to
disclose its material accounting policy information instead of its significant accounting policies. The amendments contain
guidance and examples on identifying matenal accounting policy information. The amendments are not expected to have
a material impact on the Graup's financial statements.

IAS 8 Amendments - Definition of Accounting Estimates (effective 1 January 2023) The amendrnents define accounting
estimates as "monetary amaounts in inancial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. The amendments
also clarify the interaction between an accounting policy and an accounting estimate. The amendments are not expected
to have a material impact on the Group's financial statements

[AS 12 Amendments - Deferred Tax related 1o Assels and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction {effective 1 January 2023),
The amendmients require entities with certain assets to recognise deferred tax on particular transactions that, on initial recognition,
give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

02

03

04

80

investment income

2021

£'000
Dividends from UK fisted investments - T 3753
Dividends from overseas listed investments 18,656
Scrip dividends from listed investments 10,693 7,482
Property income distributions 9,027 6,666
44170 36,557

Net rental income

Gross rental income

Service charge income

Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs {(1,435) (1.321)

Operating leases

The Group has entered into commercial leases on its property portfolio. Commercial property leases typically have lease
terms between 5 and 15 years and include clauses to gnabie periodic upward revision of the rental charge according to
prevailing market conditions Some leases contain oplions to break before the end of the lease term

Future minimum rentals under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are as follows.

2021
£'000

i Ty—eér‘ﬁ”\rﬂﬂ O .. - R YT ——T T
After 1 year but not more than 5 years 10,250 10,000
More than 5 years , 17,500 19,000
30,550 32,000

Other operating income

Interest receivable - 1

interest on refund of overseas withholding tax 5 44
Underwriting commission - 22
5 657

Underwriting is part of the process of introducing new securities 1o the market. The Company may participate in the
underwriting of investes companies’ securities, as one of a number of participants, for which compensation in the form
of commission is received. The Company only participetes in underwriting having assessed the risks involved and in
securities in which 1t is prepared to increase its holding should that be the outcome The commission earned is taken
1o revenue unless any securities underwritten are required Lo be taken up in which case the proportionate commission
is deducted from the cost of the investment. During the year the company participated in no underwriting (20217 - one
underwriting agreement).

TR Property Investment Trust
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05 Management and performance fees

20220 9022 022 2021 2021 2021
Revenue .. Caj S Tg Revenue Capital Total
g . £000, . T - £000 £000 £000 2
Management fee 1,663 4,988 6,651 1556 4660 6295 é"
Perfarmance fee - 24,489 24,489 - 9,659 9,659 -‘g
1,663 29,477 31,140 1,556 14,328 15,884 +
A summary of the terms of the managament agrecment is giver i Lhe Report of the Directors on page 43.
06 Other administrative expenses
2021 @
£000 E
- - 3
Directors' fees (Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 56 to 58) 220 232 a
Auditor's remuneration:
- for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial
Statements 82 80
Legal fees 21 15
Taxation fees 77 69
Gther administrative expenses 199 199
Other expenses 869 454
Irrecoverable VAT 153 182
Expenses charged to Revenue 1,621 1,231
Expenses charged to Capital 608 604
2,229 1,835

Other administrative expenses include depasitary, custody and company secretarial services. These expenses are
tharged on the same basis as the base management fee; 25% to income and 75% to capital. Total cther administrative
expenses charged to both income and capital are £807,000 (2021 £797,000).

Other expenses include broker fees, marketing and PR costs, Directors’ Nationat Insurance and recruitment, Registrars
and listing fees, and annual report and cther publication printing and distribution costs. These expenses are charged
solely to the revenue account.

VAT on costs incurred in connection with the extension of the residential leases on The Colonnades are charged to the
capital account.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

07 Finance costs

Loan notes, bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year

Loan notes repayabile between 2 - 5 yéars
Loan notes repayable after 5 years
_ HMRG interest: release of FI! GLO provision

Amount allocated to Capital

Amount allocated to Revénue

08 Taxation
a) Analysis of charge in the year

UK corporation tax at 19%

(2021: 19%) 2,832 (2,832) -
Oversesstaxation 2135 - 2136
4967 (2,832} 2,135

{Over)/under provision in respect
of prioryears - - -

4,967 {2,832) 2,135
Deferredtaxation - @17 @7
Current tax charge for the year 4967 (3049 @ 1918

82

2021

£000

1,241

1,384

- (240)

2,515 2,385

(1,886) (1,969)

629 418

2021 2021 2021

Revenue Capitaf Total

£000 £'000 £000

1,989 {1,989)

866 8 B/4

2,855 (1,981) 874
_aesy o (1980}

875 (1.981) {(1,106)
_Qosy (ese) . (794)
__ 767 (2867)  {1.900)
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08 Taxation conlried

b} Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year is lower (2027: lower) than the standard rate of corparation tax in the UK for a large
company of 19% (2021: 19%).

The difference is explained below:

2021 2021 2021
Revenue Capital Total
£000 £'000 £000
Net profit/{loss} on crdinary
activities before taxation 48,404 235,201 283,605 39,656 192,853 232,509
Corporaticn tax charge at 19%
(2021:19%) 9,197 44,688 53,885 7,535 36,642 44177
Effects of:
Non taxable gains on investments - (47,317) (47,317) - (37,351) (37,351}
Currency rmovements not taxable - (337) {(337) - 877 877
Tax reliaf on expenses charged to
capital - 3,243 3,243 - 139 139
Non-taxable returns - (3,109) {3,109) {23) (3,380) (3,403)
Non-taxable UK dividends (603) - (603) (972) - (972)
Non-taxable overseas dividends (5.810) - (5,810) (4,573) - (4,573)
Overseas withholding taxes 2,135 - 2,135 866 8 874
Deferred tax movement - 217) {217) (108) (686) (794)
(Cver)/under provision inrespect
of prior years - - - {1,980) - (1,980}
Disallowable expenses 26 - 26 19 - 19
Deferred tax not provided 22 - 22 3 1,084 1,087
- 4,967 (3,049) 1,918 767 (2,657) (1,900)
c) Provision for deferred taxation
The amounts for deferred taxation provided at 25% (2021: 19%) comprise:
Group
2021 2021 2021
Revenue Capital Total
£000 £'000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances - - - - - -
Unutilised losses carried forward - {303) (e03) - {686) (686)
Shown as:
Deferred tax asset ~ - {903) (903) - (686) (686)
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

08 Taxation coriiri-d

¢) Provision for deferred taxation continued
Company

2021 2021 2021
Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £000 £'000
Unutilised losses carried forward (903) P03y - (B86) (686}
Shown as:
Deferred tax agset ) - (903) (%03 - (686) (686)
The movement in provision in the year is as follows:
Group 2021 2021 2021
Revenue Capital Total
£000 £000

Pravision at the start of the year -

(686)

Accelerated capital allowances - - - {108) - (108}
Unutilised losses carried forward - (217) @7y - (e86)  (686)
Provision at the end of the year - (903} (903} - (586) (686)
Company
2021 2021 2021
Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £000 £600
Provision at the start of the year - (686) (686} 108 - 108
Accelerated capital allowances - - - (108) - (108)
Unutilised losses carried forward - 217) (217) - (686) (686)
Provisionattheendoftheyear - {903) {903) - (686) (686)

The Group has not recognised deferrad tax assets of £8,007,769 (2021: £2,703,000) arising as a result of logses carried
forward It is considered too uncertain that the Group will generate profits in the relevant companies that the losses
would be available to offset aganst and, on this basis, the deferred tax asset in respect of these expenses has not
been recognised.

Due to the Company's status as an Investment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required to
obiain approval for the foreseeahle future, the Campany has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains arising on the
revaluation or disposal of investments.

09 Earning per share
Earnings/{loss) per Ordinary share
The earnings per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital, as below.

Year ended

31 March 2021

£000

Net revenue profit 43,437 38,889
Met capital proft - 238,250 195520
Net total profit 281,687 234,409
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year 317,350,980 317,350,980
pence

Revenue earnings per share 13.69 12.25
Capitalearningspershare _ .7s8%7 . 6l&1
Earnings per Ordinary share ] 88.76 73.86

The Group has no securities in issue that could dilute the return per Ordinary share. Therefore the basic and diluted return per
Ordinary share are the same.

84 TR Property Investrment Trust
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10 Investments held at fair value
a} Analysis of investments

Group Company
i 2021 2027 2
£000 £000 £'000 E
— .. e - i i By LRI e e o 2 A e s e e e o
Listed in the United Kingdom 516,076 516,076 394,176 394,176 g
Unlisted in the United Kingdom 2,341 2,341 1,468 1,468 4
Listed Overseas 940,744 240,741 021,801 921,801
Investment properties 47,275 47,275 83,071 83,071
Investments held forsale 48,980 48,980 o - . -
Investments held at fair value 1,555,416 1,555,416 1,400,516 1,400,516
Investments in subsidiaries g
at fair value 5 - 36,297 N - 43312 g
B 1,555,416 1,591,713 1,400,516 1,443,828 S
2]

Investments held for sale: Mixed used property, the Colonnades, London, W2, is currently under offer with a sale expected
1o complete by the end of June 2022 No impairment losses or reversals are anticipated.

b} Business segment reporting

Gross

Valuation Net Net § revenue

31 March  additions/ appreciation/ 31 Maich

2021 (disposals) {depreciation 2021

E£'000 £000 £00 £000

Listed investments 1.315977 (94,224) 235067 1,456,820 43,775 36,403

Unlisted investments 1,468 (42} 915 2,341 395 154
Contracts for difference (141) (8563) 16,361 7,657 5,701 3320

Total investments segment 1,317,304 (102,829) 252,343 1,466,818 49,871 39,877

DBirect property segment 83,071 128 13,056 96,255 3,876 4,236

1,400.375 (102,701) 265399 1,563,073 53,747 44113

In seeking to achieve its investment objective, the Company invests in the shares and securilies of property cocmpanies
and property related businesses internationally and also in investment property located in the UK. The Company therefore
considers that there are two distinct reporling segments, investments and direct property, which are used for evaluating
performance and allocation of resources. The Board, which is the principal decision maker, receives information onthe
two segments on a regular basis. Whilst revenue streams and direct property costs can be attributed to the reporting
segments, general administrative expenses cannot be split to allow a profit for each segment to be determined. The
assets and gross revenues for each segment are shown above,

The property costs included within note 3 are £1,435,000 (2021: £1,321,000) and deducting these cosis from the direct
property gross revenue above would result in net income of £2,441,000 (2021 £2,915,000) for the direct praperty
reporting segment.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

10 Investments held at fair value o

¢} Geographica! segment reporting

; Gross
Valuation Net Net £ revenue
31 March  additions/ appreciation/ 31 March
2021 (disposals) (depreciation) 2021
£'000 £000 £000 § ) 80 £'000
UK listed equities and convertibles 394,176 30,844 1,056 516,076 11,731 10,265
UK unlisted equities 1,468 - 873 2,341 395 154
UK direct property’ 83,071 128 13,056 96,258 3,876 4,236
Continental European listed equities 927,801 (125710) 144053 940,744 32,044 26138
1,400,516 {94,138) 245,038 1,555,416 48,046 40,793
UK caontracts far difference? 584 (0,227} 10,270 1,627 1,616 1,242
European contracts for difference?  ~ (725) 664 5091 6,030 4085 2078
1400375  (102700) 265399 1563073 53747 44113
Included in the above figures are purchase costs of £486,000 (2021: £747,000} and sales costs of £259,000 {2021:
£184,000)

These camprise mainly starmp duty and commission

The Company received £544,225 000 (2021 £329,018,000) from investments, including direct property, sold in the
year. The book cost of these investments when they were purchased was £356,438,000 (20271: £266,450,000). These
investments have been revalued over time and until they were sold any unrealised gains/losses were included in the fair
value of the investments.

' Netadditions/(disposals) includes £366,000 (2027 £465,000) of capital expenditure. Net appreciation/{depreciation)
includes amounts in respect of rent free periods.

Gross revenue for contracts for difference relates to dividends receivable, on an ex dividend basis, on the underlying
positions held, The appreciation/{depreciation) in CFDs relates to the movement in fair value in the year

The depreciation in the TRS relates to the movernent in fair value in the year until maturity.

d) Substantial share interests

The Group held interests in 3% or mare of any class of capital in 8 companies (2021 10 companies) in which it invests.
None of these investments is considered significant in the context of these financial statements, See note 21 on pages 99
and 160 for further details of subsidiary investments.

e} Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet either at their fair value {investments) or the
balance sheet amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value {(due from brokers, dividends and interest receivable, due
to brokers, accruals and cash at bank).

Fair value hierarchy disclosures

Categorisation within the hierarchy has been determinad on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement of the relevant asset as follows:

Level 1 -valued using guoted prices in an active market for identical assets.

Level 2 - valued by reference to valuation technigues using observable inputs other than guoted prices within Level 1.
Level 3 - valued by reference to valuation technigues using inpuls that are not based on observable market data

The valuation technigues used by the Group are explained in the accounting policies in notes 1 (f) and 1 (g).

a6 TR Froperty Investment Trust



10 Investments held at fair value corirnod

@) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The table bhelow sets out fair value measurements using IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy.

Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

At 31 March 2022

Equity investments

1,456,820 - 1,459,161

Investment properties - - 96,255 96,255
Contracts for difference - 7,657 - 7,657
Foreign exchange forward contracts - 2,736 - 2,736
1,456,820 10,393 98,596 1,565,809

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2021 £000 £000 £000 £000
Equity investments 1,315,977 - 1,468 1,317,445
Investment properties - 83,071 83,071
Contracts for difference - (141) (1471)
Foreign exchange ferward contracts (1,707 o {1.107)
1315877 {1,248) 84,539 1,399,268

The table above represents the Group's fair value hierarchy. The Company's fair value hierarchy is identical except for the
Inclusion of the fair value of the investment in subsidiaries which at 31 March 2022 was £36,297,000 (2021: £43,312,000).
These have been categorised as level 3 in both years. The movement in the year of £7,015,000 (20217: £7,117,000) is the
change in fair value in the year, which inctudes a distribution from a subsidiary company of £7,000,000. The total financial
assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2022 was £1,591,713,000 (2021: £1,443,828,000).

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

31 March Appreciation /

2021  Purchases Sales (Depreciation)

At 31 March 2022 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Unlisted equity investments 1,468 - 873 2,341

Investment properties

- Mixed use 47977 372 - (162) 48,187
- Office & Industrial 35,094 (244) 13.218 48,068
L 83,071 372 (244) 13,056 96,255
N 84,539 372 (244) 13,929 98,596

All appreciation/{depreciation) as stated above relates to movements in falr value of unlisted equity investments and

investment properties held at 31 March 2022,

The Group held one unguoted investment at the year end (see 11.6 overleaf).

Transfers between hierarchy levels
There were no transfers during the year between any of the levels.
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Notes to the financial statements
cantinued
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11

88

Investments held at fair value o 1w

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations

The significant unohservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy of investment properties are:

* Estimatedrental value: £6.5 - £65 per sq ft (2021 £6.5- £65)
+ Capitalisation rates: 2.0% - 6.0% (2021: 2.0% - 6.0%)

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value and rent growth in isolation would result in a significantly
higher {lower) fair value measurement A significant increase (decrease) in long-term vacancy rate in isolation would
result in a significantly lower (higher} fair value measurement.

There are intarrelationships between the yields and rental values as they are partially determined by market rate condition.
The sensitivity of the valuation ta changes in the most significant inputs per class of investment property are shown
below:

Estimated movernentin fafr value of
investment properties at 31 March
2022 arising from

Increase in rental value by 5% 306 2,266 145

Decrease inrental value by 5% (294) (2,266) (1) (2,561)

Increase in yield by 0.5% (3,865) (6,343) (832) (11,040) ;
Decrease in yield by 0.5% . o 4,841 8,711 1,101 14,653 ‘
Estimated movement in fair value of Office &

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial Other Total

2021 arising from £000 £000 £000 £'000 i
Increase inrental value by 5% 310 1,585 50 1,945
Decreaseinrentalvalueby 5% (250} (1.610) ooy o (889

Increase in yield by 0.5% (4,040 (5835) (925) (10,800)

Decrease in yield by 0.5% 5155 9,505 B 1.325 15,985

The Group agreed to sell freehold and leasehold interests in The Colannades investment property after a strategic review
of the Direct Property portfolic which has a fair value after costs to sell of £48,187,437 as at 31 March 2022.

The property is currently being marketed for sale and is anticipated to be sold within the next 12 months, therefore it is
being classified as a held for sale. Any changes to the marketing for sale occurning after the year end will be disclosed in
Note 23 Subsequent Fvents

No impairment losses have been recognised as at 31 March 2022,

Financial instruments

Risk management policies and procedures

The Group invests in equities and other instruments for the long term in the pursuit of the Investment Objectives set out
on page 22. The Group is exposed to a variety of risks that could result in either a reduction or an increase in the profits
available for distribution by way of dividends.

The principail risks the Group faces in its portfolio management activities are:
- Market risk (comprising price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk)

- Liquidity risk

- Creditrisk

The Manager's policies and processes for managing these risks are summarised on page 23 and have been applied
throughout the year

TR Property Investment Trust
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11 Financial instruments «vor i o

11.1 Market price risk
By the very nature of its activities, the Group's investments are exposed to market price fluctuations

2
Management of the risk &
The Manager runs a diversified portfolic and reports to the Board on the portfolio activity and performance at each Board E
meeting. The Board monitors the investment activity and strategy to ensure it is compatible with the stated objectives. -§
The Group's exposure to changes in market prices on its quoted equity investments, CFDs and investment property =
portfolio, was as follows:
2021
£'000
Investments held at fair value 1,555,416 1,400,576 e
Q
CFD long gross exposure 144,642 146,001 &
8

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set outin the Investment Policies on page 23, there are guidelines to the amount of exposure to a single company,
gecgraphical region or direct property. These guidelines ensure an appropriate spread of exposure to individual or sector
price risks. As an investment cormpany dedicated to investment in the property sector, the Group is exposed to price
maovements across the property asset class as a whole.

Price risk sensitivity

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year and the velue of shareholders’ funds to
an increase or decrease of 15% in the fair values of the Group's equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct property investments.
The level of change is consistent with the illustration shown in the previous year. The sensitivity is based on the Group's
equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, with all other variables held constant.

2021 2021

Increase Decrease

in fair value in fair value

£000 £'000

Statement of Comprehensive

income — profit after tax 2
Revenue return (115) 115 (103) 103 g
Capital return 234,176 (234,176) 209,807 _(209,801) ;
Change to the profit after tax for the g
year/sharehalders’ funds 234,061 (234,061) o u0s.698 {209,698) z
Change to total earnings per Ordinary s
Share ] 73.75p (73.75)p 66.08p (66.08)p z
- . =3
11.2 Currency risk %

A proportion of the Group's portfolio is invested in overseas securities and their Sterfing value can be significantly affected

by movements in foreign exchange rates. z
%’1

Management of the risk S

The Board receives a report at each Board meeting on the proportion of the investment portfolio held in Sterling, P4

Euros or other currencies. The Group may sometimes hedge fareign currency moverments outside the Eurozone by =

funding investments in overseas securities with unsecured loans denominated in the same currency or through

forward currency contracts.

Cash deposits are held in Sterling and/or Euro denominated accounts.,
2]
8
(1]
g
&
=
g
3
£
2
=
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11 Financial instruments oo roe o

Foreign currency exposure

At the reporting date the Group had the following exposure:
(Sterling has been shown for reference)

Currency 2021
sering T 34.0% 28.0%
Euro 42.0% ' 51.0%
Swedish Krona 16.0% 13.0%
Other 8.0% 8.0%

The following table sets out the Group's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to foreign currencies
of the net monetary assets and liabilities:

2022

Receivables (d"lle from brokers,

dividends and other income receivable) 53912 ' 27,758 12,659 &08
Cash at bank and on deposit 20,341 3,247 2,883 5,638
Bank loans, lean notes and overdrafts (35,000} - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and
other creditors) (25,642) (111) (1,634) {3,722)
FXforwards — e (e8280)  {109%) 59,877 42,135
Total foreign currency exposure on net
monetary items (74,669) 19,898 73,785 44,659
Investments heid at fair value 614,672 680,755 181,455 78,534
Non-current assets 903 - - -
Noncurrentlibitties  ~___ _ {15000) . (42253) e
Total currency exposure 525,906 658,400 255,240 123,193
Swedish

Sterling Euro Krona Other
2021 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Receivables (due from brokers, - B ' B B S
dividends and other income receivable) 439 462 10,668 561 299
Cash at bank and on deposit 272,853 4,339 650 1,272
Bank loans, ioan notes and overdrafts (95,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and
ather creditors) (10,142) (1,037) -
FX forwards o ) (61,209) . - 13848 45254
Total foreign currency exposure cn net
monetary items (94,036) 13,976 15,059 47,825
Investments held at fair vatue 478,715 707968 155,635 58,198
Non-current assets 686 - - -
Non-current liabilities (15.000) (42,593) - :
Total currency exposure L ) 370,365 678,351 170694 106023

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tabile illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after tax for the year an the Group’s equity in regard to the
exchange rates for Sterling/Euro and Sterling/Swedish Krona and other currencies.

It assumes the following changes in exchange rates:
- Sterling/Euro +/- 15% (20271 15%)

- Sterling/Swedish Krona +/- 15% (20271 15%)

+ Sterling/Gther +/-15% (2021: 15%)

a0 TR Property Investment Trust
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Foreign currency sensitivity continued
If Sterling had strengthened against the currencies shown, this would have had the following effect’

" Year ended March 2022 % Year ended March 2021
. - Swedish - . Swedish
Euro: - 7 K ‘Othe Euro Krona Other
£1000; £000 £000 £000
Statement of Comprchensive B o
Income — profit after 1ax
Revenue return (3,500} (436) (276) (2,726) (589) (250)
Capital return (89,441) (23,632) {10,228) {83,243) (20,269)  (7.579)
Change 1o the profit after tax for
the year/shareholders’ funds o (92,941) (24,068) {10,504) (85,969} (20,858) (7,829)
2021
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share o (40.18)p ~ (36.13)p
If Sterling had weakened against the currencies shown, this would have the following effect
Year ended March 2021
Swedish
Euro Krona Other
£000 £000 £'000
Statement of Comprehensive i
Income — profit after tax .
Revenue return 4,896 525 345 3411 732 318
Capital return 121,078 31,996 13,847 124,633 27 440 10,262
Change to the profit after tax for
the year/shareholders’ funds 125,974 32,521 14,192 128,044 28172 10,580
2021
Changeto tofa! earnings per Ord"\mn”g@'share - 52.56p

11.3 Interest rate risk
interest rate movements may affect:

- the fair value of any investments in fixed interest securities,

-the fair value of the loan notes;

« the level of income receivable from cash at bank and on deposit;
- the level of interest expense on any variable rate bank loang; and
- the prices of the underlying securities held in the portfolios,

Management of the risk

The possible effects on fair value and cash flows that could arise as a result of changes in interest rates are taken into
account when making investment decisions. Property companies usually have borrowings themsefves and the level of
gearing and structure of its debt portfolio is a key factor when assessing the investment in g property company

The Group has fixed and has had variable rate borrowings during the year. The interest rates on the loan notes is fixed,
details are set out in note 13.In addition to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, multi-currency revolving loan facilities
which carry variable rates of interest based on the currencies drawn, plus a margin These facilities total £92,253,000
(2021: £7130,000,000)
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Notes to the financia! statements
continued

11 Financia! instruments cor ne: J

Management of the risk continued

The Manager considers both the level of debt on the balance sheet of the Group (i.e. the loan notes and any bank loans
drawn) and the 'see-through’ gearing, taking into account the assets and liabilities of the underlying investments, when
considering the investment portfofio. These gearing levels are reported regufarly to the Board.

The majority of the Groug's investment portfolio is non-interest bearing. As a result the Group's financial assets are not
directly subject to significant amounts of risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates,

interest rate exposure

The expesure at 31 March of financial assets and financal liabilities to interest rate risk is shown by reference to:
- floating interest rates: when the interest rate is due to be re-set

- fixed interast rates: when the financial instrument is due to be repaid

The Group's exposure to floating interest rates on assets 1s £77,242,000 (2027 £80,027,000)

The Group's expasure to fixed interest rates on liabilities is £57,253,000 {2021; £152,593,000})

The Group's expesure to floating interest rates on hiabilities is £35,000,000 (2021: £nil)

Interest receivable and finance costs are at the following rates:

« Interest received on cash balances, or paid on bank overdrafts, is at a margin over SONIA or its foreign currency
equivalent {2021: same)

Interest paid on borrowings under the multi-currency loan facilities, is al a margin over SONIA or its foreign currency
equivalent for the type of loan (2021: sarme)

+ The finance charges on the £€50m and £15m loan notes are at interast rates of 1 92% and 3.59% respectively.

The year end amounts are not representative of the exposure to interest rates during the year as the ievel of exposure
changes as investments are made in fixed interest secunities, borrowings are drawn down and repaid, and the mix of
borrowings between floating and fixed interest rates changes

Interest rate sensitivity

A change of 2% on interest rates at the reporting date would have had the following direct impact’

2021 2021

Increase Decrease

£'000 £000

Change to shareholders’ funds (243) 243 (1176) 1,176
Change to total earnings 1

per Ordinary share } (0.08)p 0.08p ©3%p 0.37p

This level of change is not representative of the year as a whole, since the expasure changes throughout the period.
This assessment does not take into account the impact of interest rate changes on the market value of the investments
the Group holds.

11.4 Liquidity risk

Unquoted investments in the portfolio are subject 1o liquidity risk. The Group held one unguoted investrment at the year end
(see 11.6 bhelow).

In certain market conditicons, the liguidity of direct property investments may be reduced At 31 March 2022, 6% (2021: 6%)
of the Group's investment portfolic was held in direct property investments.

At 31 March 2022, 94% (2021: 94%) of the Group's investment portfolio 1s held in listed securities which are predominantly
readily realisable

Bank loan facilities are shart term revolving loans which it is intended are renewed or replaced but renewal cannat be
certain. Loan notes of £50m and £15m are repayable in February 2026 and 2031 respectively

The table shows the timing of cash outflows to settle the Group's current liabilities togethar with anticipated interest costs.

gy TR Praperty investrment Trust



MBIAIDAY

11 Financial instruments cont nuzd

Debt and Financing maturity profile

Within . Within @
-2 year’’ 45 year. 2
At 31 March 2022 £000 £'000 Q.
Bank loans* - - - - - 35,000 §
Loan notes - - - 42,253 - 15,000 57,253
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,241 539 2,124 7,954
Securities and properties
purchased for future settlement 5,364 - - - - - 5,364
o
Accruals and deferred income 25,523 - - - - - 25,523 £
Other creditors 222 - - - - - 222 B
—— e [=]
67,459 1,350 1,350 43,434 539 17,124 131,316 ®
Within Within Within within Within  More than
1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year 3-4 year 4-5 year 5vyear Total
At 31 March 2021 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Bank loans 95,000 - - - - - g5,000
Loan notes - - - - - 57,593 57,593
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 2,178 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 2,693 10,285
Accruals and deferred income 10,719 - - - - - 10,719
Other creditors 110 - " i R 110
108,007 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 60,286 173,717

* AL£60m mu|t(CuFrency facility with RBS was renewed for one year in February 2022. £35m (2021 £50m) was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date.
*  A£30mone year facility with ING Luxembourg was renewed in July 2021. Nit (2021: 30m) was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date.
* A £40m facility with ICBC was renewed in Novernber 2021, Nit (2021: 15m} was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date,

Management of the risk

The Manager sets quidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfolio to unquaoted and direct property investments. These are set
oul in the Investment Policies on page 23. All unguoted investments wilh a value over £1m and direct property investrments with a
value over £5 million must be approved by the Board for purchase.

The Company maintains regular contact with the banks providing revelving facilities and renewal discussions commence
well ahead of facility renewal dates. In addition the Company is exploring new opportunities for the provision of debt on an
ongoing basis.
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11.5 Credit risk z

The failure of a counterparty t a transaction to discharge its obligations under that transaction could result in the Group suffering g

aloss. Atthe period end the largest counterparty risk, which the Group was exposed 1o was within Debtors and Cash and cash i‘

equivalents where the total bank balances held with one counterparty was £50,107,017 (2021: £53,134,000). 2

Management of the risk

Investment transactions are carried out with a number of brokers, whose credit standing is reviewed periodically by the

Manager, and limits are set on the amount that may be due from any one braker. Cash at bank is only held with banks with

high quality external credit ratings.

Credit risk expasure

In surnmary, compared to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 March was as follows: ;’f
g
g
=
8
3
N
2
=
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Notes to the financial statements

cantinued
11 Financial instruments oor i
20220 L2022 2021 2021
" Balance . Maximum: Balance Maximum
-7 Sheet " exposure; Sheet exposure
s CE'000 £000: £000 £'000
Debtors 97,673 97,673 60,990 60,990
Cash and cash equivalents 32,109 32,109 29114 29,114
) 129,782 129,782 90,104 90,104

Where the receivables of the Group are exposed to credit risk, the requirement for impairment is assessed at each year
end. For all receivables, in the table above, no impairment has been recognised in relation to expected credit losses as the
impact of these losses is immaterial as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021 nc impairment).

Offsetting disclosures

In order to better define its contractual rights and te secure rights that will help the Group mitigate 1ts counterparty risk,
the Group may enter intc an ISDA Master Agreement or similar agreement with its OTC derivative contract counterparties.
An ISDA Master Agreement is an agreement between the Group and the counterparty that governs OTC derivatives and
foreign exchange contracts and typically contains, among other things, collateral posting terms and netting provisions

in the event of a default and/or termination event. Under an ISDA Master Agreement, the Group has a contractual right

to offset with the counterparty certain derivative financial instruments payables and/or receivables with collateral

held and/or posted and create one single net payment in the event of default including the bankruptey or insolvericy

of the counterparty However, bankruptey or insolvency laws of a particular jurisdiction may impose restrictions on or

prohibitions against the right of offset in bankruptcy, insolvency or other events.

The disclosures set out in the following tables include financial assets and financial habilities that are subject to an

enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement.

At 31 March 2G22 and 2021, the Group’s derivative assets and liabilities (by type and counterparty) are as foliows:

CFD positions:
Goldman Sachs.

7,657

Year ended 31 March 2021

Net amounts
of financial
assets/
liabilities
presented in
the Balance
Sheet

£000

Cash collateral
pledged
£000

(141) 50,913

7,657

(141) 50,913

FX forward contracts:

HSBC 2,736

- (1.167) -

2,736

(1,107 -

94
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11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Except for the loan notes which are measured at amortised cost {refer to Note 13), the fair values of the financial assets
and financial liabilities are either carried in the balance sheet at their fair value (investments) or the balance sheet
amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value (debtors, creditors, cash at bank and bank overdrafts, accruals and
prepayments),

The fair values of the listed investments are derived from the closing price or last traded price at which the securities are
quoted cn the London Stock Exchange and other recognised exchanges

The fair value of rontrants for difference are hased on the underlying listed investment valug as set out above and the
amaount due from or to the counterparty under the contract is recorded as an asset or liability accordingly, which is
disclosed in Note 13 for the current year.

The fair values of the properties are derived from an open market (Red Book) valuation of the properties on the Balance
Sheet date by an independent firm of valuers (Knight Frank].

There was one unquoted investment at the Balance Sheet date, Atrato, with a total value of £2,341,000 (2021 Atrato,
£7,468,000).

In the Parent Company accounts there are investments of £36,297,000 (2021: £43,372,000) in unlisted subsidiaries which
are classified as level 3.

The amounts of change in fair value for investments including net returns on CFDs recognised in the consolidated profit
ar lags for the year was a gain of £265,399,000 (2021: £214,372,000 gain).

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures

The Group's capital management objectives are:

+ toensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern; and

+ to maximise the total return to its equity shareholders through an appropriate balance of equity capital and debt.

The equity capital of the Group at 31 March 2022 consisted of called up share capital, share premium, capital redemption
and revenue reserves totalling £1,562,73%9,000 (2021: £1,326,433,000). The Group does not regard the loan notes and
loans as permanent capital.

The foan notes agreement requires complance with a set of financial covenants, including

- Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Assel Value;

+ the Adjusted Total Assets shali at all times be equivalent to a minimum of 300% of Tetal Berrowings; and
+ the Adjusted NAV shall not be less than £260,000,000.

12 Debtors
Group Company
2021 2021
£'000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Securities and properties sold for
future settlement 33,138 33,138 267 267
Foreign exchange forward contracts
for settlement 2,736 2,736 - -
Tax recoverable 3,344 2,879 4,231 3,761
Prepayments and accrued income? 5,168 5168 5176 5176
Amounts receivable in respect of
Contracts for Difference 7,657 7,657 - -
CFD margin cash 45,133 45,133 50,913 50,913
Other debtors 497 ) 497 o 403 403
o o 97,673 - 97,208 60,990 60,520
Non-current assets
Deferred taxation asset 903 903 ) 686 686

Annuzl Report & Accounts 2022 05
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

13 Current and non-current liabilities

Group Company
2021 2021
£'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Bank loans and overdrafts 35,000 35,000 95,000 95000
Securities and properties purchased
for future settlement 5,364 5,364 194 194
Amounts due to subsidiaries - 35,869 42,880
Amcunts payable in respect of
Contracts for Difference - - 141 141
Tax payable - - Q g
Accruals and deferred income 25,523 25,523 10,719 10,685
Foreign exchange forward contracts
for settlement - - 1,107 1,107
Other creditors - 222 ) 183 omne. 104
_ 66,109 101,939 107,280 150,120
Non-current liabilities:
1 92% Euro Loan Notes 2026 42,253 42,253 42,593 42,593
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2031 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
57,253 57,253 57,593 57,503

L.oan Notes

On the 10th February 2016, the Company issued 1.82% Unsecured Euro 50,000,000 Loan Notes and 3.59% Unsecured
GBP 15,000,000 Loan Notes which are due to be redeemed at par on the 10th February 2026 and 10th February 2031

respectively.

The fair value of the 1.92% Euro Loan Notes was F42,340,000 (2021: £42,732,000) and the 3.59% GBP Loan Notes was
£14,879,000(2021 £15,219,000) at 31 March 2022.

sing the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy the Loan Notes are deemed to be categorised within Level 2

The loan notes agreement requires comphiance with a set of financial covenants, including.

- Total Berrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;
« the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minimum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and

+ the Adjusted NAV shall not be legs than £260,000,000.

The Company and Group complied with the terms of the loan notes agreement throughout the year

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities

The Group also had unsecured, multi-currency, revolving short-term loan facilities totalling £130,000,000 (2021,
£130,000,000) at 31 March 2022. At 31 March 2022 £35,000,000 was drawn on these facilities (2027 £95,000,000).

The maturity of these facilities is shown innotes 11.3and 11 4

TR Property Investment Trust
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13 Current and non-current liabilities continucd
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

" Longtefm o
S T ekt Y del §
Group and Company S E00 e R B 0a: &
Opening liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2021 57,593 152,593 5
Cash flows:
Repayment of bank loans - - (60,000) {60,000)
Non cash-flows:
Mavement on foreign exchange (340) - (340) °
Clesing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2022 57,253 35,000 92,253 z
g
2

14 Cailed up share capital

Ordinary share capital

Tha balance classified as Ordinary share capital includes the nominal vaiue proceeds on the issue of the Ordinary equity
share capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Issued, allotted

Number and fully paid £'000
_C_)Fc—iinary shares of 25p ) o
AL T April 2021 317,350,980 79,338
At 31 March 2022 317,350,980 79,338

The voting rights are disclosed in the Report of the Directors on page 45.
During the year, the Company made no market purchases for cancellation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (2027: none).

Singe 31 March 2022 no Ordinary shares have been purchased and cancelled.

15 Share premium account and capital redemption reserve

Share premium account

The balance classified as share premium includes the premium above nominal value from the proceeds on issue of the
equity share capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve is used to record the amount equivalent to the nominal value of purchases of the
Company's own shares in order 1o maintain the Company's capital.
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16 Retained earnings g
Group Company §
2021 2021 g
£'000 £000 8
. o Py £ : | . =
Investment holding gains 412,934 431,260 335322 360,663
Reglised capital reserves 918,057 891,806 7 757,418 731,167
1,330,991 1,323,066 1,092,740 1,091,830
Revenuereserve y 65,277 73,202 67222 68,132
L 1,396,268 1,396,268 1,156,962 1,159,962 ;;.
Group investment holding gains at 31 March 2022 include a £1,015,650 gain (2021° £143,000 gain) relating to unlisted %
investments and & gain of £58,386,000 (2021: £45,201,000 gain} relating to investment properties. &
Company investment holding gains at 31 March 2022 include a gain of £77,728,000 (2021 £70,685,000 gain) relating to EX
unlisted and subsidiary investments with a £57,246,000 revaluation gain (2021: £44,061,000 revaluation gain) relating to 3
investment properties. Dividends are only distributable from the revenue reserve. %
=
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Notes to the financial statements

continued
17 Dividends
7 Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022, 31 March 2021
: cowo £000 ) £'000
Ameunts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p (2020:
8.80p) per Ordinary share 28,562 27927
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 of 5.30p
(2021: 5.20p) per Ordinary share o . 16,819 o 16,502
45,381 44,429
Amounis not recognised as distributions to equity holders in the
year:
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 of 9.20p
{2021: 9.00p) per Ordinary share 29,196 28,562

The final dividend has not been included as a liability in these financial statements in accordance with 1AS 10 "Events after
the reporting period”.

Set out below is the total dividend to be paid in respect of the year This is the basis on which the requirements of s.1158
of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 are considered.

2021
£'000
Interim dividend for the year ended 371 March 2022 of 530p o S
(2021: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,819 16,502
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 '
of 9 20p {2021: 9.00) per Ordinary share 20,196 28,562
46,015 45,064

18 Company statement of comprehensive income

As permitted by Section 4G8 of the Companies Aci 2006, the Company has not presented its own Statement of
Comprehensive Incore. The net profit after taxation of the Company deait with in the accounts of the Group was
£281,687,000 (20271 £234,409,000 profit)

19 Net asset value per ordinary share

Net asset value per Ordinary share is based on the net assets attributable to Ordinary shares of £1,562,739,000 (2021:
£1,326,433,000) and on 317,350,880 (2021: 317,350,880) Ordinary shares in issue at the year end.

20 Commitments and contingent liabilities
At 31 March 2022 the Group had capital commitments of £74,000 (2027: £144,000) but no contingent liabilities (2027: ni))

a8 TR Property Investment Trust
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21 Subsidiaries

The Group has the following principal subsidiaries, all of which are registered and operating

In Scotland, England and Wales:

me @
; 7
* New England Properties Limited 788895 Non-trading company B
* The Colonnades Limited 2826672 Non-trading company 'g
* Showart Limited 2500726 Non-trading company
* Trust Union Properties Residential Develupinents Limiled 2365875 Non-trading company
The Property Investment Trust Ltd 2415846 Nan-trading company
The Real Estate Investment Trust Limited 2416015 Non-trading company
The Terra Property Investment Trust Limited 24715843 Non-trading company )
Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited 2416017 Non-trading company g
* Trust Union Properties (Number Five} Limited 2415839 Non-trading company %
* Trust Union Properties (Number Six) Limited 2416018 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Number Seven) Limited 2415836 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited 2416019 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Ning) Lirnited 2415833 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Ten) Limited 2416021 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eleven) Limited 2415830 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Twelve) Limited 2416022 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Thirteen) Limited 2415818 Non-trading company
Trust Unioh Properties (Number Fourteen) Limited 2416024 Non-trading company
Trust Unich Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited 2416026 Non-trading company
Trust Unioh Properties (Number Sixteen) Limited 2415806 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Nurmnber Seventeen) Limited 24160727 Nen-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eighteen) Limited 2415768 Non-trading company @
* Trust Union Properties (Bayswater) Limited 2416030 Property investment %
* Trust Union Properties (Cardiff) Limited 2415772 Non-trading company ';
* Trust Union Properties (Theale) Limited 24160371 Non-trading company %
*Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Two) Limited 2415765 Non-trading company g
* Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limited 2416036 MNon-trading company g
* Skillion Finance Limited 2420738 Non-trading company _%
* Trust Union Finance (1991) Ple 2663561 Investrment financing ’
* FGH Developments Limited 1481476 Non-trading company g
* FGH Developments (Aberdeen) Limited 5068799 Non trading compary g
*FGH (Newcastle) Limited 1466619 Non-trading company §
*NEF (1954) Limited 977481 Non-trading company
* New England Developments Limited 1385909 Non-trading company
* New England Investments Limited 2613805 Non-trading company
* New England Retail Properties Limited 1447221 Non-trading company
* New England (Southern) Limited 1787371 Non-trading company 0
* Sapco One Limited 803940 Non-trading company ,"-;:?—
* Trust Union Properties Limited 2134624 Non-trading company %
* Trust Union Finance Limited 1233998 Investment holding and finance company g,,
* TR Property Finance Limited 2475941 Investment holding and finance company 3
* Trust Unicn Properties (South Bank) Limited 2420097 __Non-trading company 3
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Notes to the financial statements
continued
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Subsidiaries o Uru s

All the subsidiaries are fully owned and all the holdings are ordinary shares

All companies have the registered office of Exchange House, Primrose Street, London EC2A 2HS with the exception of
FGH Developments (Aberdeen) Limited which is registered to 50 Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh EH3 9BY.

* The Company has provided a guarantee for each of these subsidiaries in order for them to take the exemption from the
requ‘\remen‘[ of an audit, in line with the requirements of S 4794 of the Companies Act 2006

Related party transactions disclosures
Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are relaied parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation. The balances are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

2021

£'000

The Colennades Limited 22,619 22,619
TR Property Finance Limited : 13,270 20,281
New England Properties Limited o - (20) )
35,869 472,880

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company for each of the relevant
categories specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on page 57.

Directors’ transactions

Transactions in shares by Directors are considered to be a related party transaction due to the nature of their
role as Directors

Movements in directors’ shareholdings are disclosed within the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 58.

TR Property Investrment Trust
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 Alternative Performance Measures

Afternative Performance Measures are rnumerical
measures of the Company’s current or historical
nerformance, financial position or cash flows, other
than the financial measures defined or specified in the
Financial Statements.

The measures defined below are considered to be
Alternative Performance Measures. They are viewed as
particularly relevant and are frequently quoted for closed
ended investment companies.

Total Return

The NAV Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the
dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant
ex-dividend date. Dividends are deemed to be reinvested
on the ex-dividend date as this is the protocol used

by the Cormnpany’s benchmark and other indices. The
Share Price Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the
dividends in the shares of the Company from the relevant
ex-dividend date

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2021 (pence) 41797 392.50
NAV/share price per share at

31 Mareh 2022 {pence) 49243 456.50
Change in year 17.8% 16.3%
Impact of dividends reinvested 36% 3.6%
Total Return for the year 21.4% 19.9%

NAV, har rlc per hare t

31 March 2020 (pence} 358.11 375
NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2021 {pence) 41797 3925
Change in year 16 7% 236%
Impact of dividends reinvested 4.0% A7%
Total Return for the year 20.7% 28.3%
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Ongoing Charges

The Ongoing Charges ratio has been calculated in
accordance with the guidance issued by the AIC as the
total of investment management fees and administrative
expenses expressed as a percentage of the average

Net Asset Values throughout the year. The definition of
administrative expenses does include property related
expenses, the Ongoing Charges calculation is shown
inclusive and exclusive of these expenses to allow
omparison of the direct administrative and managernent
charges with the majority of Investment Trusts which do
not hold any direct property investments.

Management
Fee (note 5}

Other
Administrative

31,140 5,651 6,651

expenses
{(nate 6)
Property
Casts
Less: Non
recurring
expenses

2,220 2,220 2220

332 332

33,692 9,203 8,871
Average Net
Assets
Ongoing
Charge 2022

1535825  1,536825 1,536,825

2.19% 0.60% 0.58%

Management
Fee (note 5)

Other
Administrative

15,884 6,225

expenses
(note 6)
Property
Costs
Less: Non
recurring
expenses - - -

17,989 8,330 8,060

1,835 1,835

270 270 -

Average Net
Assets
Ongoing
Charge 2021

1,283,051 1,283,057 1,283,051

1.40% 0.65% 063%

TR Property Investment Trust



Net Debt

Net debt is the total value of loan notes, loans (including
notional exposure to CFDs and TRSs) less cash as a
proportion of net asset value.

The net gearing has been calculated as follows:

Loan notes 57,253 57,583

Loans 35,000 95,000

CFD positions (notional exposure) 144,642 146,001

Less: Cash (32,109) (29.114)

Less: Cash collateral (included within

‘Other debtors’ in Note 12) (45,133)  (50,913)
159,663 218,567

Equity shareholders’ funds 1,562,739 1,326,433
Net gearing 10.2% 16.5%

The Ongoing charges ratio provided in the Company's
Key Information Document is calculated in line with
the PRIIPs regulations which is different to the AIC
methodology above.

Compound Annual Dividend Growth

This is calculated by taking the final dividend in the
time series, divided hy the initial dividend in the periad,
raised to the power of 1 divided by the number of years
in the series,

Average Discount

The sum of each daily discount ( the discount of the
closing share price to the published AIC NAV with
income) divided by the number of days in the given
time period.

Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager
in meeting the Trust's objective against a number of
Key Performance Indicators, these are considered to
be Alternative Performance Measures. Details of these
calculations are set out above.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

2.0 Glossary of terms and

dafinitions AIFMD

The Alternative Fund Managers Directive is European
legislation which created a European wide framework
for regulating the managers of "alternative investment
funds® (AlFs). Itis designed to regulate any fund which
is not a UCITS (Undertakings for Collective Investment
in Transferable Securities) fund and which is managed
or marketed in the FII

AlC

The Association of Investment Companies —

the AIC Ts the representative body for clesed-ended
investment companies.

Aliernative Performance Measure

A financial measure of financial performance or financial
position other than a financial measure defined or
specified in the accounting statements.

Discount

The amount by which the market price of a share of an
investment trust is lower than the Net Asset Value per

share expressed as a percentage of the NAV per share.

Key Information Document

Under the PRIIPs Regulations a short, consumer friendly
Key Information Docurnent is required setting out the
key features, risks, rewards and costs of the PRIIP and
is intended to assist investors to better understand the
Trust and make comparisons between Trusts.

The document includes estimates of investment
performance under a number of scenarios. These
calculations are prescribed by the regulation and are
based purely on recent historical data. It is important
far investors to note that there is no judgement applied
and these do notin any way reflect the Board or
Manager's views.

Key Performance Indicator (KPI)

A KPlis a quantifiable measure that evaluates how
successful the trust is in meeting its objectives. The
Trust’s KPIs are discussed on pages 24 and 25.

MiFID

The Markets in Financial Instruments Diractive is the EU
legislation that regulates firms who provide services 1o
clients linked to "financial instruments” (shares, bonds,
units in collective investment schemes and derivatives)
and the venues where those instruments are traded.

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share

The value of total assets less liabilities (including
borrowings) divided by the number of sharesinissue.
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure
continued

3.0 Alternative investment fund managers
direciive {AIFMD"

In accordance with the AIFMD, information in relation
to the Company's leverage and remuneration of the
Company’s AlFM, F&C Investment Business Limited,
is required to be made available to investars. Detailed
regulatory disclosures including those on the AlFM's
rermuneration poiicy are available on the F&C website
or from F&C on request. The numerical remuneration
disclosures in refation to the AIFM's first relevant
accounting period will be made available in due course.

Leverage

Under the AIFM Directive, it is necessary for AlFs
to disclose their leverage in accordance with
prescribed calculations.

Although leverage is often used as another term for
gearing, under the AIFMD leverage is specifically defined.
Twe types of leverage calculations are defined; the gross
and commitment methods. These methods summarily
express leverage as a ratio of the exposure of the AIF
against its net asset value. 'Exposure’ typically includes
debt, the value of any physical properties subject to
martgage, nan-Sterling currency, equity or currency
hedging at ahsalute notional vaiues (even those held
purely for risk reduction purposes, such as forward
foreign exchange contracts held for currency hedging)
and derivative exposure (converted into the equivalent
underlying positions). The commitment method nets

off derivative instruments, while the gross method
aggregates them.

The table below sets out the current maximum permitted
limit and the actual level of leverage for the Company as
at 31 March 2022:

200%
Actual 136% 128%

Maximum permitted limit

The leverage limits are set by the AlFM and agproved
by the Board and are in line with the limits set out in the
Company’s Articles of Association.

This should not be confused with the gearing set out

in the Financial Highlights which is calculated under
the tradifional method set out by the Association of
Investment Companies. The AlFM is also reqguired to
comply with the gearing parameters set by the Board in
relation to borrowings.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

This notice is important and requires your
immediate attention

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take
you should seek your own advice from a stockbroker,
solicitor, accountant or other independent professional
adviser who is authorised under the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 if you are resident in the

United Kingdom, or if not, from another appropriately
authorised independent financial adviser.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your
shares, please pass this document, together with
the accompanying documents to the purchaser, or
transferee, or to the person who arranged the sale
or transfer so they can pass these documents to the
person who now holds the shares.

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting
of TR Praperty investment Trust plc (the ‘Company’} will
be held at the Royal Automobile Club, 89/91 Pall Mall,
London SW1Y SHS on Tuesday 26 July 2022 at 2.30pm
for the purpose of transacting the following business:

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following
Resolutions, of which Resolutions T to 10 will be
proposed as Ordinary Resolutions and Resolutions 17
and 12 shall be proposed as Special Resolutions:

1 Toreceive the Report of the Directors and the
Audited Accaunts for the year ended 31 March 2022.

2 Toapprove the Directors’ Remuneration Report
{other than the part containing the Directors’
Remuneration Policy) for the year ended 31 March
2022

3 Todeclare afinal dividend of 9.20p per Ordinary share.

4 Tore-elect Kate Bolsover as a Director.

5 Tore-elect Sarah-Jane Curtis as a Diractor,

6 Tore-elect Tim Gillbanks as a Director,

7 Tore-elect David Watson as a Director.

8 Tore-appoint KPMG LLP (the ‘Auditor’) as Auditor of
the Company to hald office until the conclusion of the

next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

G Toauthorise the Directors to determine the
remuneration of the Auditor.

106

Special business

Ordinary resolution

10 TRHAT, in substitution for all such existing authorities,
the Directors be generally and unconditionally
authorised pursuant 1o and in accordance with
Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the 'Act)
to exercise all the powers of the Comipany to allct
shares in the Company and to grant rights to
subscribe for, or to convert any security into, shares
in the Company up 10 a neminal value of £26,181,455
(being approximately 33% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the fatest practicable
date prior 1o publication of this Notice) provided
that this authority shall expire at the date of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company (or, if earlier,
at the close of business on 25 October 2023), save
that the Company shall be entitled to make offers or
agreements before the expiry of this authority which
waould or might require shares to be allatted or rights
1o be granted after such expiry and the Directars shall
be entitled to allot shares and grant rights pursuant
to any such offers or agreements as if this authority
had not expired.

Special resolutions

17 THAT in substitution for al! such existing authorities
and subject to the passing of Resolution 10 set
out above) the Directors be empowered pursuant
to Section 570 and Section 573 of the Act to allot
equity securities (as defined in Section 560 of the
Act) for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by
Resolution 10 above and/or to sell shares held by the
Company as treasury shares for cash as if Section
561 of the Act did not apply 1o any such aliotment or
sale, pravided that this power shatl be limited:

(a) tothe allotment of equity securities and sale
of treasury shares for cagh in connection with
an offer of, or invitation to apply for, equity
securities:

(i) toshareholders in proportion (as nearly
as may be practicable) to their existing
heldings; and

(i} 1o hoiders of other equity securities, as
required by the rights of those securities, or
as the Board otherwise considers necessary.

So that the Board may impaose any limits or
restnctions and make any arrangements
which it considers necessary or appropriate
to deal with treasury shares, fractional
entitiements, record daies, [egal, regulatory
or practical problems in, or under the laws of,
any terrifory or any other matter; and

TR Property Investment Trust
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(b} (n the case of the authority granted under
Resolution 10 and/or in the case of any sale
of tregsury shares for cash, to the allotment
{otherwise than under paragraph (i} abcve)
of equity securities or sale of treasury shares
up to a nominal amount of £3,966,887 (being
approximately 5% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the latest
practicable date prior to publication of the
notice of meeting),

The power given by this resolution shall expire upon
the expiry of the autherity conferred by Resolution

10 above, save that the Company shall be entitied to
make offers or agreements before the expiry of such
power which would ar might require equity securities
to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors shalt
be entitled to allot equity securities pursuant to any
such offer or agreement as if the power conferred
hereby had not expired.

THAT the Company be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally autharised in accordance with
Section 701 of the Act to make one or mora market
purchases (within the meaning of Section 693(4) of
the act) of Ordinary shares of 25p each in the capital
of the Company on such terms and in such manner
as the Directors may from time to time determine
provided that:

{a) the maximurn number of Ordinary shares hereby
authorised to be purchased shall be 14.99% of
the Company’s Ordinary shares in issug at the
date of the Annual General Meeting (equivalent
to 47,570,211 Ordinary shares of 25p each at
13 June 2022, the latest practicable date prior
to publication of this Notice);

{b) the maximum price (exclusive of expenses)
which may be paid for any such share shall not
be more than the higher of;

{iy 105% of the average of the middle market
quotations for an Ordinary share as taken
from the London Stock Exchange Daily
Official List for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which
the Company agress to buy the shares
concernad; and

(i) the higher of the price of the last
independent trade and the highest current
independent bid for an Ordinary share in the
Company on the trading venue where the
purchase is carried out at the relevant
time; and

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

(c) the minimum price (exclusive of expenses) which

may be paid for an Ordinary share shall be 25p,
being the nominal value per Ordinary share;

The authority hereby conferred shall expire at

the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting

of the Company in 2023 (or, if earlier, at the close
of business on 25 October 2023), save that the
Company shali be entitled to enter into a contract
to purchase Crdinary shares which will, or may, be
completed cr executed wholly or partly after the
power expires and the Company may purchase
Ordinary shares pursuant to such contract as if the
power conferred hereby had

net expired.
9&»@0&& Lattan

By Order of the Board

For and on behalf of

BMO Investment Business | imited
Company Secretary

20 June 20272

Registered Office;

Company registered in England and Wales.
Company number: 84492

13 Woodstock Street

Lendon W1C 2AG
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Notes

Whilst COVID-19 restrictions have been lifted as

at the date of this Notice of AGM and it is currently
anticipated that shareholders will be permitted to
attend and vote in person at the meeting, the COVID-19
situation continues to evolve and the UK Government
may introduce new restrictions or implement measures
relating to the holding of shareholder meetings which
may mean this is no fonger possible. Therefore,
shareholders are encouraged to appoint the Chairman
of the meeting as their proxy for the AGM. If any

other person is appointed as proxy and COVID-19
restrictions are introduced which affect the holding of
the meeting, that proxy may not be pecmitted to attend
the AGM. Any changes to the arrangements for the
AGM wiil be communicated to shareholders prior to the
meeting, including through the Company's website, at
www.trproperty.cem and by announcement through a
regulatory information service.

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM are

asked to register their intention as soon as practicable
by email to the following dedicated address:
trpitagm@bmogam.com.

Shareholders whao are not able or do not wish to attend
the meeting in person will be able to watch a live
webcast of the meeting. This will include the formal
business of the meeting, the Manager's presentation
and questions and answers. The webcast will not
enable shareholders to participate in the meeting or
to vote. However, shareholders will be invited to
submit questions through our website, by 12.00 noon
on 22 July 2022. Questions of a very similar nature
may be grouped together 1o ensure the orderly sunning
of the AGM.

1 Amember entitled 1o attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the above Notice is entitled to appoint
one or more proxies to exercise all or any of the
rights of the member to attend, speak and vote in his
or her place.

Sharehotders are strongly encouraged to appoint the
Chairman of the meeting as their proxy, rather than
any other named person who may not be permitted to
attend the AGM in the event of restrictions or imits on
attendance. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the
Company. To appoint more than one proxy, the proxy
form should be photocopied and the name of the
proxy 1o be appointed indicated on each proxy form
tagether with the number of shares that such proxy is
appainted in respect of. Completion and submission
of a proxy nstruction will not preciude a member from
attending and voting in person at the AGM (subject to
any restrictions on physical attendance),
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To be valid any proxy form ot other instrument
appointing a proxy must be returned by post, by
courier or by hand to the Company’s Registrars,
Computershare Investor Services PLC, The
Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 6ZY, or
aiternatively, by going tc www.eproxyappointment.
com and following the instructions provided. All
proxies must be appointed by no fater than 48
hours befare the time of the AGM. in the case of
joint holders, where more than one of the joint
holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the
appointment submitted by the most senicr holder
will be accepted. Seniority is determined by the
arder in which the names of the joint holders
appear in the Company's Register of memberg in
respect of the joint holding (the first named being
deemed the most senior).

In order ta be able to attend and vote at the AGM or
any adjournad meeting (and also for the purpose of
calcutating how many votes a person may cast),

a person must have his or her name entered on the
Register of Members of the Company by 2.30 pm
on 22 July 2022 {or 6.00 pmi on the date two days
before any adjourned meeting). Changes to entries
on the Register of Members after this time shali be
disregarded in determining the rights of any person
to attend or vote at the meeting

Voting will be conducted on a poll at the Meeting.
Ona poli vote every shareholder will through their
proxy have one vote for every Ordinary share of
which he or she is the holder.

Shareholders should note that it is possible that,
pursuant to requests made by shareholders of the
Company under Section 527 of the Companies Act
2006, the Company may be required to publishona
website a staterment setting out any matter relating
1o (i) the audit of the Company's accounts (inciuding
the Auditor's Report and the conduct of the audit} that
are to be laid before the AGM:; or (it) any circumstance
connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing
{o hold office since the previous meeting at which
annual accounts and reports were laid in accerdance
with Section 437 of the Act. The Company may

not require the shareholders requesting any such
website publication to pay its expenses in complying
with Sections 527 or 528 of the of the Act. Where

the Cornpany is required to place a statement on a
website under Section 527 of the Act, it must forward
the statement to the Company's auditor not later than
the time when it makes the statement available on the
website. The business which may be dealt with at the
AGM includes any statement that the Company has
been reguired under Section 527 of the Act 1o publish
on awebsite

TR Property [nvestment Trust



Any corporation which is a member of the
Company can appoint one or more corporate
representatives who may exercise on its behalf all
of its powers as a member provided that they do
nat do so in relation to the same shares.

The right to appoint a proxy does not apply to
persons whase shares are held cn their behalf by
another person and who have been nominated

to receive communication trom the Company

in accordance with Section 146 of the Act
{Nominated Persons’). Nominated Persons may
have a right under an agreement with the registered
shareholder who holds shares on their behalf to be
appointed (or to have someone else appointed) as
a proxy. Alternatively, if nominated perscns do not
have such a right, or do not wish to exercise it, they
may have a right under such an agreement 1o give
instructions to the person holding the shares as to
the exercise of voting rights.

CREST members who wish to appgint a proxy

or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy
appointment service may do so for the AGM to

be held on 26 July 2022 and any adjournment(s)
thereof by using the procedures described in the
CREST Manual. CREST personal members or other
CREST sponsored members, and those CREST
members who have appointed a voting service
provider should refer to their CREST sponsors

or voting service provider(s), who will be able to
take the appropriate action on their behalf. In

order for a proxy appointment or instruction made
by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate
CREST message (a ‘'CREST Proxy Instruction’
must be properly authenticated in accordance with
Eurcclear UK & ireland Limited's specifications and
must contain the information required for such
instructicns, as described in the CREST Manual.
The message must be transmitted so as to be
received by the Company’s agent, Computershare
Investor Services PLC (CREST Participant 1D
3RAS0}, no later than 48 hours before the time
appointed for the meeting. For this purpose, the
time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as
determined by the time stamp applied to the
message by the CREST Application Hest} from
which the Company’s agent is able to retrieve

the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner
prescribed by CREST.

CREST members and, where applicable, theair
CREST sponsor or voting service provider should
note that Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited dees not
make available special procedures in CREST for
any particular messages.
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Norral system timings and limitations will therefore
apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy
Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST

member concerned to take (or, if the CREST membear

is a CREST personal member or sponsored member

or has appointed a voting service previder, to procure

that his or her CREST sponsor or voting service
provider takes) such action as shall be necessary
1o ensure that 8 message is transmitted by mecans
of the CREST system by any particular time. In this
connection, CREST members and, where applicable,
their CREST sponsor or voting service provider

are referred in particular to those sections of the
CREST Manual concerning practical limitations of
the CREST system and timings. The Company may
treat asinvalid 3 CREST Proxy Instruction in the
circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001,

Any member attending the meeting (subject to any
restrictions in place at the time of the meeting) has the
right to ask questions. The Company must cause to be
answered any such guestion relating to the business

being dealt with at the meeting but no such answer need

ke given if: {a) to do s would interfere unduly with ihe
preparation for the meeting or invelve the disclosure
of confidential information; (b) the answer has already
been given on a website inthe form ¢f ananswer to a
guestion; or (¢} itis undesirable in the interests of the
Company or the good order of the meeting that the

guestion be answered. Questions of a very similar nature
ray be grouped together to ensure the orderly running of

the AGM.

A copy of this notice, and ather information required
by section 311A of the Act, can be found at
www.trproperty.com.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

continued

9  Members satisfying the thresholds in section 338 13 Theterms of reference of the Audit Committee,
of the Act may require the Company to give, to the Management Engagement Committee, the
rmembers of the Company entitled to receive notice Nomination Commitiee and the Directors’' Letters
of the AGM, natice of a resolution which those of Appointment will be available for inspection
members intend to move (and which may properly for at least 15 minutes prior to and during the
be moved) ar the AGM. A resolution may properly be Company's AGM.

moved at the AGM unless:
174 Youmay not use any electronic address provided

(i) itwould, if passed, be ineffective {whether by either in this Notice or any related documents to
reason of any inconsistency with any enaciment communicate for any purposes other than those
or the Company’s constitution or otherwise); expressly stated.

(i) itis defamatory of any persen; or 15 The Company may process personal data of

attendees at the Annual General Meeting. This may

(iii) it is frivolous or vexatious. include webcasts, photos, recording and audio and

video links, as well as other forms of personal data.
Acreguest made pursuant {o this right may be in hard The Company shall process such persenal data in
copy ot electranic form, must identify the resolution of accordance with its privacy policy, which can found
which notice is to be given, must be authenticated by at www.irproperty.com/legal.

the person{s} making it and must be received by the
Company not later than six weeks before the date of
the AGM.

10 Mernbers satisfying the thresho!ds in section 3384
of the Act may request the Company to include in
the business to be dealt with at the AGM any matter
{other than a proposed resolution) which may
properly be included in the business at the AGM.

A rmatter may properly be included in the business
at the AGM unless:

() it is defarmatory of any person: or
(ii) it is frivolous or vexatious.

A request made pursuant 1o this right may be in hard
copy or electronic form, must identify the matter to
be included in the business, must be accompanied
by a statement setting out the grounds for the
request, must be authenticated by the person(s)
making it and must be received by the Company not
later than six weeks before the date of the AGM,

11 Biographical details of the Directors are shown on
pages 40 and 41 of this Annual Report & Accounts.

12 Asat 13 June 2022 (being the latest practicable day
prior to publication of this Notice), the issued share
capital of the Company was 317,350,880 Ordinary
shares of 25p each. No ordinary shares were held
N treasury

Therefore, the total number of vating rights in the
Company at 13 June 2022 was 317,350,980
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resolutions 1, 2, and 3: Accounts,
Directors' remuneration report
and dividend

These are the resolutions which deal with the
presentation of the audited accounts, the approval
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the
declaration of the final dividend.

The vote to approve the Remuneration Report is
adviscry only and will not require the Company to
alter any arrangements detailed in the report should
the resolution not be passed.

The Board is proposing a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2022 of 9.20p per Ordinary share.
If appraved at the AGM, the Company will pay the
dividend on 2 August 2022 tc those shareholders on
the Company's Register of members at the close

of business on 24 June 2022,

Resolutions 4 to 7: Re-election

of Directors

These resolutions deal with the re-election of Kate
Bolsover, Sarah-Jane Curtis, Tim Gillbanks and
David Watson. In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, all Directors retire on an annual
basis and have confirmed that they will offer
themselves for re-election

A performance evaluation has been completed and
your Baard has determined that each of the Directors
continues to be effective and demonstrates their
commitment to their role.

Their bipgraphical details, which are set out on
pages 40 and 41, demonstrate that the Board

has the appropriate balance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge te lead the Company.
Accordingly, the Board unanimously recommends
their re-election.

Resolutions 8 and 9: Auditor

These deal with the reappointment of the Auditor,
KPMG LLP and the authorisation for the Directors to
determine their remuneration.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Resolution 10: Allotment of share capital

Our Board considers it appropriate that an authority
be granted to allot shares in the capital of the
Company up to a maximum nominal amount of
£26,181,445 is stated in the resolution (representing
approximately one third of the Company’s issued
share capital as at 13 Juna 2022, being the latest
practical date prior to publication of this Notice of the
meeting). As at the date of thig notice the Company
does not hold any shares in treasury.

The Directors have no present intention of exercising
this authority and would only expect to use the
authority if shares could beissued at, or at a
premium to, the Net Asset Value per share.

This authority will expire at the earlier of close of
business on 25 October 2023 and the conclusion of
the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held in 2023.

Resolution 11: Disapplication

of statutory pre-emption rights

This resolution would give the Directors the authority
to allot shares (or sell any shares which the Company
elects to hold in treasury) for cash without first
offering them to existing shareholders in proportion
to their existing shareholdings.

This authority would be limited to allatments or sales
in connecticn with pre-emptive offers and offers to
heolders of cther equity securities if required by the
rights of those shares or as the board otherwise
considers necessary, or otherwise up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £3,966,887. This aggregate
nominal amount represents 5% of the total issued
share capital of the Company as at 13 June 2022,
the latest practicable date prior to publication of this
Notice. In respect of this aggregate nominal amount,
the Directors confirm their intention to follow the
provisions of the Pre-Emption Group's Statement of
‘Principles’ regarding cumulative usage of authorities
within a rolling 3-year pericd where the Principles
provide that usage in excess of 7.6% should not take
place without prior consultation with shareholders.

The authority will expire at the earlier of close of
business on 25 October 2023 and the conclusion of
the Annual General Meeting of the Company tc be
held in 2023.
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Resolution 12: Authority to make

market purchases of the Company's
Ordinary shares

At the AGM held in 2021, a special resotution was
passed which gave the Directors authority, until the
conclusicn of the AGM in 2022, to make market
purchases of the Company's own issued shares up to a
maximum of 14.99% of the issued share capital.

Your Board Is proposing that they should be given
renewed authority to purchase the Company’'s Ordinary
shares in the market. Your Board believes that to make
such purchases in the market at appropriate times and
prices is a suitable method of enhancing shareholder
value. The Company would, within guidelines set

from time to time by the Board, make either a single
purchase or a series of purchases, when markst
conditions are suitatle, with the aim of maximising the
benefits tc shareholders.

Where purchases are made at prices below the
prevailing Net Asset Value per share, this will enhance
the Net Asset Value for the remaining shareholders.
Therefore purchases would only be made at prices
below Net Asset Value. Your Board considers that it
will be most advantageous to shareholders for the
Company to be able to make such purchases as and
when it considers the timing to be favourable and
therefore does not propose to set a timetable for
making any such purchases

The Campanies (Acquisition of Own Shares) {Treasury
Shares) Regulations 2003 enable companies in the
United Kingdom to hold in treasury any of their own
shares they have purchased with a view to possible
resale at a future date, rather than cancelling them. If
the Company does re-purchase any of its shares, the
Directors do not currently intend to hold any of the
shares re-purchased in treasury. The shares so re-
purchased will continue 1o be cancelled.

The Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority
fimit the maximum price {exclusive of expenses) which
may be paid for any such share. It shall not be more
than the higher of:

() 105% of the average of the middle market
quotations for an Ordinary share as taken from
the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date on which the Company agrees tc buy shares
concerned; and

(if) the higher of the price of the last independent
trade and the highest current independent bid for
an Ordinary share in the Company on the trading
venue where the purchase is carried out

112

The minimum price ta be paid will be 25p per
Ordinary share (being the nominal value). The Listing
Rules also limit a listed company to purchases of
shares representing up to 15% of its issued share
capital in the market pursuant to a general authority
such as this. For this reason, the Company is limiting
its authority 1o make such purchases to 14.99% of
the Company's Ordinary shares in issue at the date
of the AGM; this is equivalent to 47,570,911 Qrdinary
shares of 25p each (nominal value £11,852,727) at
13 June 20272, the latest practicable date prior to
publication this Notice. The authority will last untif
the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held in 2023 or, if earlier, at the close of business on
25 Jctober 20623,

Recommendation

Your Board believes that the resolutions contained

in this Notice of Annua! General Meeting are in the
best interests of the Company and shareholders as

a whole and recornmends that you vote in favour of
thern as your Directors intend to do in respect of their
own beneficial shareholdings.
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Directors and other information

Directors

0D watson (Chairman)
K Bolsover

S-J Curtis

T Gillbanks

S Marnson

Registered office

13 Woodstock Street
London

WIC 286

Registered number
Registered as an investment company In
Engfand and Wates No. 84492

AlFM and Company Secretary
BMO investment Business Limited
Exchange House

Primrose Street

Londen

EC2A2NY

Pertfolic Manager

Thames River Capital LLP authorised
and regulated by the Financial Conduct
Authority

13 Woodstock Street

London

W1iC 2AG

Telephane 0207011 4100

Fund Manager
M A Phayre-Mudge MRICS

Finance Manager and
Investor Relations

J L Elliott ACA

Deputy Fund Manager
A Lhonneur

Direct Froperty Manager
G P Gay MRICS

a'c
The Association of

Investment Companies

4

Registrar

Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road
Bristol

BS9G 6ZY

Telephone: 0370707 1355

Shareholders who hold their shares in
certificated form can check their heldings
with the Registrar, Computershare Investor
Services PLC, via www investorcentre,
co.uk Please note that to gain access to
your details on the Computershare site
you will need the holder reference number
stated on the top feft hand corner of your
share certificate.

Auditor
KPMGLLP

15 Canada Square
London

ET45GL

Stockbrokers

Panmure Gordon (UK) Limited,
One New Change

London

ECAM QAR

Stifel Nicolaus Europe Limited
150 Cheapside

London

EC2VOET

Solicitors
Slaughter and May
One Bunhill Row
London

ECTY 8YY

Depositary, custodian and fund
administrator

BNP Paribas Securities Sefvices
10 Harewood Avenue

London

NWT 8AA

Website
www trproperty com

Tax advisers
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Cenitral Square, South Orchard Street
Newcaste upon fyne

NET 3AZ
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General Shareholder information

Anncuncement of results
The half year results are announced in late November.

The full year results are announced in early June.

Annual general meeting
The AGM is held in London in Juiy.

Dividend payment dates

Dividends are usually paid on the Ordinary shares
as follows:

Interim- January
Final: August

Dividend payments

Dividends can be paid to shareholders by means of
BACS (Bankers' Automated Clearing Services); mandate
forms for this purpose are available from the Registrar.
Alternatively, shareholders can write to the Registrar
(the address is given on page 114 of this report) to give
their instructions; these must include the bank account
number, the bank account title and the sort code of the
bank to which payments are to be made.

Dividend re-investment pian ('DRIP’)

TR Property investment Trust pic offers shareholders
the opportunity to purchase further shares in the
Company through the DRIP Please note that following
Brexit shareholders in Europe are no lenger able to
participate in the DRIP. BRIP forms may be obtained
from Computershare investor Services PLC through their
secure website www.investorcentre.co.uk, or on 0370
707 1694, Charges apply; dealing commission of 0.75%
{subject to a minimum of £2.50). Government stamp
duty of 0.5% also applies.

Share price listings

The estimated Net Asset Value and market price of the
Company's QOrdinary shares, as well as the discount/
premium, are published daily in The Financial Times.
They can also be found on the Company’'s website at
wwWw trproperty.com

Share price information
ISIN GBO00S064097

SEDOCL 0206409

Bloomberg

TRY.LN Reuters

TRY.L

Datastream TRY

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Benchmark

Details of the benchmark are given in the Strategic
Repart on page 22 of this Repert and Accounts.
The benchmark index is published daily and can
be found on Bloormberg;

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Net Total
Return Index in Sterling
Bloomberg: TRORAG Index

Disability Act

Copies of this Report and Accounts and other
documents issued by the Company are available from
the Company Secretary. if needed, copies can be made
available in a variety of fermats, including Braille, audio
tape or larger type as appropriate.

You can contact the Registrar, Computershare Investor
Services PLC, which has installed textphones to allow
speech and hearing impaired people who have their own
textphone to contact them directly, without the need
for an intermediate operator, by dialling 0870 702 0005.
Specially trained cperators are available during normal
business hours to answer queries via this service.
Alternatively, if you prefer to go through a ‘typetalk’
operator {provided by the Royal National Institute for
Deaf People) you should dial 18001 foilowed by the
number you wish to dial.
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General Shareholder information
continued

Nominee share code

Where nctification has been provided in advance,
the Company will arrange for copies of shareholder
communications to be provided o the operators of
nominee accounts. Nominee investors may attend
general meetings and speak at meetings when
invited to do so by the Chairman.

CGT base cost

Taxation of capital gains for shareholders who
formerly held Sigma shares

Upon a disposal of all or part of a sharehoider's
holding of Grdinary shares, the impact on the
shareholder's capital gains tax base cost of the
conversion to Sig-ma shares in 2007 and the
redesignation to Ordinary shares in 2012 shouid
be considered.

In respect of the conversion to Sigma in 2007,
agreement was reached with HM Revenue &
Customs {HMRC') to base the apportionment of
the capital gains tax base cost on the proportion
of Ordinary shares that were converted by &
shareholder into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007.

Therefore, if an Ordinary shareholder converted 20%
of their existing Ordinary shares into Sigma shares
cn 25 July 2007, the capital gains 1ax base cost of
the new Sigma shares acquired would be equal to
20% of the original capital gains tax base cost of
the Ordinary shares that they held pre-conversion.
The base cost of their remaining holding of Crdinary
shares would then be 80% of the original capital
gains tax base cost of their Crdinary shares held
pre-conversion.

As part of the re-designation of the Sigma shares
into Crdinary shares in December 2012, a further
shareholder's agreement was reached with HMRC
that a shareholders capital gains tax base cost in
their new Ordinary shares should be eguivalent to
their capital gains base cost in the pre-existing Sigma
shares (i.e. their capiial gains base caost under the
existing agreement if applicable).

Ifin doubt as to the consequences of this agreement
with HMRC, shareholders should consult with their
own professional advisors

TR Property Investment Trust



Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

Market purchases

The shares of TR Property Investment Trust plc are
listed and traded on the London Stock Exchange.
Investors may purchase shares through their
stockbroker, bank or other financial interrmediary.

Holding shares in certificated form

Investors may hold their investment in certificated form.
Our registrars, Computershare operate a dealing service
which cnables invesiors to buy and sell shares guickly
and easily online without a broker or the need to open a
trading account. Aiternatively the investor Centre aliows
investors to manage portfolios quickly and securely,
update details and view halances without annual
charges. Further detalls are available by contacting
Computershare on 0370 707 1355 or visit www.
computershare.com.

TR Property Investment Trust plc now offers
shareholders the opportunity to purchase further shares
in the company through the Dividend Re-investment
Plan {DRIP’) through the registrar, Computershare.
Shareholders can obtain further information on the DRIP
through their secure website www.investarcentre.co.uk,
or by phoning 0370 707 1694. Charges dc apply. Please
nate that to gain access to your details or register for the
DRIP on the Cormputershare site you will need the holder
reference number stated on the top left hand corner of
your share certificate.

Saving schemes, ISAs and other plans

Anumber of banks and wezlth management
organisations provide Savings Schemes and 1SAs
through which UK clients can invest in TR Property
Investment Trust plc.

18A and savings scheme providers do charge dealing
and other fees for cperating the accounts, and investors
should read the Terms and Conditions provided by these
companies and ensure that the charges best suit their
planned investment profile. Most schemes carry annual
charges but these vary between provider and preduct.
Where dealing charges apply, in some cases these are
applied as a percentage of funds invested and others as
a flat charge. The optimum way to hold the shares will be
different for each investor depending upon the frequency
and size of investments to be made.

Details are given below of two providers offering

shares in TR Property Investment Trust, but there
are many other opticns.

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

interactive investor ('ii')

Interactive investor provide and administer a range of
self-select investrment ptans, including tax-advantaged
ISAs and SIPPs {Seif-Invested Personal Pension), and
Trading Accounts. For more infermation, interactive
investor can be contacted on 0345 607 6001, or by
visiting www i co.uk/

Interactive investor offer investors in TR Property and
othe investment trusts a free opt-in online shareholder
voting and information service that enables investors to
receive sharehclder communications and, if they wish, to
vote on the shareholdings held in their account.

TR Property is alsc on the interactive super 60 rated list.

BMO Asset Management Limited (‘BMO’)

BMO offer a number of Private Investor Plans, Investment
Trust and Junior ISAs and Children’s Investment Plans.
Investments can be made as lurmp sums or through
regular savings. For more information see inside the back
cover. BMO can be contacted on 0800 136 420, or visit
www.bmogam.com.

Please remember that the value of your investments and
any income from them may go down as well as up. Past
performance is not a guide to future performance. You
may not get back the amount that you invest. If you arein
any doubt as to the suitability of a plan or any investment
available within a plan, please take professional advice.

Saving Schemes and ISAs transferred from Alliance
Trust Savings (ATS'} BNP Paribas

Following the acquisition of Alliance Trust Savings by
interactive investor, ATS self-directed accounts were
transferred to the interactive investor platform on 14th
October 2019.

In 2012 BNP Paribas closed down the part of their
business that operated Savings Schemes and 1SAs.
Investors were given the choice of transferring their
schemes to Alliance Trust Savings (ATS)orto a
provider of their own choice, or to close their accounts
and sell the holdings.

if investors did not respond to the letters from BNP
Paribas, their accounts were transferred to ATS.

Following the acquisition of Alliance Trust Savings by
interactive investor, ATS self-directed accounts were
transferred to the interactive investor platformon 14
October 2019,
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc
continued

Share fraud and boiler room scams
Shareholders in a number of Investment Trusts have
been approached as part of a share fraud where they

are informed of an opportunity to sell their shares as the
company is subject to a takepver bid. This is not true and
is an attempt to defraud shareholders. The share fraud
also seeks payment of a ‘cornmission’ by shareholders to
the parties carrying out the fraud.

Shareholders shoutd remain alert to this type of scam
and treat with suspicion any contact by telephone
offering an attractive investment opportunity, such

as a premium price for your shares, or an attempt {o
convince you that payment is required in order to release
a settiement for your shares. These frauds may also offer
to sell your shares in companies which have little or no
value or may offer you bonus shares, These s¢ called
‘boiter room’ scams can also invalve an attempt to obtain
your personal and/or hanking information with which to
commit identity fraud.

The caller may be friendly and reassuring or they may
take a more urgent tone, encouraging you to act quickly
otherwise you could lose money or miss out on a deal.

If you have been contacted by an unauthorised firm
regarding your shares the FCA would hike to hear
from you. You can repart an unauthorised firm using
the FCA helpline on 0800 111 6768 or by visiting their
website, which alse has other useful information,

at www.fca.org.uk.

If you receive any unsalicited investment advice
make sure you get the cerrect name of the person
and organisation. If the calls persist, hang up. If you
deat with an unauthorised firm, you will not be eligible
to receive payment under the Financial Services
Compensation Scheme.

Flease be advised that the Board or the Manager wouid

never make unsolicited telephone calls of such a nature
to shareholders.
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How to invest

One of the most convenient ways to invest in TR Property Investiment Trust plc

is throuygh one of the savings plans run by BMO.

BMO ISA

You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up t¢ £2G,000 for the current tax
year with a flump sum from £100 or regular savings from £25
a month. You can also transfer any existing ISAS to us whilst
maintaining the tax benefits. ‘

BMO Junior ISA (JISA)*

Atax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per lax year
tor a child. Contributions start from £100 lump sum or
£25a month. JISAs or CTFs with other providers can be
transferred to BMO.

BMO Lifetime ISA (LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later jife. Invest
up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive a 25%
Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest with a lump
sum from £100 or regular savings from £25 a month.

BMO Child Trust Fund (CTF)*

If your child already has a CTF you caninvest up to £9,000
per birthday vear, from £100 lump sum or £25 a month. CTFs
with other providers can be transferred tc BMO.

BMO General Investment Account (GJA)

This is a flexible way to invest in our range of Investment
Trusts. There are no maximum centributions, and
investments can be made from £100 lump sum or
£25a month.

BMO Junior Investment AccounT (JIA)

This is a flexible way to save for a child in our range of investment
Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and the plan can
easily be set up under bare trust (where the child is noted as

the beneficial owner) or kept in your name if you wish to retain
control over the investment. Investments can be made from a
£100 fump sum or £25 a month per account. You can also make
additional lump sum top-ups at any time from £100 per account.

* The CTF and JISA accounts are opened by parents in the child's name andg
they have accessto the money at age 18,

** Calls may be recorded or monitored for training and gua'ity purposes

w4 COLUMBIA
THREADNEEDLE

IRVESTMENTS

BMO 9 Part of

© 2022 BMQ Global Asset Management. BMO Global Asset Management

is a registered trading name for vanious affilated entities of BMO Global

Asset Managemert (EMEA] that provide investrient management services,
ingtitutional client services and securities products, Financial promotions are
1ssued for marketing and information purposes; in the United Kingdom by

BMD Asset Managerment Limited, which Is authorisad and regulated by the
Financial Conduct Authority. This entity is a whotly owned subsidiary of Columbia
Threadneedle Investments UK Interational Limited, whose direct parent is
Amerprise Inc, a company incorporated inthe United States. It was formerly part
of BMO Financial Group and is currently using the "BMO” mark under hcence,

Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Charges
Annual management charges and other charges apply according to
the type of plan.

Annual account charge

1SAISA EEO+VAT

Gliv £40+VAT

A AR E2BHVAT

You can pay the annual charge from your account, or by direct
debit (in addition to any annual subscription limits)

Dealing charges

£12 per fund {reduced to £0 for deals placed through the
online BMO Investor Portal) for ISA/GIA/LISA/JIA and JISA.
There are nc dealing charges on a CTF,

Dealing charges apply when shares are bought or sold but
not on the reinvestment of dividends or the investment of
monthly direct debits.

Government stamp duty of 0.5% alsc applies on the purchase

of shares (where applicable).

The value of investments can go down as well as up and

you may nat get back your original investment. Tax benefits
depend on your individual circumstances and tax allowances
and rules may change. Please ensure you have read the -

full Terms and Conditions, Privacy Palicy and relevant

Key Features documents before investing. For regulatory
purposes, please ensure you have read the Pre-sales Cost &
Charges disclosure refated to the product you are applying for,
and the relevant Key Information Documents (KIDs) for the
investmeant trusts you want to invest into.

How to invest

To open a new BMO plan, apply online at bmogam.com/apply
Online applications are not available if you are transfernng

an existing plan with ancther provider to BMG, or if you are
apphying for & new plan in more than one name but paper
applications are availabie at brmoinvestments.co.uk/
documents or by contacting BMO.

New customers
Call: 0800 136 420%* (8 20w 5 300m, weeskdays)
Email.  info@bmogam.com

Existing plan holders

Call: G345 600 3030** (3 00arm - 5 G0pm, sworkdays)

Emall  investorenquiries@bmogam.com

Bypost:  BMO Adrmimistration Certre PO Box 117 14 Chalmsford
CrAD9 206G

You canalsc invest in the trust through onfine dealing platforms

for private investors that offer share dealing and 1SAs. Cormpanies
include: Barclays Stockbrokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown,
HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank, The Share Centre

=] bmoinvestments co uk
calls may be recorded or monitored for

0 bmoinvestrnentsuk _ :
training and quality purposes

19

0345600 3030, 9.00am — 5.00pm, weekdays,
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